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Striving for Excellence
in Corporate Reporting
Overview

	◆ The following frameworks have been 
considered in compiling this annual report: 

	◆ The accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan comprise:

	◆ International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRSs), issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board 
(IASB) as notified under the Companies 
Act, 2017; 

	◆ Islamic Financials Accounting Standards 
(IFASs) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP); and 

	◆ Provisions of and directives issued under 
the Companies Act, 2017. 

	◆ Where the provisions of and directives 
issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ 
from IFRS Standards, the provisions of and 
directives issued under the Companies Act, 
2017 have been followed. 

	◆ Regulations of the Listed Companies Code 
of Corporate Governance, 2019 and the Rule 
Book of the Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX). 

	◆ Best practices on Corporate Reporting as 
promoted by Joint Committee of Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) 
and Institute of Cost and Management 
Accountants of Pakistan (ICMAP). 

	◆ Integrated Reporting (IR) framework issued 
by the International Integrated Reporting 
Council (IIRC).

Statement of Adherence with
International Integrated Reporting 
Framework

This integrated annual report provides an 
overview of sustainable value created by AGP 
over time. It provides insight of the Company’s 
strategy, and its ability to create value in the short, 
medium and long term, and to its effective use 
of capitals and its effects. The report also details 

the nature and quality of the organization’s 
relationships with its key stakeholders and sets 
out the financial & non-financial performance of 
the Company and also provide insight into the 
future prospects & outlook.

This integrated annual report precisely covers the 
following fundamental elements of Integrated 
Reporting framework:

	◆ Organizational overview and external                         
environment

	◆ Governance

	◆ Business model

	◆ Risks and opportunities

	◆ Strategy and resource allocation

	◆ Performance

	◆ Outlook

	◆ Basis of preparation and presentation

Reporting Period

This Annual Report covers the reporting period 
from January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020. The 
Company views corporate reporting as a means 
of communicating with its stakeholders and
providing an insight into the Company’s
governance, strategy, performance and future 
prospects.

External Assurance

Following elements of this report have been
independently assured by external experts:

Review Report
on Compliance 

with Code of
Corporate

Governance

Independent
Auditor’s Report 
on the Audit of 

Financial
Statements

Entity’s Credit
Rating

EY Ford Rhodes – Chartered Accountants

Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (PACRA)

Our Significant 
Events

MAR

APR

SEP

OCT

DEC
Commencement of Nutraceutical 

Plant operations

Board of Directors Meeting
Announced interim dividend of 

PKR 1 per share (i.e. 10%)

Highest ever production
of 4.5 Million Packs in a month

Annual General Meeting
Approval of Annual Audited 

Financial Statements

Achieved highest monthly sales of 
PKR 665 Million

Board of Directors Meeting
Recommendation of Annual 

Audited Financial Statements

Corporate Briefing Session
was held, which summarized  the 
Company’s performance of 2020

Osnate range joining
the 1 Billion club

9
Annual
Report 

20208
AGP
Limited





Company
Information

Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Junaid Aslam

Company Secretary

Mr. Umair Mukhtar

Board of Directors

Mr. Tariq Moinuddin Khan
Ms. Nusrat Munshi
Mr. Zafar Iqbal Sobani
Mr. Naved Abid Khan
Mr. Kamran Nishat
Mr. Mahmud Yar Hiraj
Mr. Muhammad Kamran Mirza

Chairman
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
Independent Director
Independent Director
Non-Executive Director 
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director

Audit Committee

Mr. Zafar Iqbal Sobani
Mr. Kamran Nishat
Mr. Mahmud Yar Hiraj
Mr. Muhammad Kamran Mirza

Chairman
Member
Member
Member

Human Resource and
Remuneration Committee

Mr. Naved Abid Khan
Ms. Nusrat Munshi
Mr. Mahmud Yar Hiraj
Mr. Muhammad Kamran Mirza

Chairman
Member
Member
Member

Strategy Committee 

Mr. Kamran Nishat
Ms. Nusrat Munshi
Mr. Mahmud Yar Hiraj
Mr. Muhammad Kamran Mirza

Chairman
Member
Member
Member

Share Registrar

CDC Share Registrar Services Limited 

Head of Internal Audit

Mr. Shahzaib Tariq

Legal Advisors

Sattar & Sattar

Auditors

EY Ford Rhodes
Chartered Accountants

Bankers 

Allied Bank Limited
Dubai Islamic Bank
Faysal Bank Limited
JS Bank Limited 
MCB Islamic Bank Limited
MCB Bank Limited

Meezan Bank Limited
The Bank of Punjab 
United Bank Limited
Habib Bank Limited
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
Bank Al Habib Limited

Plant-II

D-109, S.I.T.E., Karachi
Tel.: +9221 32572695 & 32563598
Fax: +9221 32564670

Plant-III

F/46, S.I.T.E., Super Highway
Phase II, Karachi

Website

www.agp.com.pk

Email

info@agp.com.pk

B-23-C, S.I.T.E., Karachi   Tel.: +9221 111-247-247
  Fax: +9221 32570678

Registered Office
and Plant-I
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Code
of Conduct

EMPLOYEE RESPONSIBILITIES EMPLOYEE RESPONSIBILITIES EMPLOYEE RESPONSIBILITIES 

BUSINESS INTEGRITY

COMPANY’S RESPONSIBILITIES

BUSINESS PRINCIPLES

	◆ AGP expects its employees to deal fairly 
with customers, suppliers, service providers, 
competitors, and other employees

	◆ AGP’s employees must abide by the 
country’s law in any form of dealings

	◆ AGP provides equal employment 
opportunities for all

	◆ Company ensures prompt actions to recall 
the product in case they don’t meet quality 
standard

	◆ We do not support any political parties 
or provide them or their supporters any 
funding

	◆ AGP works towards ensuring the protection 
of the private information of our employees

	◆ AGP ensures to operate with 
environmentally sound practices, 
safeguarding the use of the material

	◆ Any kind of bribery, seeking or accepting a 
personal payment, gift or favor in return for 
favorable treatment is strictly prohibited

	◆ Every employee is responsible to forewarn 
the Company’s management of any 
information in his/her knowledge that can 
be a potential risk to the Company

	◆ Interaction should be transparent with 
shareholders, analysts, and other public

	◆ All employees must abide by the copyright 
rules of the company

	◆ No agreement with third parties without 
compliance with principles set by the 
organization

	◆ Every employee must protect and use the 
assets of the company with care

	◆ Employees are not allowed personal 
activities and financial interests outside 
Company that is not in the interest of the 
Company

	◆ Unauthorized alteration of product labels or 
literature is strictly prohibited

	◆ Employment with the Company is and 
should be seen as a full-time occupation 
and for this reason, other employment or 
business association shall not be taken up

	◆ Prohibition of substance use in the work 
environment

	◆ Family connections must be disclosed to 
the organization

	◆ Providing business and financial records 
are necessary

Our Core
Values

We adhere to ethical standards in all 
our activities; abiding to relevant local/
international regulations and standards.

Our employees consistently develop 
themselves, develop their teams and
organizational capabilities.

All our actions are directed towards
creating value for our customers and
providing them with an unparalleled 
experience every time they work with us.

We all focus on delivering results and look 
to create new business opportunities.

We develop and encourage the ability to 
make tough decisions, challenge status 
quo, change, innovate & improve.
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Our
Journey

2020

1989
AGP (Pvt.) Ltd.
starts commercial
operations

1995
Signs an
agreement with
UCB Belgium to
manufacture &
market their
products

2006
Enters into an
agreement with
OM Switzerland
(now Vifor) to
manufacture &
market selected
products

2009
2015

AGP (Pvt.) Ltd.
& AGP Healthcare
(Pvt.) Ltd. merge
into AGP Limited
(Formerly Appollo
Pharma)

2018
Enlistment on
Pakistan Stock
Exchange OBS AGP (Pvt.) Ltd.

is incorporated
as a SPV to acquire
certain Sandoz
Brands in Pakistan

Enters into a
supply agreement
with GSK Pakistan 
for manufacturing
of UCB products

1991
Enters into a
joint venture
with Eli Lilly
Pakistan for
their
cephalosporin’s
range

2003
Purchases Eli
Lilly brand
rights for Ceclor,
Keflex, Kefzol &
Nebcin in
Pakistan

2007
Purchases UCB
brand rights for
Rigix in Pakistan

2014
OBS led
consortium
(through a SPV
Appollo Pharma)
acquires AGP

2015
2019
Acquisition of
Nutraceutical
Plant

Signs an
agreement with
Mylan for
marketing & sales
of their products in
Pakistan

Limited
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Warehouses-3

Smart Depots-37

Corporate Depots-27

PAKISTAN

AFGHANISTAN

Our
Presence
AGP distributes its products locally through Muller & Phipps Pakistan (Pvt.) Ltd. (M&P), which is the 
largest pharmaceutical distributor in Pakistan. M&P currently have 64 depots nationwide with 900+ 
owned vans and 12 stockists. 

In international landscape, we have partnered with a renowned distributor ‘Al-Haj Malem Khan Mangal’ 
to distribute our products in 9 major cities of Afghanistan.

Our
Impact Today
Principle Activities

AGP is a pharmaceutical Company which 
is primarily involved in manufacturing 
and marketing products under licensing 
arrangements with other companies along with 
manufacturing and marketing its own brands.

Number of Employees

AGP has 1,334 employees, including third party 
contractual staff, to support its business activities 
across its three manufacturing plants and head 
office. Appropriate disclosure of total and average 
number of employees has been made in note 39.1 
of the financial statements.

Position Within the Value Chain

The detailed illustration of value creation business 
model on page 46 portraying Company’s 
activities to create value for its stakeholders, 
by employing its capitals and performing key 
business activities. 

Composition of
Local & Imported Materials

The Company procures raw material from 
imported and local sources. The composition of 
local versus imported materials during the year 
ended December 31, 2020 is shown below:

Foreign Currency Sensitivity Analysis

Based on the Company’s results in 2020, every 1% 
increase in exchange rate, with all other variables 
held constant, will impact Profit Before Tax by 
PKR 15.1 Million.

Significant Changes from Prior Years

Significant changes from 2019, have been 
appropriately disclosed in the relevant section in 
this report.

1,334
Employees

Factory

353
Males

843 
Males

117
Females

21
Females

Management

29% Local
71% Import
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Human Resource &
Administration

Strategy
Committee

Managing Director
& CEO

Audit
Committee

Business Planning
& Corporate Affairs

Internal
Audit

Human Resources
& Remuneration

Committee

Board of
Directors

Quality Operations & New
Product Development

Supply Chain

Information
Solutions

Finance

Technical Operations
& Regulatory Affairs

Marketing
& Sales

Organizational
Structure

Group
Structure

70%

100%

100%52.98%

4.79%

West End 16 Pte. Ltd.
(Singapore)

OBS Healthcare (Pvt.) Ltd.

Aitkenstuart Pakistan (Pvt.) Ltd.
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Significant Factors Affecting the External Environment and the Organization’s Response

PESTEL Analysis

Political
	◆ Political instability
	◆ Strained international 
relations 

	◆ Closure of international 
borders

	◆ Social Welfare Programs 
introduced to expand 
access of health care such 
as Sehat Sahoolat Card

Economic
	◆ Volatility in foreign 
exchange rate

	◆ Reduction in interest rates 
	◆ Controlled Inflation 
	◆ FBR announced Economic 
Relief Package

Socio-Cultural
	◆ Covid-19 imposed heavy 
challenges on trade, 
commerce, health care and 
lock-down situation 

	◆ Geo-Strategic location 
of Pakistan enables it to 
have access to over 40% of 
world’s growing population

	◆ Busy and sedentary 
lifestyles increasing 
incidences of obesity, 
cancer and diabetes 

	◆ Inadequate healthcare 
infrastructure and facilities 

Technological
	◆ Lack of research and 
development

	◆ Technological obsolescence
	◆ Introduction of artificial 
intelligence in drug 
manufacturing 

	◆ Practices to use digitalized 
equipment 

Environmental
	◆ Scarcity of natural 
resources

	◆ Increasing air, water and 
land pollution leading to 
diseases 

	◆ Natural Disasters 

Legal
	◆ Heavily regulated 
environment, stringent 
and closely monitored by 
Drug Regulatory Authority 
Pakistan (DRAP)

	◆ Statutory compliance 
with Companies Act, 2017, 
Listing Regulations by PSX 
and Securities Act, 2015

	◆ Levy of taxes and duties 
under Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001, Sales Tax 
Act, 1990, Sindh Sales tax 
on Services Act, 2011 and 
Custom Act, 1969

Organization’s 
Response

	◆ Constantly liaising with the 
government and regulatory 
authorities and working 
together with industry

	◆ Developing alternate 
vendor sources to mitigate 
supply chain disruption 

Organization’s 
Response

	◆ Ensuring cost efficiency 
and utility maximization

	◆ Securing debts on lowered 
interest rates for feasible 
capital expenditure 

	◆ Appropriate and necessary 
price adjustments 

	◆ Efficient tax planning and 
securing tax refunds

Organization’s 
Response

	◆ Following Covid-19 
protocols and SOPs and 
ensuring continuous supply 
of our medicines

	◆ Creating impact through 
CSR activities 

	◆ Partnering with 
organizations actively 
engaged in providing 
medical relief to the 
underprivileged

	◆ Creating awareness of 
diseases via social media 
channels

	◆ Focus on geographical 
expansion

Organization’s 
Response

	◆ Contributing in Central 
research fund and 
liaising with international 
partners for technological 
enhancements

	◆ Continuous investment in 
balancing, modernization, 
and restructuring of plants 
and machinery 

	◆ Exploring new technologies 
to aid in manufacturing and 
administration

Organization’s 
Response

	◆ Reducing carbon footprint 
by installing solar panels 

	◆ Measures to conserve water 
usage 

	◆ Water disposal to Sindh 
Environmental Protection 
Act, 2014 (SEPA) approved 
vendors only

	◆ Ensuring compliance with 
National Environment 
Quality Standards (NEQS)

	◆ Investing to support 
community

Organization’s 
Response

	◆ Providing input through 
pharma associations in 
formulating or revising 
drug policies 

	◆ Hiring professionally literate 
staff to ensure compliance 
with all the applicable laws 
and regulations  

	◆ Filing hardship cases for 
justified price increase

	◆ Effective tax planning and 
import of materials.
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Competitive Landscape 
and Market Positioning
AGP Limited has grown in leaps and bounds over the period of 3 decades. Our 
history demonstrates our strong commitment towards quality of products, 
standardization of processes, partnership with global pharmaceutical 
powerhouses and focus on governance with the aim of being more accessible 
to our customers. Our distribution networks are spread all over the country and 
are streamlined to create value for our consumers, chemists and healthcare 
professionals. The Company’s competitive landscape and market positioning in 
terms of Porter’s Five Forces is explained below:

Threat of New Competition

Pharmaceutical industry operates in highly 
regulated and price controlled environment. High 
initial setup cost of manufacturing facilities along 
with quality and standardization requirements 
coupled with the lengthy and cumbersome 
registration and approval process, creates barriers 
for the new entrants. 

Over a period of more than 32 years, AGP Limited 
has developed efficient production environment 
and effective quality management system. The 
Company is equipped with best human resources 
and enjoys the benefits of economies of scale. 
With the help of its reputable brands, AGP has 
marked its presence in major therapeutic classes. 

Threat of Substitutes

With robust sales force of the Company and 
partnership with Muller & Phipps (M&P), the 
largest distribution house in Pakistan, AGP has 
ensured that its products are easily accessible 
to the general public and available all across 
Pakistan. Over the years, we have developed a 
strong corporate image and reputation of being 
a compliant entity. Owing to the quality of our 
products, we have been able to build strong 
loyalty amongst our customers. 

Counterfeit products in the Pakistani 
pharmaceutical market are reported to be 
on a much higher side and act as an active 
substitute for the industry itself. In order to 
lessen these threats, the Company undertook 
multiple initiatives to combat menace of the high 

prevalence of counterfeits in the Pakistani market 
by introducing 2D bar codes on the products 
manufactured at AGP and incorporating unique 
design elements into the packaging of core 
brands.

Bargaining power of Buyers

The portfolio of the Company mainly comprises of 
prescription based medicines. Accordingly, there 
is relatively low bargaining power of consumers 
due to the inherent nature of our products being 
prescription-based. AGP has always been keen 
to increase its brand loyalty by ensuring that 
our consumers have access to safe, effective 
and quality products that are manufactured, 
stored and marketed in accordance with the 
international standards. Due to quality and 
efficacy, the recognition of our brands are highly 
regarded and recommended by number of Key 
Opinion Leaders.

Bargaining Power of Suppliers

Absence of locally produced high quality active 
pharmaceutical ingredients, stringent quality 
criteria, high supplier switching cost and 
geopolitical restraints lead to limited raw material 
vendor sources. Taking this challenge, AGP 
has developed alternate vendor sources where 
required, to mitigate the supply chain disruptions 
and lessen the bargaining power of suppliers. 

For packing materials, glass bottles, cartons etc. 
local suppliers have little power as the market is 
highly competitive. 

Competition in the Industry

The pharmaceutical industry is majorly 
dominated by top 6 pharmaceuticals, who 
collectively owns 35% market share. With 
increasing per capita health spend, AGP 
continues to strengthen its footsteps in Pakistan’s 
pharmaceutical industry by remaining focused 
on serving its customers, strengthening and 
building stakeholder relationships, expanding 
and diversifying its product offering and exploring 
organic and inorganic opportunities for growth.

AGP has been authorized to participate with its 
parent company, Aitkenstuart Pakistan (Private) 
Limited through a Special Purpose Vehicle, 
OBS AGP (Private) Limited, for the purpose of 
acquisition of a selected portfolio of products 
which are commercialized in Pakistan under 
the Sandoz brand (“brands”) that are owned by 
Sandoz AG, Switzerland. Subject to necessary 
corporate and regulatory approvals, the said 
acquisition is likely to increase the market 
share of the Company along with increase in its 
revenues and profitability.

AGP Limited has existence almost in all major 
therapeutic categories operating in the country 
and presence all across Pakistan and Afghanistan 
and, thus no individual element of seasonality is 
likely to be material to the results of the Company 
as a whole. However, sales of certain of AGP’s 
products, such as Ceclor, Keflex and Anafortan 
Plus, are subject to seasonal fluctuations. The 
sales are more pronounced during first and 
fourth quarter for Ceclor and Keflex, and during 
the second and third quarter for Anafortan Plus. 
Moreover, the year 2020 was an unusual year due 
to Covid-19 and accordingly, sales were adversely 
affected in the second quarter as the pandemic 
was at its peak during this period.

This impact was managed by proficient resource 
planning, advanced procurement of imported 
materials, efficient inventory management 
and effective production planning. Production 
environment is adjusted and planned in 
anticipation of sales forecast based on market 
demand. We ensured complete availability and 
accessibility of our medicines as per the needs 
and demands of our customers.

Effect of
Seasonality
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Mr. Sajid Qadeer
Head of Supply Chain

From Left to Right From Right to Left

Mr. Junaid Aslam
Chief Financial Officer 

Mr. Umair Mukhtar
Head of Business Planning
& Corporate Afairs

Ms. Shumaila Amir
Director Plant Operations

Mr. Shahzaib Tariq
Head of Internal Audit

Mr. Abdul Sattar
Head of Information Solutions

Mr. Junaid Jumani
Director Human Resources
& Administration

Mr. Shakil Ahmed
Director Commercial 

Ms. Nusrat Munshi
Chief Executive Officer 

& Managing Director 

Ms. Seema Zohra
Head of Quality Operations

Mr. Tauqir Ahmed
Director Technical Operations

Mr. Ahmed Iqbal
Director Commercial

Executive 
Management Team
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Our People,
Our Pride



Our Trusted
Portfolio

GYNAE

Our Gynae portfolio consists of products belonging to rapidly 
growing & leading therapeutic classes, including Anafortan plus , a 

market leader in pain management. We are serving Gynae & 
Orthopedics with a vision to create value in concerned arenas to 

promise better and healthier lives. 

INTERNAL MEDICINE 

Determined to offer high-quality generic pharmaceuticals to 
millions of people, our portfolio of Internal Medicine constitutes of 

treatment options for a number of therapeutic areas, including the 
gastrointestinal system, respiratory illness, ophthalmic, dental 

health and pain management. Our flagship brand Rigix holds major 
share of this wide range portfolio whereas few other promising 

brands are Chymoral Forte, Ceclor tablets and Macusheild.

CARDIOMETABOLIC 

In our efforts to curb the mortality rate of cardio metabolic 
diseases, we are offering a complete continuum of care for the 

management and treatment of diabetes, hypertension and other 
cardiac ailment. To attain our vision, we have extended our product 

pipeline to come up with the latest treatment options at all stages 
of the disease and assist with patient management through early 

detection and treatment. 

HEPATOLOGY   

Committed to combat the viral hepatitis transmission, we take 
pride in being the sole distributor of Mylan’s products operating in 
the Hepatitis B & C therapeutic areas in Pakistan. With the vision 
to eliminate HCV & HBV as a major public health threat, we are 
creating value for our customers by constantly diversifying into 
newer sub therapeutic classes and providing quality products to 
strengthen our foothold in the segment.

ONCOLOGY 

With the aim of creating a world where cancer is not only 
treatable but curable, we have collaborated with Mylan to enable 

provision of quality oncology medicines and biosimilars. Our 
dedicated oncology business unit is one of the most innovative 

portfolio that sees further enrichment with future launches in 
biosimilar field along with new drug therapies introduced through 

the platform. 

We offer healthcare products from diverse fields of medicine that constantly evolve with 
our customer's needs, enabling a healthier tomorrow. Our strong product portfolio can 
be broadly categorized in the following healthcare segments:

NUTRACEUTICAL

In our wide range nutraceutical portfolio, we craft a selection of 
lifestyle products, nutritional supplements and probiotics that work 
in sync with a healthy diet, proactive support and overall wellness.  
Every formulation we produce & market is designed to support the 
body’s natural defenses with consciously selected ingredients 
that help our consumers stay healthy in ever changing world. 
With our new nutraceutical facility being fully operational from 
the last year of this year, we are positive to further strengthen 
and expand our existing product pipeline.

PEDIATRICS 

Our focus is to deliver breakthrough innovations that extend and 
improve the lives of our upcoming generations. We are helping to 
abolish number of ailments in infants, children, and adolescents 
through an extended product pipeline in all major therapeutic 
classes with the promise of a better tomorrow. Osnate D is the 
leading brand of this segment followed by Ceclor.

31
Annual
Report 

202030
AGP
Limited



Marketing

Creating value for our customers and building 
sustainable customer relationships is at the 
heart of our marketing strategy. We have 
ensured progress through our strong distribution 
channels, distinct marketing capabilities, cutting 
edge customer relationship services and addition 
of more health care providers in our circle. 

The continuous seamless efforts of our marketers 
have led us to achieve major sales milestones 
throughout the year as our leading brand, Osnate 
made its way to join PKR 1 Billion sales club with 

our flagship brand Rigix.

Diversifying Through Innovations and 
Brand Extensions

Continuous innovations in the product portfolio 
are essential to ensuring a long-term reliable 

value chain, allowing businesses to compete 
in areas other than price and creating a loyal 
customer base. Staying true to our commitment 
to deliver sustainable growth, we successfully 
launched Zapol, a sanitizer prepared as per WHO 
formula and introduced test kits to detect the 
presence of Covid-19 antibodies within 15 minutes. 
We also launched Exotan, a new addition to our 
hypertension management portfolio, and a new 
variant in our Rigix’s family, Rigix drops. 

Utilizing Multi-Channel Marketing

We kick started our digital transformation journey 
and proactively implemented a digital activation 
program through which we continued to connect 
with our customers, healthcare professionals 
(HCPs) and consumers. Different social media 
platforms were leveraged including Facebook, 

In 2020, we focused on enhancing the trust of our key knowledge leaders, health care providers 
and consumers to make AGP’s products the brand of choice. This was made possible by playing 
a pivotal role in delivering our brand values across the country by various customer education 
programs and different marketing techniques. 

LinkedIn and Whatsapp for conducting 
awareness sessions by running agile and effective 
digital marketing campaigns. Digital efforts 
resulted in higher engagement and improved 
brand equity.

To address evidence-based clinical performance 
gaps that impact patient health in the selected 
disease area, AGP participated to ensure 
the health care providers are building their 
capabilities by attending Continuing Medical 
Education (CME) Programs and Conferences.

As we move ahead in 2021, we are determined to 
expand and improve our efforts in streamlining 
our digital capabilities and communication with 
customers.

Connecting with Customers

In 2020, various customer engagement programs 
were held across the country to connect with 
our customers. We sponsored multiple initiatives 
including, but not limited to, PGF Ladies Amateur 
Golf Championship, Sindh Cycling Association 
Event ‘Road Race’ and First Lady’s Breast Cancer 

Awareness Event held at Governor House. In 
addition to this, free diabetes diagnostic and 
several pain management programs were also 
held throughout the country to visualize our aim 
of valuing life.

Improving Systems Through 
Technological Advancement

In 2020, we continued to accelerate our digital 
transformation and build our digital capabilities. 
A dedicated, well-integrated digital portal for 
our medical representatives called MRep was 
developed to ensure field force connectivity, 
real time sales update and improved customer 
relationship management.

Given the challenging year and strong headwinds 
we have been able to ensure complete business 
continuity by conducting virtual meetings and 
online webinars. Furthermore, we initiated 
an online service “Dial Clinic” and “Sehat ki 
Batein” to facilitate our patients with free of cost 
consultation and health awareness. 
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Technical
Operations

Undisrupted 
Production of 
Products during 
COVID-19

3
Manufacturing 
Facilities

470
Total Skilled 
Factory Workers

42 Million

Packs Annual  
Production

4.5 Million

Packs Produced 
in December

Successful 
Commencement of 
Nutraceutical
Facility

1,177
Solar Panels Installed

135
Different SKUs
Manufactured

2
New ISO 
Certifications 

We are focused to improve healthcare through consistent provision of supreme quality products 
and compliance to Good Manufacturing Practices. We are committed to make this possible 
through our four key strategic priorities: investing in our state-of-the-art manufacturing facilities, 
delivering high quality products at optimal costs, meticulous production planning and working 
safely and sustainably with zero tolerance to accidents, defects and waste. 

ISO

Environment, Health and Safety

Our aim is to provide a safe working environment 
to all our workers and managerial staff. We have 
stretched ourselves to identify and address 
gaps from highest to the lowest risk level. We 
have excelled in machine safety by performing 
proactive validation studies, which helped in the 
provision of safe work equipment and plant for 
the employees.

During the pandemic situation we were making 
vigorous efforts by taking all necessary measures 
to ensure continuity of our production. This 
was made possible through following the 
guidelines recommended by WHO (World 
Health Organization) for the health & safety of 
employees, such as maintaining physical distance 
through double shifts, frequent hand washing, 
usage of sanitizers in the factory area and training 
of employees to increase awareness about 
management of COVID-19.

In our efforts to enable a sustainable and safer 
environment, in 2020, effluent levels were kept 
well within the National Environmental Quality 
Standards (NEQS) limits. Moreover, to control the 
emission of greenhouse gases, installation of solar 
power system at all three manufacturing facilities 
is near completion. A number of in-house EHS 
(Environment, Health and Safety) training 
sessions and fire drills were held during the year 
for emergency response vigilance.

Manufacturing

We have three state of the art manufacturing 
facilities which have been certified to comply 
with cGMP (Good Manufacturing Practices):

Plant-I

Plant-I, is our largest manufacturing facility 
located in SITE Area, Karachi. Stretched over an 
area of around 2.81 acers, it is well equipped for 
the production of wide variety of dosage forms 
including Tablets, Capsules, Syrup, Suspension, 
Sachets, Liquid Parenteral, Ampoules & Semi 
Solids Preparation. In 2020, annual production 
was 34 million packs where major brands 
manufactured in the facility were Rigix, Osnate 
Range, Anafortan, Urso and Chymarol Forte along 
with new products launched including Exotan 
Tablet & Rigix Oral Drops. 

To enhance our current machine and labor 
hours’ efficiency, we installed a Bottle 
Inspection System on Oral Liquid Filling. This 
will substantially reduce wastage by restricting 
low volume bottles to pass through the line and 
enhance our compliance practices. Moreover, 
21 CFR Part II complied Fedegari Autoclave for 
parenteral product sterilization process was also 
commissioned. 

With our continuous efforts to upgrade our 
current manufacturing facilities and maximizing 
our production capacity, we surpassed the 
highest number of packs produced in a month, 
i.e. 3.5 Million packs, in December 2020.
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Plant-II

Plant-II is our Cephalosporin manufacturing 
plant situated in SITE Area, Karachi. Covering 
an area of 1.25 acres and has been audited by 
different international organizations with a clean 
opinion. Our team is well capable of meeting high 
manufacturing standards according to local & 
external GMP requirements.

In 2020, its annual production was 7.4 million 
packs, with major brands, Ceclor, Keflex and 
Ckinlare manufactured in the facility. To upgrade 
our current operating infrastructure, a cooling 
tower was also installed. 

Plant-III

Plant-III is our nutraceutical facility located 
at Super Highway, Karachi. It commenced its 
operation from October 2020 after all necessary 
regulatory approvals. Eight brands were produced 
with successful production of 0.3 million packs. 
The shift to in-house production of our brands 
such as Coffif & Kosnate-D will help us achieve 
economies of scale and new launches in the 
nutraceutical segment will increase our market 
share.

Regulatory Compliance

Our regulatory affairs department ensures 
compliance with legal and ISO requirements. 
We take pride in being ISO 9001, ISO 14001 and 
ISO 45001 certified that enables us to focus on 
assessing the risks in production machines & 
processes.

Research & Development

It is our unwavering pledge to benchmark our 
products against the global standards. With 
deep insight in patient care, our research and 
development team enables us to manufacture 
a range of complex generics and drug delivery 
based formulations. During 2020, our main area 
of focus remained development and extension 
of our current nutraceutical product pipeline 
complied to the guidelines of DRAP and other 
concerned regulatory authorities.

Quality Management System

Our austere internal quality controls reflect 
commitment towards our core promise of 
valuing life. To meet this commitment, our quality 
culture is embedded in everything we do and 
is our competitive advantage. This helps us in 
providing our patients safe, effective and high 
quality products that are manufactured, stored 
and marketed in accordance with the regulatory 
requirements and Company values.

We focus on compliance with local and 
international standards, not only for ourselves but 
also for our suppliers. Our high quality standards 
and compliance levels are evident from our 

exemplary performances in a number of audits 
and inspections conducted by various external 
agencies. Through working in cross functional 
collaboration, from screening of suppliers for 
raw materials to ensuring production processes 
and product distribution, we optimize lead times 
by simplifying the process of product release 
and making imported products available to the 
customers in the shortest possible span of time.

To enhance and upgrade our current 
mechanisms, we took the following initiatives in 
2020:

	◆ The size and shape of a particle can affect 
how a medication works in the body, Malvern 
MATERSIZER 3000, a nano particle size 

analyzer was installed. It is used to determine 
the size of individual particles as well as a size 
distribution range for a given sample was 
installed.

	◆ With the progression of business and increase 
requirement of regulatory, quality assurance 
introduced some value added process in 
operations such as transport validation, bulk 
hold time studies and cleaning validation.

	◆ To ensure high level of data integrity, accuracy 
and transparency, all QC instruments i.e. 
HPLC, IR, UV, GC and AAS have been linked to 
the server for data backup.

In coming years, our main area of focus will 
remain on maintenance and upgradation of our 
esteemed quality culture.
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Information Solutions

Focused towards continuously improving the 
overall IT infrastructure, in 2020, we developed 
effective and innovative technological solutions, 
for both internal processes and external 
engagements. 

Digital platforms such as email, website, learning 
portal, mobile applications and social media 
apps were constantly being used and updated 
to enable the Company to achieve its business 
goals and connect with patients and customers. 
Our internal functions were continuously 
strengthened by developing efficient and user 
friendly information services and solutions. A 
learning management system and an employee 
attendance system synchronized with Face 
Recognition System was developed, sales force 
and customer connectivity was made possible 
through an outsourced medical representative 
app, MRep, for increasing internal controls and 
ensuring effective communication. During the 

times of COVID-19, to ensure business continuity, 
our team enabled wide scale remote working 
possible by technology, data and security.

We continue to enhance our focus on the use 
of technology and proactively work as change 
agents in driving the process improvement & 
innovations, coping up with complexity while 
driving simplicity. The implementation of digital 
initiatives in operations has resulted in faster 
and accurate dissemination of information 
to management, leading to prompt decision 
making. 

With information considered as valuable asset 
for the Company, we are committed to safeguard 
all the information through our ultra-modern 
data protection system, which focuses on timely 
backup of the data. In future, one of our key 
area of focus will be development of a disaster 
recovery site for real time backup of data to 
ensure business continuity.

Determined to deliver  technology driven business models & capabilities, & to protect our critical 
information and assets, our IS professionals are putting assiduous efforts to bring business, 
innovation and technology together.
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Human Resource
Management

We continued to focus on transforming our human capital by helping them to optimize their 
achievement by enhancing their abilities, increasing their participation and develop a strong and 
meaningful connection between their purpose and organization’s goals. Key focus areas for 2020 
included leadership development, capability building, utilization of online learning platforms, 
employee relations and occupational health for building high performance teams to achieve 
organizational goals while diversity and commitment to compliance remained cornerstone of our 
agenda. 

14
Management Trainees 
were hired

23
Interns
were hired

23
New Female
Inductees

138
Total Female
Employees

Attracting Pragmatic, Professional, and 
Progressive Talent

AGP continued to mark its position as an Equal 
Opportunity Employer by acquiring the best 
talent through unbiased hiring practices. We 
hired  competent people best suited for their 
respective roles through job advertisements on 
focused career websites, social media and online 
platforms. 

Our participation in recruitment drives and career 
fairs at key universities continued in 2020. It 
remained a special area of focus for us to attract 
and on-board young,  talented and passionate 
individuals from reputable institutions through a 
comprehensive Management Trainee Program. 
This proved as a highly effective and valuable 
resource for building a steady extramural talent 
pipeline for entry-level positions. Recruitment 
of experienced business professionals in 
key managerial roles further helped us in 
strengthening our core corporate strategy of 
providing top quality medicines and valuing life.

Committing to Enable a Healthier Work 
Environment

In 2020, we continued with our aim to foster 
a progressive organizational culture that 
stimulates growth, engagement and team 
spirit through various employee engagement 
activities. We actively work towards building 
intrinsic and external motivational factors to 
keep our employee up to beat including market 
competitive compensation and benefits, 
sufficient learning and training opportunities, 
appropiate career growth options and inclusive 
work environment.

Building Capabilities for a Better
Tomorrow

Focusing further on development of functional 
and leadership abilities of our people, employees 
were encouraged to attend a number of training 
platforms internally and externally. Responding to 
the growing demand of new skills and knowledge 
in the industry, several different types of on job 
training (OJT) and external training sessions 
were carried out in 2020. To continue enabling 
and delivering value-creating efforts while 
adapting to social distancing practices, 2020 
allowed our leaders to explore new arenas such as 
e-learning platforms and webinars. This helped in 
prevention of obsolescence in the organization, 
improving the overall performance of the 
Company by inculcating technological discipline 
in the workplace and continued teaching the 
employees efficient ways of handling work. 

One of our top priority is professional 
development of our people, we have devised 
a personalized plan for every employee that 
is supported by a well-integrated Learning 
Management System (LMS), equipped with 
a detailed Training Need Analysis (TNA). We 
continue to focus on enhancing the agility and 
functional competencies of our people through a 
standardized performance management system; 
that helps us to ensure that the employees’ align 
their development objectives with AGP’s core 
values.
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Developing Future Leaders

In 2020, we established a feedback driven 
performance management system to promote 
transparency within the Company that further 
drove talent development, sustainable succession 
planning and development-based leadership 
excellence. Our annual appraisal system helped 
improve relationship between the employees 
and their functional manager, with constant 
coaching and mentoring to help them attain 
their business goals. Learnings from these 
sessions are transformed into developing our 

future leadership.

Exhibiting Diversity & Inclusion in Our 
Practices

With the core tenet of enabling an inclusive 
environment for our diverse workforce at our 
hearts, AGP continued to adhere to the Global 

Diversity Benchmarks in 2020 by attracting, 
recruiting, training and promoting its employees 
without any racial, religious, sectarian or gender 
based discrimination. Our team with its seamless 
efforts continued to raise the bar by empowering 
the employees with the freedom to express and 
practice their respective religious obligations. 
AGP encourages their employee to celebrate 
the interests surrounding them through 
commemoration of days such as International 
Women’s Day, Fathers’ Day, Mothers’ Day and 
many more. This has paid us off by establishing 
an environment of trust, reliability and efficacy 
helping us to move towards the direction of 
becoming an employer of choice. 

Adhering to this pattern of remaining resolute to 
the values of diversity and inclusion, AGP for the 
second consecutive year achieved recognition 
for its efforts at the Global Diversity & Inclusion 
Benchmarks (GDIB) awards 2021.

Finance

We are committed to serving in the best interests 
of our shareholders and other stakeholders, 
acting as an emblem of accountability and 
feasibility. We perform the core functions of 
effective financial management, accounting 
and reporting, with a persistent focus on acting 
as the financial advisor for other functions 
and departments within the organization.  
Functioning through the foundational 
values of integrity, efficiency, and continuous 
improvement, we are driven to navigate the 
organization towards the achievement of its 
robust financial KPIs. 

We work towards enhancing the profitability, 
liquidity and market position of the Company 
through increased cost efficiencies, effective 
cash flow management and optimization 
of shareholder value. The core feature of our 
department is to ensure that we maintain 
sufficient reserves to maximize shareholders’ 
returns through existing operations and finance 
the implementation of the Company’s growth 
strategies. At the same time, we ensure that the 
capital structure of the Company demonstrates 
financial optimality. 

We offer financial and economical guidance to 
other business areas of the Company and analyze 
their prospects of future development in terms 
of the addition of value for the Company. We 
also ensure that the internal control framework 
approved by the Board is adhered to in all 
functions of the business. 

Despite the challenges posed by the outbreak 
of Covid-19 pandemic, we contributed towards 
building resilience of the Company through 
effective management of running finance. 
During the year, we made some significant 
improvements in our processes as we shifted 
towards interdepartmental standardization and 
automation for different financial processes. 
This helped us in efficiently integrating different 
SAP reports to have meaningful results for 
analysis. We completely aligned with the new 
IFRS introduced and its necessary calculations 
and financial models. The Company has also 
implemented rigorous insurance and revamped 
its policy to extensively cover organizational risk.

Resolute to maximizing the value for our key stakeholders, in 2020, optimization of our financial 
capabilities and acting as an anchor for the organization to attain robust KPIs, remained our key 
area of focus.
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Supply
Chain Management

Adequate Resource Planning

Our aim is to strike a balance between having 
sufficient inventory levels to meet the customers’ 
needs without having a surplus. Our team 
continues to enhance its advanced analytics 
capabilities and leverages its expertise in 
causal modelling to improve the accuracy and 
effectiveness of the business planning process. 
With a strong cross functional collaboration, 
we conduct a detailed demand analysis 
before raising purchase order for raw material. 
Accordingly, we prudently anticipate the possible 
market demand and number of units we need 
to produce and set the ball rolling for inventory 
management, production and shipping.

Cost-Effective Procurement Practices

Our smooth purchase solicitation process helps 
us sketch out an accurate plan for procuring 
goods and services in a timely manner and 
at reasonable costs. In 2020, through robust 
sourcing strategies we ensured continuous and 

reliable supply of materials while delivering 
net savings of PKR 7.1 million which to an 
entent mitigated the cost implications posed 
by devaluating currency and inflationary 
environment. In order to mitigate the geopolitical 
risk of sourcing from Indian vendors, alternate 
sources of most of the active pharmaceutical 
ingredients and excipients were developed. 

Efficient Warehouse & Inventory
Management

Our robust material management systems 
allow us to monitor our inventory and current 
deliveries, as well as to predict expected demand 
for our products. We currently manage 4 
warehouses and with the help of our Warehouse 
Management System, we have improved our 
space utilization, increased efficiency and 
enhanced inventory accuracy. We ensure that our 
storage is compliant with Good Storage Practices 
which involves maintaining a certain temperature 
in our warehouses throughout 24 hours.

We have an organized supply network which acts as a catalyst for business operations and plays 
a pivotal role in ensuring timely delivery of finished products to our customer and consumers. 

Dynamic Distribution Strategies & 
Mechanism

We have outsourced our logistics function to 
Muller & Philips, one of the best in town third 
party logistics service providers. We ensure that 

end-to-end fleet and movement of stock in 
third party vehicles is monitored for quality and 
controlled for temperature, when required. SAP 
enables information sharing and streamlines our 
entire logistics functions.
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Our
Value Chain

UPSTREAM AT VALUE

Suppliers

Raw Material
(national & international)

Import of
Finished Product

Packaging Material

DOWNSTREAM

M&P Distribution

Hospitals,Clinics
& Pharmacies Patients

Exports

Exports

OWN ACTIVITIES

Manufacturing

Packaging

Warehousing

AGP has made concerted efforts to ensure that we maintain a strong and agile value-chain that 
fulfills the need of our end consumers effectively. The range of activities in place to ensure the 
provision of our products are illustrated in the diagram below.

Sustainability and
CSR Practices
AGP is committed towards accomplishing greater sustainability and creating a positive 
impact on the society and the environment. We actively ensure the implementation of our 
Environment, Health and Safety (EHS) policy, which is dedicated to incorporate sustainability 
in business strategies and to provide a roadmap to the Company for conducting its business 
in a fair, transparent and socially responsible manner. Simultaneously, it serves as a guide to 
strategic plans and systematic management of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) initiatives 
and activities. As a socially responsible healthcare company, we are committed to take part in 
humanitarian causes, adding social value, and helping people live healthier lives. AGP has actively 
contributed towards sustainability and welfare of society in an exemplary manner that includes 
measures in the following key areas:

Improving Social Wellbeing

Embodying the vision to promote a healthy lifestyle, AGP has undertaken various projects to build 
healthier communities which includes: 

Partnered with Pakistan Golf 
Federation (PGF) and sponsored 

Ladies Amateur Golf Championship 
2020, an exhilarating sporting event 
that attracted the interests of female 

participants and golf enthusiasts 
from all over Pakistan.

Sponsored an event at Governor 
House Sindh under the umbrella of 

the first lady Begum Samina Alvi 
Breast Cancer Awareness Campaign. 
This event marked the launch of an 

official Breast Cancer Helpline, a 
great milestone for this campaign.

Partnered with Sindh Cycling 
Association, a platform affiliated 
with Pakistan Cycling Federation 
and sponsored a racing event in 

which cyclists from all over Sindh 
participated to promote healthy 

lifestyle and well-being of the 
society.

Initiated a Tree Plantation Campaign 
under the theme of “Each One Plant 
One”, with the aim to propagate its 

commitment towards 
environmental conservation. To 

mark this commitment, AGP held 
several plantation drives in different 

parts of Karachi.

Several monetary donations were 
made alongwith medicines, PPE 

equipment, antibody testing kits to 
various institutions including Darul 

Sukun, Indus Hospital (Primary & 
Secondary Healthcare Department) 

& Kidney Center.

Donated Anesthesia & Ventilator 
machines to the Gynecology ward of 

Patients Aid Foundation, Jinnah 
Postgraduate Medical Centre (JPMC)
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Incorporating the latest trends in digitalization 
and e-commerce, the Company took several 
measures to improve the community’s access 
towards quality healthcare. AGP launched “Sehat 
Ki Baatien”, an online health series that hosted 
health care professionals from diverse medical 
fields providing their valuable insights on the 
causes, symptoms, and prevention of common 
diseases. 30+ health awareness sessions were 
conducted, reaching more than 0.5 million 
touchpoints cumulatively on multiple social 
media platforms. Furthermore, AGP launched 
“Dial Clinics”, a 24/7 helpline, whereby, patients 
could get free and direct access to over 80 
specialized consultants. More than 2,500 
consultancies were made through this channel. 

The Company has joined hands with DoctHers, 
a digital health platform that matches the 
underutilized capacity of female doctors to the 
unmet need of health consumers via technology. 
The collaboration is aimed at providing high-
quality medicine and nutritional supplements 
at subsidized rates into areas that suffer from 
immobility and inaccessibility. 

The patients will be consulted online by female 
doctors, and will be provided with relevant 
medications through trained lady-health workers 
already deployed in underdeveloped areas. This 
will help us in forming a strong connection with 
the underprivileged segment of the society and 
boost our consumer outreach. The pilot project 

of this program in Bahawalpur met success, 
and hence, the project will be extended to other 
underdeveloped cities of Pakistan.

Saving the Environment	

AGP continuously safeguards the environment, 
and for this purpose all the manufacturing sites 
are following National Environmental Quality 
Standards (NEQs). To attain sustainability and 
long-term growth, the Company is tirelessly 
working to refine its energy and resource 
consumption through the following steps:

	◆ Installation of solar power systems at all 
three of its production facilities to reduce 
greenhouse gas emission that results in 
global warming

	◆ Installation of sensor-driven taps that 
promote sustainable consumption of water 

	◆ Effluent water treatment plant in place for 
proper water disposal that complies with 
Sindh Environment Protection Agency (SEPA)

Consumer Protection and Safety 

AGP takes stringent measures to ensure 
consumer protection and safety as it is cognizant 
of the critical nature of the pharmaceutical 
industry. The organization has taken steps to 
ensure safety and avoid counterfeits purchase; 
this includes the incorporation of unique design 
elements into the packaging of core brands and 
introducing 2D bar codes on all the products 
manufactured at AGP.

Promoting Sustainability in Work 

AGP has always taken the health and well-being 
of its people as its top priority and constantly 
strives to provide and maintain a safe and 
conducive working environment to its human 
resources. 

Employees are considered as our valuable assets 
and necessary steps are taken to ensure their 
health and safety at all cost. To assure employees’ 
well-being, the Company conducts regular 
maintenance of machinery to avoid possible 
accidents and provides training and sessions 
to create awareness. We provide hygienic and 
balanced diet to our workforce. AGP carries 
out emergency response drills and fire risk 
assessments to prepare its staff for sudden 
mishaps and natural calamities. 

Further, AGP works to enable diversity and 
equal employment opportunities to its staff by 
implementing equitable hiring practices. We 
contribute to the fulfilment of human rights by 
ensuring compliance with laws and regulations 
wherever we operate and also through our 
policies and programs. 

AGP believes in youth empowerment as reflected 
by our hiring practices. We have taken several 
measures to increase youth’s participation within 
the organization.

AGP, enabling an organizational culture that 
prioritizes employee engagement and maximizes 
their involvement and motivation, undertook 
several activities and events to promote an 
inclusive and conducive environment among its 
workforce.

Christmas DiwaliInternational Women’s Day

World Diabetes Day Annual Sales Conference
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2
Several ration drives 
were conducted for 
distribution of food to 
the underprivileged 
population

Joined hands with 
DoctHERS, a digital 
health platform, to 
improve the overall 
health of underprivileged 
women, particularly 
pregnant females and 
feeding mothers, by 
enabling provision of 
easier access to the 
relevant healthcare 
products in our portfolio 
at discounted prices

3
We made several 
monetary donations 
alongwith medicines, 
PPE equipment, antibody 
testing kits to various 
institutions. We also 
donated a set of 
anesthesia machine with 
ventilator.

Arranged screening 
camps for Hepatitis B & 
C testing and served 
around 2,000 people in 
various institutes all over 
Pakistan

Introduced Dial Clinics, a 
digital platform to 
provide online 
consultancies wherein 
2,500 plus consultancies 
were conducted from 
experienced Doctors

Launched a series of 
health awareness 
sessions “Sehat ki 
Baatien” through 
renowned healthcare 
practitioners and more 
than 30 such sessions 
were held during 2020

4
A policy is in place that 
provides educational 
scholarships for Higher 
Secondary, Graduation 
and Professional / 
Technical to the needy 
and deserving children 
of factory workers and 
support staff

5
We have female strength 
of over 10.3% as a total 
workforce

Female led 
pharmaceutical listed 
company

Won GDIB award for the 
2nd consecutive year 
and this year we are 
recognized in three 
different categories, 
recruitment & 
developments, benefits 
and social responsibility

Provide safe, convenient 
and affordable 
transportation facility to 
our female employees of 
lower management staff

6
Effluent water treatment 
plant is in place for 
proper water disposal 
that complies with Sindh 
Environment Protection 
Agency (SEPA) and 
approved by the 
competent regulatory 
authority

Conserving water by 
using taps with sensors 
and springs

7
Installation of Solar 
Power System on all 3 
manufacturing sites that 
will cover around 12% of 
our energy needs

8
Particle Size Analyzer is 
installed which provides 
more intelligence in the 
existing process as well 
as new product 
development as potential 
problems related to 
particle size can be 
detected at early stage

A proper framework is in 
place to ensure that 
same wages and 
benefits are provided to 
male and female staff 
doing the same level of 
job with similar 
qualifications

10
Duly adhere to all fiscal 
policies pertaining to 
labor wages and 
compensation

The composition of 
employees contains 
different ethnic groups 
including minority 
classes

The management strictly 
ensure that all workers 
and staff are older than 
18 years of age and 
strongly discourages 
child labor

In line with our promise to improve people’s living standards, AGP is actively pursuing the 
strategies and objectives that are aligned with the fulfillment of Sustainable Development Goals 
(SDGs). Our measures to contribute towards the SDGs include:

Towards a
Sustainable Future 

The Company is consistently 
making efforts to promise a 
sustainable future by pursuing 
the achievement of maximum 
number of goals:
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Strategic Response
to Covid-19

Policy Statement

The aim is to continue production and ensure 
that general public, particularly patients in need, 
have constant access to our medicines and 
appropriate Standard Operating Procedures 
(SOPs) are in place to make the work 
environment safe and sound for the employees. 

Recovery Plan

The outbreak of global Covid-19 pandemic 
dictated an unprecedented shift in corporate 
world, disrupted the socio-economic 
environment and raised health concerns 
amongst the mankind. It posed a serious threat 
to enterprises all around the globe as it halted 
trade, commerce, and human interaction in 
general. It also led to millions of positive cases 
worldwide, serious health issues and even tragic 
loss of human lives. The Covid-19 crisis demanded 
the corporate entities to act diligently and 
urgently, and AGP did not only take the necessary 
preventive measures, but went a step ahead with 
its solution-oriented approach by introducing 
products that are need of the hour. 

By standing united in the face of adversity, AGP 
formed strong linkage with all of its stakeholders. 
The Company’s response to the pandemic can be
broadly classified into the following categories:

Upgrading Supply Chain and 
Production

AGP ensured continuous availability of its 
essential healthcare products to the patients 
in need by ensuring continuity in supply and 
production throughout the year; at times even at 
the cost of narrowed profit margins. 

To mitigate the risks of running out of stock for 
raw materials, the Company took the following 
steps:

	◆ Development of alternate vendor sources

	◆ Prudently increasing the buffer stock levels 
for its raw materials, in-process goods and 
finished goods to prevent any shortages

	◆ Effective inventory management and robust 
mediums of the inventory’s logistics to avoid 
any significant consignments delays 

AGP took the necessary measures to make 
sure that its production practices and working 
conditions are strictly compliant with the 
relevant health and safety SOPs. To ensure social 
distancing, the labor was divided in additional 
shifts of production and conveyance facility with 
Covid-19 protocols was provided to the workers 
at the time of lock-down when means of public 
transportation were not available.

Safeguarding Employees

AGP’s treasured employees remained highly 
valued as it focused towards facilitating and 
safeguarding them from the adverse impact of 
Covid-19 through the following measures: 

	◆ Covid-19 antibody testing of employees was 
conducted at regular intervals on a random 
and need basis to ensure their health and 
safety

	◆ Conducted awareness sessions to educate 
them on the symptoms and precautions of 
Covid-19

	◆ The office facility was disinfected twice a week 
to prevent the spread of the infection 

	◆ Employees were encouraged to work from 
home as remote working capabilities were 
promoted

	◆ Conferences, workshops and meetings were 
held virtually to ensure minimum physical 
interaction 

	◆ Thermal scanning was installed at entry 
points and ensured provision of sanitizers 
and masks at all accessible points in all 
manufacturing sites of the Company 

Supporting Communities

Sensing an urgent responsibility to assist and 
support the community during these testing 
times, AGP took steps to alleviate Covid-19 
impact on the general public. AGP launched 
Zapol, a sanitizer prepared as per WHO formula 
and introduced Test Kits to detect the presence 
of Covid-19 antibodies within 15 minutes. The 
Company made several donations of sanitizers 
and antibody testing kits to various organizations 
and institutions including Dar ul Sukun and Indus 
Hospital.

The journey of the Company to offer a helping 
hand to the community in these pandemic 
circumstances goes beyond ordinary levels 
and inspired the Company to launch a digital 
platform, “AGP Dial Clinic”, for the general public. 
It provided online, fast and free service to connect 
patients with over 80 specialized consultants, 
wherein 2,500 plus consultancies were conducted 
from experienced Doctors during the year. AGP 
also launched an online health series, “Sehat 
ki Baatien”, highlighting causes, symptoms 
and risks of common diseases with the help 
of partnerships with more than 30 renowned 
healthcare practitioners. The cumulative reach of 
these sessions is around 0.5 million viewers across 
all social media platforms.

AGP has also taken its first step towards 

e-commerce with tele-pharmacy partner, 
DoctHers, a digital health platform that matches 
the underutilized capacity of female doctors 
to the unmet need of health consumers via 
digitalization. The purpose of this venture is to 
provide easier access to our relevant healthcare 
products to the underprivileged patients at 
subsidized prices. A pilot has been launched in 
Bahawalpur which received better than expected 
response from the locals. Capitalizing on the 
success of this project it will be replicated to other 
underdeveloped cities of Pakistan.

Positioning within the Macro-
Environment

The Government, particularly State Bank of 
Pakistan (SBP), took various fiscal and monetary 
initiatives to stimulate business recovery and 
spur economic growth. These measures proved 
to be pivotal towards building fiscal resilience, 
stimulating business recovery and spurring 
economic growth. AGP was well-positioned to 
take advantage of these initiatives and availed 
subsidized financing facility announced by SBP to 
cover payment of wages and salaries for a period 
of six months. The Company also realized certain 
tax refunds on a fast track basis under economic 
relief package announced by GoP to shield 
the economy from adverse effects of Covid-19 
pandemic. 
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Awards
And Certifications

AGP Amongst Top 25 Companies

With sheer dedication and commitment, AGP 
was able to secure a position in the prestigious 
list of “Top 25 Companies of 2019” announced by 
the Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX).

The Board of Directors and management of the 
Company is extremely grateful to PSX for the 
acknowledgement of its commitment towards 
ensuring strong corporate governance, financial 
depth, strict adherence to statutory compliances 
and highest standards of professionalism.

BCR Award

AGP takes immense pride in announcing that 
it has managed to secure 3rd position in Best 
Corporate Report Awards competition for the year 
2019 within the pharmaceutical sector.

The competition is held by joint committee of The 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan 
(ICAP) and The Institute of Cost and Management 
Accountants of Pakistan (ICMAP) with the 
objective to recognize excellence in corporate 
reporting, promote accountability & transparency, 
and recognize responsible reporting by 
companies covering economic, environment and 
social performance of the business.

We firmly believe that this accolade is a testimony 
of the Company’s commitment towards fairness 
and transparency in corporate reporting. We 
would like to express gratitude to our team 

members associated with the preparation 
and compilation of the Annual Report 2019. 
Their exemplary dedication and efforts led 
the Company into achieving this remarkable 
milestone!

Global Diversity and Inclusion 
Benchmarks Award

AGP takes immense pride in announcing that 
it has been consecutively recognized in the 
second year at the Global Diversity & Inclusion 
Benchmarks (GDIB) awards 2021 by winning 
three (3) awards for furthering its commitment of 
promoting an exemplary working environment, 
implementing equitable hiring practices and 
establishing community partnerships.

The GDIB helps organizations determine strategy 
and measure progress in managing diversity and 
fostering inclusion. The Company was evaluated 
against criteria established by HR metrics’ in 
terms of provision of employee benefits, social 
responsibility and recruitment and development 
with implementation of diversity and inclusion at 
the heart of our agenda. This reflects the strong 
commitment and dedication of the Company 
towards creating a Diverse and Inclusive (D&I) 
work environment.

As we forge ahead, we remain resolute in 
furthering our D&I commitment through 
implementation of robust initiatives in line with 
GDIB standards.

GMP Certification

All pharmaceutical plants of AGP, is certified 
to comply with Current Good Manufacturing 
Practices (cGMP) as per the Drugs Act, 1976 and 
the related Rules. This certification is testament 
to the Company’s commitment to ensure that 
medicinal products are consistently produced 
and controlled for the best quality standards 
according to the product specifications.

Shariah Compliance Certificate

The Company received the “Certificate of Shariah 
Compliance with KSE Meezan Index (KMI) 
Shariah Compliance Criteria” after the Shariah 
Compliance Review, conducted by Meezan 
Bank limited. The Shariah Compliance Review 

principally involves review of the Company’s 
annual financial statements prepared by the 
management of the Company.

ISO Certification

The International Organization of Standardization 
(ISO), is a worldwide organization that develops 
standards for quality management. These 
standards enable the Company to achieve 
operational efficiencies and explore new export 
opportunities. AGP earned three certifications;

	◆ ISO 9001:2015 - Implementing and 
maintaining a companywide robust Quality 
Management System 

	◆ ISO 14001:2015 – Implementation of 
sustainable Environmental Management 
System

	◆ ISO 45001:2018 – Occupational Health and 
Safety Management System
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Strategy and Resource
Allocation Plan

We have created a plan to set overall objectives for our business and to develop strategies 
to achieve them by leveraging on our brand name, quality management systems, lean 
organizational culture, operational excellence and financial strength. We will follow through with 
these strategies and achieve our objectives successfully, creating value for our stakeholders.

KPI monitored Status Future relevance of KPI Opportunities/Threats

Strategies Nature Priority Resource allocated

Diversifying our portfolio by 
going into new and relevant 
segments 

Financial capital, human 
capital and intellectual capital

Short Term High

Enter new lines of business
Objective # 2

Number of products and 
their contribution in sales and 
profitability 

	◆ Increase in market share

	◆ Continuous changes in 
Government policies 

	◆ Reduces concentration 
risk

	◆ Hight setup cost and 
initial investment

	◆ Evolving and changing 
technologies

	◆ Nutraceutical plant is fully 
operational

	◆ Certain new projects are 
under evaluation and 
consideration

The KPI will remain relevant 
in future

KPI monitored Status Future relevance of KPI Opportunities/Threats

Strategies Nature Priority Resource allocated

	◆ Capitalize on the growth 
of top brands and high 
potential products

	◆ Focus on expansion 
across borders and new 
product launches

Financial capital, human 
capital, social and relationship 
capital

Short Term High

Growth rate of top brands, 
high potential products and 
exports
New export destinations 
Improved customer loyalty 
and enhanced credibility

	◆ Potential to increase 
market share 
domestically and expand 
internationally

	◆ Fierce global competition, 
particularly in  developed 
and emerging economies

	◆ Recorded overall sales 
growth of 11.1% 

	◆ Sales to Afghanistan grew 
by 41% 

	◆ Launched 4 new products 

The KPI will remain relevant 

in future

Increase sales
Objective # 1
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KPI monitored Status Future relevance of KPI Opportunities/Threats

Strategies Nature Priority Resource allocated

	◆ Keep resource utilization 
and business processes at 
an optimum level

	◆ Develop alternate vendor 
source

	◆ Attain operational 
excellence, increasing 
production and cost 
efficiencies

Financial capital, human 
capital, manufactured capital 
and intellectual capital

Short Term to

Medium Term

High

Profitability ratios i.e. gross 
profit margin, net profit 
margin, earning per share 
and expense ratios 

	◆ Cost of production at an 
optimum level despite 
business growth 

	◆ Uncontrollable economic 
indicators, pricing 
pressures by regulatory 
authorities and changes 
in tax laws 

	◆ currency depreciation and 
rise in inflation 

	◆ Net Profit and EPS 
increased by 9.8%

	◆ Implemented effective 
cost controls measures

	◆ Continued developing 
alternate, reliable and 
economic vendor source

The KPI will remain relevant 
in future

KPI monitored Status Future relevance of KPI Opportunities/Threats

Strategies Nature Priority Resource allocated

Explore avenues for expansion
Objective # 4

Find suitable ventures for 
mergers and acquisitions 

Financial capital, human 
capital, social and relationship 
capital

Medium to

Long Term

High

Market share, earning per 
share and return on equity 

	◆ High potential to increase 
market share

	◆ Procure materials at 
better prices from 
suppliers and increase 
purchasing power 

	◆ Better spread of 
production.

	◆ Consolidated business 
may produce negative 
synergies

Special Purpose Vehicle has 
been set up for the purpose 
of acquisition of a selected 
portfolio of products which 
are commercialized in 
Pakistan under the Sandoz 
brand

The KPI will remain relevant 
in future

Cost economization
Objective # 3

KPI monitored Status Future relevance of KPI Opportunities/Threats

Strategies Nature Priority Resource allocated

	◆ Enhance inclusion 
and diversity in work 
environment

	◆ Maintain work life balance 

	◆ Motivate staff with 
learning and development 
opportunities 

	◆ Provide career growth 
and incentivize 
appropriately

Financial capital, human 
capital, social and relationship 
capital

Long Term Medium

Employee turnover rate and 
feedback on surveys 

	◆ Ready pool of internal 
talent to fill the gaps 
and take up senior 
management positions 

	◆ Create opportunities 
for fresh talent in the 
industry

	◆ Top talent leaving the 
Company

	◆ Diverse workforce 
with 10.3% female 
representation in double 
digits

	◆ Achieved gender diversity 
and inclusion benchmarks 
award for the 2nd 
consecutive year

The KPI will remain relevant 
in future

KPI monitored Status Future relevance of KPI Opportunities/Threats

Strategies Nature Priority Resource allocated

	◆ Continuously upgrade 
production facilities 
and human capital to 
maximize efficiency

Financial capital, human 
capital, manufactured capital, 
intellectual capital, social and 
relationship capital

Long Term Medium

Market share, unit growth 
and value growth

	◆ Increasing focus and 
awareness on prevention 
and living longer and 
healthier lives 

	◆ Upgradation can lead to 
production downtime

Ongoing process to build 
brand image and have 
up to date state of the art 
production facilities

The KPI will remain relevant 
in future

Be an employer of choice
Objective # 5

Achieve market leadership
Objective # 6
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Liquidity Position of the Company
Strategy to Overcome any Liquidity 

Problems

The Company ensures prudent liquidity 
management by maintaining sufficient 
funds. Effective controls on credit sales and 
maintenance of an adequate amount of 
committed credit facilities results in effective 
management of its liquidity position. During 
the year, borrowings were settled on timely 
basis leading to maintenance of long term 
and short term credit rating of A+ and A1 
respectively.

The Company has an effective cash flow 
management that ensures to timely meet 
the working capital and financing need of the 
Company, maintained by a strong treasury 
management system. The Company is 
sufficiently liquid with PKR 370 Million in cash 
and cash equivalents, a long term debt of PKR 
400 Million along with current maturity of PKR 
665 Million. Over the long term, future cash 
generated from operations will be sufficient 
to fund operating and debt servicing costs, 
normal levels of capital expenditure, payments 
for business expansion programs and other 
routine outflows including tax and statutory 
levies and dividends.

Significant Plans

The Company plans to expand and grow 
through acquisition of selected portfolio of 
Sandoz Division in Pakistan and invest in 
capacity enhancement of its manufacturing 
facilities, to continue to deliver enduring 
value for all its stakeholders. In addition 
to this, the Company is making efforts to 
roll out Sputnik-V, efficacious vaccine to 
combat Covid-19, as per the directions of the 
government.

Significant Changes in Objectives and
Strategies from Prior Years

There is no significant change in objectives 
and strategies from prior year. The Company 
continue to persue its goals of expansion, 
development and growth.

KPI monitored Status Future relevance of KPI Opportunities/Threats

Strategies Nature Priority Resource allocated

	◆ Focus UN Sustainable 
Development Goals 

	◆ Work on environmental 
concerns

	◆ Build brand equity 
through CSR 

Financial capital, human 
capital, social and relationship 
capital

Long Term Medium

Community investments and 
energy efficiency

	◆ Community service 
commitment can be a 
source of confidence

	◆ Solar Panels have been 
installed on all of three 
manufacturing facilities 

	◆ Ongoing process of 
conducting CSR activities

The KPI will remain relevant 
in future

Ensuring social and corporate commitment
Objective # 7

The KPIs will continue to remain relevant in the future.
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Our Key Risks and
How We Manage Them

Business Risk Management Framework

The Board at AGP, oversees the risk management 
process by ensuring that a proper risk 
management framework is in place under 
the auspices of the Audit Committee. For this 
purpose, the Board has approved the risk 
management policy of the Company which 
determines the Company’s level of risk tolerance. 
Risk management systems are reviewed regularly 
by the executive management team to reflect 
changes in the environment, market conditions 
and Company’s activities.

The risk management framework of our 
Company is the structure governing the 
process of identification of potential threats to 
the organization and mitigating strategies to 
eliminate or minimize the impact of these risks, 
as well as the mechanism to effectively monitor 
and evaluate this strategy.

A number of strategic, legal, regulatory, 
operational, financial and reputational risks are 
being faced by the Company. We manage these 
risks through appropriate risk mitigation plans, 
designated accountability and mechanisms for 
upward communication of any significant issues 
and incidents that may arise.

Management of Capital Structure

The Company’s objective when managing 
capital is to safeguard its ability to remain as 
on-going concern and continue to provide 
sustainable returns for shareholders, benefits for 
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal 
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. 
The Company is currently financing majority of 
its operations through its own resources and 
running finance facility, if needed, or investing 
activities through long term financing and 
short term borrowings in addition to its equity. 
Furthermore, the Company has not defaulted in 
payment of any debt obligations during the year.

RISK # 1:
Volatile economic conditions, government policies and law and order situation

CAPITAL SOURCETYPE LIKELIHOODNATURE IMPACT RATING

Objective Mitigation plan Opportunity

Increase sales AGP regularly monitors the market 
and follows the market trend trying 

its best to avoid any unnecessary 
operational disruptions. Government 
intervention is beyond the Company’s 

control.

Increase market share and
achieve operational

efficiencies

RISK # 2:
Restrictive regulatory framework including undue pricing pressures

CAPITAL SOURCETYPE LIKELIHOODNATURE IMPACT RATING

Objective Mitigation plan Opportunity

Increase sales Regular dialogues with policy makers 
by management and Board members 

through diverse forums and
associations. Regular liaising with 

regulators to encourage the
implementation of favorable

regulatory frameworks.

To enhance presence and 
emphasize on process

optimization.

Financial Strategic ExternalShort term

Financial &
Relationship Strategic ExternalShort term

Key Risk and Oppurtunities

The principal risks faced by the Company are listed below. The risks discussed are not exhaustive and the 
Company may be subject to other risks not specifically outlined in this Annual Report.
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RISK # 3:
Strong market competition

CAPITAL SOURCETYPE LIKELIHOODNATURE IMPACT RATING

Objective Mitigation plan Opportunity

Achieve market leadership To gain a competitive edge, we have 
developed and implemented an 

efficient quality management system, 
that defines the quality systems and 

standards for our business. The system 
is applicable from product

development to commercial supply. 

To monitor markets and 
competitors and pre-empt 

external dynamics.

RISK # 4:
Fluctuation in fair value of future cash flows

CAPITAL SOURCETYPE LIKELIHOODNATURE IMPACT RATING

Objective Mitigation plan Opportunity

Cost economization Interest risk is moderated by active 
management of cash flows to avoid or 
at least reduce short term borrowings 

and maintain arrangement with 
financial institutions to have access to 
the best possible rate.  Currency risk is 
alleviated through careful selection of 

import countries which pose minimum 
risk of foreign currency fluctuation. 

Moreover, Company’s exports in 
foreign currency are pursued to offset 

the adverse currency fluctuations.

Export and effective working 
capital management.

Financial,
Social

&
Relationship

Strategic ExternalLong term

Financial Financial External
Short term to
Medium term

RISK # 5:
Lack of diversification and concentration of business

CAPITAL SOURCETYPE LIKELIHOODNATURE IMPACT RATING

Objective Mitigation plan Opportunity

Explore avenues for expansion To diversify and expand the business 
through inorganic growth, which 

is external growth, such as through 
mergers and acquisitions.

To achieve synergies and 
maximize returns and create 

sustainable value for
shareholders.

RISK # 6:
Default in payments by counterparty

CAPITAL SOURCETYPE LIKELIHOODNATURE IMPACT RATING

Objective Mitigation plan Opportunity

Cost economization Credit worthiness of the counterparty 
is evaluated every year and the

management monitors the credit 
exposure towards the customers and 

records an allowance for expected 
credit loss.

Monitor the performance of 
counterparties against

established KPIs.

Financial Financial ExternalShort term to
Medium term

Financial,
Human,

Manufactured,
and Social 

relationship

Strategic InternalMedium term
to Long term
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RISK # 7:
Insufficient resources to pay due liabilities

CAPITAL SOURCETYPE LIKELIHOODNATURE IMPACT RATING

Objective Mitigation plan Opportunity

Cost economization Prudent liquidity risk management by 
maintaining sufficient bank balances 

and the availability of funding through 
an adequate amount of committed 

credit facilities.

Efficient and effective cash 
flow managaement.

RISK # 8:
Infringement and unauthorized use of Intellectual property

CAPITAL SOURCETYPE LIKELIHOODNATURE IMPACT RATING

Objective Mitigation plan Opportunity

Increase sales Robust processes are followed to 
protect and prevent our Intellectual 

Property assets by infringement

To combat the menace of 
counterfeits in Pakistan for 

patient safety.

Financial
&

Intellectual

Financial,
Social

&
Relationship

Legal and
Compliance

risk

Financial

External

Internal

Short term

Short term to 
Medium term

RISK # 9:
Disruptions due to unavailability of raw materials

CAPITAL SOURCETYPE LIKELIHOODNATURE IMPACT RATING

Objective Mitigation plan Opportunity

Cost economization Proactive inventory management 
and develop a network of alternate 

suppliers for raw materials to ensure 
smooth operations and keep cost at an 

optimum level.

Maintain inventory at
optimum levels and stress in 

quality of materials.

RISK # 10:
Inability to attract, retain and develop high potential talent

CAPITAL SOURCETYPE LIKELIHOODNATURE IMPACT RATING

Objective Mitigation plan Opportunity

Be an employer of choice Promote a culture of employee
training and development with

opportunities of career growth aided 
by market competitive compensation.

Key staff remains employed 
while balancing and

maintaining job performance 
and productivity.

Financial
Human,
Social

&
Relationship

Financial
&

Human

Operational

Operational

Internal

External

Long term

Short term to
Medium Term

67
Annual
Report 

202066
AGP
Limited



RISK # 11:
Failure to keep abreast with technological advancements and emerging cyber attacks

CAPITAL SOURCETYPE LIKELIHOODNATURE IMPACT RATING

Objective Mitigation plan Opportunity

Achieve market leadership An efficient enterprise resource
planning system is in place to

manage the business functions within 
a centralized and integrated system 

and implement effective security
procedures as well as educate staff.

Strong IT control environment 
generate accurate and timely 

data for informed decision 
making.

RISK # 12:
Failure to keep safe working methods and procedures

CAPITAL SOURCETYPE LIKELIHOODNATURE IMPACT RATING

Objective Mitigation plan Opportunity

Cost economization Work ethics are tailored according to 
the Environmental, Health & Safety 
protocols emphasizing on worker

safety as top priority.

A safe and healthy workplace 
not only protects workers 

from injury and illness, it can 
also lower injury/illness costs, 

reduce absenteeism and
turnover, increase

productivity and quality, and 
raise employee morale.

Financial,
Human

&
Manufactured

Operational InternalShort term to 
Medium term

Financial
&

Manufactured
Operational External and

InternalLong term
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Our
Business Model    
We use our resources and our unique activities to provide high quality medicines and products and 
create long term value for our stakeholders in a responsible and sustainable way.

PKR

PKR

We invest in product portfolios 
that present opportunities for 
sustainable revenue  growth. Our 
targeted acquisitions present 
value enhancement 
opportunities. 

PRODUCT PIPELINE
DEVELOPMENT

We achieve supply chain
efficiencies due to our high
bargaining power. We capitalize 
on our unique manufacturing 
capabilities and widespread 
distribution network, to achieve 
optimization of operational costs 
and ensure reliable supply of  
high quality products.

MANUFACTURING & SUPPLY
CHAIN OPERATIONS

As part of our capital allocation 
framework we reinvest in our 
pipeline to provide the platform 
for future revenue growth, 
improved operational synergies 
and to create capacity for new 
value adding opportunities. We 
also provide adequate returns to 
shareholders in form of Dividends

REINVEST & DISTRIBUTE
RETURNS

We generate organic revenue 
and profit growth through 
focused promotion of our 
products, our extensive sales 
force network and cost 
economization

COMMERCIALIZATION

Human Capital

Social Capital

Financial Capital

Intellectual Capital

Manufacturing Capital

Natural Capital

For Vendors

For Distributors

For Shareholders

For Economy

For Environment

Our people help deliver our objectives with their 
scientific and technical knowledge and their
expertise in regulation, intellectual property and 
commercialization

We efectively manage our relationships with 
regulators, suppliers and third parties. We also have a 
good corporate reputation which is instrumental in 
managing these relationships

Access to cash, debt and equity enables us to invest in 
building our capacities for today’s and future needs

We are equipped with a trusted brand name and have 
a diversified and targeted product portfolio. We also 
have expertise in business acquisition
and integration, which enables us to achieve efficient 
and positive synergies

We have state of the art, cGMP compliant 
manufacturing facilities. Our manufacturing expertise 
enables us to deliver quality products
of international standards and achieve economies of 
scale

We focus on environmental protection and are 
inclined to adopt methodologies to conserve natural 
resources

We provide quality products to improve health and 
thus quality of life of our patients in communities in 
which we operate. We manufactured 42 Million 
products during the year.

Generating business and develop mutually beneficial 
long term relationships. Procurement of goods and 
services from local and international partners 
aggregate to an amount of PKR 2,603 Million in year.

Provide manufactured medicines for distribution 
across the country and borders. The medicines 
distributed worth PKR 6,764 Million in domestic and 
international markets.

In 2020, we paid an interim dividend of PKR 1 per 
share. In addition, the Board recommended a final 
dividend of PKR 1 per share. The market capitalization 
improved by 14.63%.  

We contributed PKR 450 Million to national exchequer 
through direct and indirect taxes and statutory levels.

We take Initiatives to reduce the impact of our 
operations on the natural environment

For Employees

For Patients

We have 1,334 employees including contractual staff, 
and offer them development and growth 
opportunities, to attract and retain the best talent to 
support our business. We paid a sum of PKR 1,309 
Million to employees as remuneration and benefits.

Our Resource How We Create Value Achieving Outcome

Culture: We are committed to build a high performance culture, underpinned by our values
and code of conduct

+
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Directors’
Profile

Chairman – Board of Directors
Mr. Tariq Moinuddin Khan

Mr. Tariq Moinuddin Khan, Chairman of OBS 
Group, has over 31 years of broad based healthcare 
experience. Under his oversight, OBS has 
emerged as a partner of choice for multinational 
pharmaceutical companies willing to work in 
Pakistan. 

He is the Honorary Consul General of Netherlands 
in Karachi, Secretary General of World Federation 
of Consuls, Brussels for Pakistan Chapter, Former 
President of Pakistan Sri Lanka Business Forum 
to promote trade between the two countries and 
Member of ASPEN Institute (USA). 

Following a successful career with leading 
companies in Canada and subsequently with Saudi 
Royal family, he joined Organon Pharma B.V. (OBS) 
(now part of Merck & Co. Inc. USA) in 2000. Later, he 
was based in KSA and served as Managing Director, 
Organon Pharma B.V. (OBS) for KSA and Pakistan. 

In 2006, he did a management buyout of Organon 
Pharma B.V. (OBS) followed by acquisition of Merck 
Sharp & Dohme (MSD) Pakistan business, Schering 
Plough Pakistan business, MSD Srilanka Operations, 
AGP Pvt. Ltd. and Johnson and Johnson’s 
Pharmaceutical Division, Janssen Pharma’s Pakistan 
operations. 

He is a graduate of the Concordia University, 
Montreal Canada and has a Post Graduate Diploma 
in Public Accountancy (GDPA) from McGill 
University. He is also a Certified Management 
Accountant from Ontario Canada and Certified 
Public Accountant from California, USA.

Ms. Nusrat Munshi has over 30 years of broad based 
experience in banking and pharmaceutical sector. 
She is the Managing Director and CEO of AGP 
Limited and also serves as director on the Board of 
OBS Healthcare (Private) Limited, Aspin Pharma 
(Private) Limited and OBS Green (Private) Limited. 
She joined AGP Limited in June 2007 and worked 
as Director of Finance, Information Systems and HR 
prior to her elevation as the Managing Director in 
2009. She successfully steered the Company during 
the critical process of change in ownership in 2014 
after which the Company has emerged much 
stronger with long term horizon.

She started her career with the Banking Industry 
and has experience of over a decade in Treasury, 
Corporate and Credit. She has also worked with 
HSBC Canada and was the Regional Corporate 
Head at HSBC, Pakistan before joining AGP Limited.

She holds a BBA (Hons) and MBA from the Institute 
of Business Administration and a second MBA from 
the Queens University, Canada.

Managing Director &
Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Nusrat Munshi
Chairman –
Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

Mr. Naved Abid Khan 

Mr. Naved Abid Khan brings along with him over 
31 years of work experience with 28 years of broad 
based banking experience. He is currently serving 
as Chairman & Chief Executive of Sharmeen 
Khan Memorial Foundation & Chairman Pakistan 
Microfinance Investment Company. He is also a 
Board Member of Karachi Shipyard and Engineering 
Works, Dubai Islamic Bank, NRSP Microfinance 
Bank Limited, Saif power, Board of Investment, 
Galiyat Development Authority, Naymat Collateral 
Management Company Limited, Bahria Foundation 
and Gas & Oil Company Pakistan.

During his career, he has served as the President 
& Chief Executive Officer of Faysal Bank Limited, 
ABN Amro Bank Pakistan Limited, President of 
Overseas Investors Chambers of Commerce and 
Industry, Chairman of Pakistan Banks Association, 
Faysal Asset Management Limited, Academic 
Board of Institute of Bankers Pakistan, President of 
Rotary Club of Karachi Metropolitan, Vice President 
of Institute of Bankers Pakistan and Member of 
the Institute of Bankers’ Council. He also served at 
senior key positions in Bank of America, Pakistan.

He holds a Bachelor of Science Degree from 
Indiana University, USA and a Master of Business 
Administration degree from Butler University, USA.
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Mr. Zafar Iqbal Sobani brings with him around 
forty years of experience of working in the 
manufacturing, power sector and audit profession 
in Pakistan and in the Middle East. Currently, he is 
on the Board of Privatization Commission, Zephyr 
Power (Private) Limited, TRG (Pakistan) Limited, 
Primus Leasing Limited, IT Minds and Fauji Cement 
Limited. 

During his career, he has worked with House of 
Habib in the areas of New Project Development and 
Real Estate Management. He also leads the power 
sector of the Country as CEO of Hubco Pakistan and 
CEO of Liberty Power Tech. Majority of his career 
was spent with Century Paper & Board Mills Limited, 
a part of Lakson Group overseeing various business 
activities. He has been the President of Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and 
served actively in council and regional committee 
in various capacities. He worked with A.F. Ferguson 
(PWC) in Pakistan and Ernst and Young, Kingdom 
of Saudi Arabia. He held the position as Chairman 
of Quality Control Board of ICAP overseeing quality 
of auditing profession for nine years and Member 
of the Managing Committee of Overseas Investors 
Chamber of Commerce and Industry. He is the 
Sponsor Director of Pakistan Institute of Corporate 
Governance and holds Certification as a trainer of 
Corporate Governance by IFC.

He obtained qualification of Chartered Accountancy 
and Cost & Management Accountancy in early 
eighties.

Mr. Kamran Nishat is currently the Managing 
Director & Chief Executive Officer of Muller & 
Phipps Pakistan (Private) Limited. 

He is also serving in the capacity of Chief Executive 
Officer at M&P Express Logistic (Private) Limited, 
M&P Logistic (Private) Limited, Logex (Private) 
Limited, Tech Sirat (Private) Limited, Veribest 
Brands Pakistan (Private) Limited and Tech Sirat 
Technology (Private) Limited. 

He holds the rich professional experience in 
different sectors for more than 35 years.

He is serving as the Independent Director at the 
Boards of Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited 
and Cyan Limited. He is serving as Director at the 
Board of Briogene (Private) Limited.

He is currently a member of Executive Committee 
and Chairman of Finance & Taxation subcommittee 
at the American Business Counsel. He has served 
as past president of American Business Counsel as 
well. Recently, he is serving his contributions at the 
National Skills University Islamabad as the member 
of the Advisory Council. 

In past, he served as the Member of Accounting 
and Auditing Standards Committee (South) of the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan 
(ICAP), Information Technology Committee (South) 
of the ICAP and Management Association of 
Pakistan. 

He is a Chartered Accountant and a fellow member 
of ICAP.

Chairman – Audit Committee
Mr. Zafar Iqbal Sobani

Non–Executive Director
Mr. Kamran Nishat

Mr. Mahmud Yar Hiraj has over 19 years of 
professional experience in private equity, principal 
investments and investment banking. He is a 
founding partner and a member of the Investment 
Committee at Baltoro Capital, a leading private 
equity firm.

Prior to Baltoro, he was the Head of Principal 
Investments at Bank Alfalah & held leading roles at 
Dhabi Group with representation on Investment 
Committees and boards of various portfolio 
companies.  Mr. Mahmud Yar Hiraj has worked at 
leading global financial institutions and investment 
banks in US, UK and Canada.  He started his career 
at the investment banking division of Salomon 
Smith Barney (Citigroup) in New York before moving 
to London to join Citigroup’s Financial Sponsors 
Group where his clients included leading global 
private equity firms.  His other experiences include 
executive positions at J.P. Morgan and Scotia Capital 
in North America, where he advised various leading 
Fortune 500 Companies and sponsors on mergers 
and acquisitions and capital market fundraising and 
restructuring transactions. 

Mr. Mahmud Yar Hiraj holds an MBA from Yale 
University and a BA from McGill University.

Mr. Muhammad Kamran Mirza brings with him over 
14 years of experience of Financial Markets focused 
primarily on Sell-side and Buy-side Investment 
Advisory. Prior to joining OBS Group in 2018, he was 
part of JS Bank Limited as Executive Vice President 
and Head of Investment Banking Group where 
he advised corporates on mergers, acquisitions, 
divestitures, debt and equity capital market 
transactions with a focus on pharmaceutical, 
microfinance, logistics, financial services and 
industrial sectors.

He joined JS Bank in 2007 as an analyst and due to 
his entrepreneurial mindset and ability to steer the 
franchise to deliver strong performance through the 
cycles, he rose to a position of Head of Investment 
Banking in a very short span of time. Prior to joining 
JS Bank, he had a short stint with a leading telecom 
company as Projects Management Executive.

A certified director from Pakistan Institute of 
Corporate Governance, he is currently serving as 
a Board Member of AGP Limited, OBS Healthcare 
(Pvt.) Limited, Aspin Pharma (Pvt.) Limited, Home 
Medics (Pvt.) Limited, OBS AGP (Pvt.) Limited 
and other OBS Group companies. He was also on 
the Panel of Experts of the Listing Committee of 
Pakistan Stock Exchange. 

He holds an undergraduate degree in commerce 
with a gold medal and is an MBA graduate from the 
Institute of Business Management (IoBM).

Non–Executive Director
Mr. Mahmud Yar Hiraj 

Non–Executive Director
Mr. Muhammad Kamran Mirza
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Dear Shareholders, 

I would like to present Chairman’s review report for the year 

ended December 31, 2020.

It is a privilege to state that the Company has delivered strong 

results despite adversity and unprecedented challenges 

posed by Covid-19. Undoubtedly, the credit of this resilient 

performance goes to the employees who worked with utmost 

commitment and dedication even in these difficult times and 

helped the Company to achieve sustainable growth in sales 

and profits, and hence maximized returns to shareholders. 

I would also like to put forward, my appreciation for the 

exemplary performance of our Chief Executive Officer under 

whose brilliant leadership, the Company continued with 

growth trajectory regardless of the global pandemic. 

I am grateful to the valuable contributions of my fellow Board 

members, who offered unparalleled strategic guidance 

and directions in paving a prosperous way forward for the 

Company. Our Board comprises of diverse and proficient 

group of highly accomplished professionals. The Board 

particularly ensured that their roles and responsibilities, 

as defined by the Companies Act 2017 and governed by 

the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 

Regulations, 2019, are carried out diligently. 

The Board has formed three committees, Audit Committee, 

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee and 

Strategy Committee to review, deliberate and present their 

recommendations as per their mandates. The members 

are adequately and appropriately placed in the respective 

committees on the basis of their relevant expertise and 

core functionality areas. The committees carried out their 

responsibilities effectively in accordance with the code of 

corporate governance and terms of reference duly approved 

by the Board. 

On behalf of the Board, I would like to express my gratitude 

to our stakeholders for their continued support and 

encouragement. I would specially like to place on record 

my appreciation for the outstanding efforts of our entire 

management team in these exceptional circumstances.

Tariq Moinuddin Khan

Chairman

Chairman’s Review

The credit of this resilient performance goes to the employees 
who worked with utmost commitment and dedication even in 
these difficult times.
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CEO’S Message

The year 2020 was an unusual year with 
unprecedented challenges posed by Covid-19 
pandemic.  The outbreak of global coronavirus 
disrupted the socio-economic environment 
compelling severe restrictions on trade and 
commerce and raising serious uncertainty in business 
community. The movement was suppressed as 
lockdowns were imposed and international borders 
remained closed for major part of the year. In 
these difficult times, the Government of Pakistan, 
particularly the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP), 
remained steadfast and made concerted efforts to 
sustain the economy by introducing a set of remedial 
measures such as refinancing policies, reduction of 
policy rate, controlled local currency devaluation, 
provision of subsidies and short-term tax reliefs.

While the Government played its role in ensuring 
an adjustable macroeconomic environment, the 
Company’s unwavering performance was driven by 
the exemplary dedication and commitment of its 
employees. Our treasured employees ensured that 
the supplies of our essential medicines are readily 
available for the patients in need. It is through their 
valuable support, that the Company was able to 
not only respond to the pandemic effectively but 
simultaneously, progress towards achieving its 
strategic goals and objectives.

Even in this adversity, the Company was able to record 
sales of PKR 6.9 billion, reflecting a double-digit 
growth of 11.1% over the last year. Our flagship brand 
Rigix, the largest selling anti-histamine in Pakistan, 
registered a growth of 25% and its sales reached PKR 
1.45 Billion. Rigix tablet, became our first dosage form 
to reach the covated PKR 1 Billion milestone. Another 
top brand of the Company, Osnate achieved the 
milestone and joined Rigix in the PKR 1 Billion club as 
per IQVIA MAT 2020.

Despite the increase in administrative costs as 
we took preventative measures against Covid-19, 
the Company’s focus on high potential products, 
minimization of marketing & travel-related costs, 
timely repayment of loans with reduction in interest 
rates, and increased efficiency in operations led the 
Company to increases its net profit to PKR 1.6 Billion 
and earnings per share to PKR 5.67, demonstrating a 
growth of 9.8%.

As per Company’s commitment towards providing 
its shareholders with the greatest value, AGP’s 
market capitalization grew to PKR 31.9 Billion from 
PKR 27.8 Billion, depicting a rise of 14.6%. Also, the 
Board announced a final dividend of PKR 1 per share, 
increasing the total annual dividend to PKR 2 per 
share for the year 2020.

Testament to the Company’s promise towards strong 
corporate governance, strict adherence to statutory 
compliances, highest standards of professionalism, 
gender diversity and equitable treatment of 
employees, I am pleased to share that the Company 
received various accolades and acknowledgements 
throughout the year as we secured a position in 
the prestigious list of Top 25 Companies of 2019 
announced by the Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX), 
secured 3rd position in Best Corporate Report Awards 
Competition held by the joint committee of ICAP and 
ICMAP, and won three Global Diversity and Inclusion 
Benchmark Awards (GDIB).

As we move forward, the Company is continuously 
focused towards enabling growth and development 
through expansion in the market coverage of its 
existing product portfolio and building onto its 
product mix to avail various opportunities locally and 
internationally. The commencement of commercial 
operations of Nutraceutical plant has opened new 
avenues in enhancing our sales position. Consistent 

with our strategic objective, the Board of Directors has 
authorized the Company to participate in the acquisition 
of selected portfolio of pharmaceutical products which 
are commercialized in Pakistan under the Sandoz brand. 
We are fully geared to capitalize on the opportunities 
of this acquisition and it is likely to bring operational 
efficiencies, logistical synergies, and enhancement of 
product portfolio and profitability of the Company.

Due to a low yet growing health expenditure per 
capita and health expenditure as a percentage of 
GDP, Pakistan’s pharmaceutical market currently 
holds enormous untapped potential and prospects 
for future growth remain strong. AGP is duly prepared 
for availing the countless opportunities that lie within 
the pharmaceutical industry and export potential of 
domestic medicines around the globe.

Lastly, I would specially like to place on record my 
gratitude and appreciation for outstanding efforts of 
our employees that enabled us to deliver a resilient 
performance throughout the year that was full of 
challenges and uncertainties. Their exemplary dedication 
and efforts led the Company to grow sustainably even 
during these difficult times.

The Company is looking forward to a prosperous future 
for its employees, shareholders, partners, and customers, 
all of which we consider as our greatest assets. At 
AGP, we are committed to deliver quality products 
that improve people’s access towards healthcare and 
wellbeing and thus, promising a healthier tomorrow!

Nusrat Munshi
Managing Director &
Chief Executive Officer

As we move forward, the Company is continuously focused 
towards enabling growth and development through expansion in 
the market coverage of its existing product portfolio and building 
onto its product mix to avail various opportunities locally and 
internationally.
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Corporate
Governance Framework

Compliance with the Best Practices of 
Code of Corporate Governance

Adhering to the Company standards, the Board of 
Directors has throughout the financial year 2020, 
complied with the requirements of the Listed 
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2019, Rule Book of the Pakistan Stock 
Exchange Limited and the Financial Reporting 
Framework of Securities & Exchange Commission 
of Pakistan (SECP). Report of the Board’s 
Audit Committee on adherence to the Code of 
Corporate Governance, Statement of Compliance 
with the Code of Corporate Governance by the 
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer and 
review report by the Company’s Auditors are 
included in this Report.

Governance Practices beyond Legal 
Requirements

The Company complies with all the requirements 
of Code of Corporate Governance and other 
Regulations. AGP has always believed in going 
the extra mile and staying ahead with legal 
formalities. In view of this strategy, we comply 
with all mandatory legal requirements and have 
also carried out the following practices in addition 
to the legal requirements:

	◆ Best corporate reporting practices as 
recommended jointly by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) 
and Institute of Cost and Management 
Accountant of Pakistan (ICMAP) 

	◆ Disclosure of various financial analysis 
including ratios, reviews, risk matrices and 
graphs etc. in the Annual Report

	◆ Implementation of Health, Safety and 
Environment practices to ensure safety of 
employees and society at large

As we continue to grow and evolve, we remain focused on our principles and rules. These include 
our governance and compliance frameworks. They form the bedrock of all our efforts, while 
ensuring that we adhere to the highest standards of ethical and responsible behavior.

Business Ethics and Anti-Corruption

Based on an ethical corporate culture, 
fundamental values of the Company are 
cornerstone of our operations. The values are 
integrated into daily work and business practices 
of all employees through the Code of Conduct 
and various unit-specific ethical compliance 
procedures. The Members of the Audit 
Committee meet at regular and defined statutory 
intervals during the year to review the adequacy 
and effectiveness of the internal controls, 
including those relating to the strengthening of 
the Company’s risk management policies and 
systems. 

Conflict of Interest of Board Members

Within the framework of their roles and 
responsibilities, all Board members are exclusively 
committed to the interests of the Company 
and neither pursue personal interests nor grant 
unjustified advantages to third parties. The Board 
members are responsible for appropriate self-
disclosure in a transparent manner and in the 
case of doubtful situation, are encouraged to 
discuss it with peers or the Chair of the meeting 
for guidance.

Role of the Chairman

The Chair is responsible for the leadership and 
management of the Board and for ensuring 
that the Board and its committees function 
effectively. One way in which this is achieved is 
by ensuring Directors receive accurate, timely 
and clear information. He is also responsible for 
agreeing and regularly reviewing the training 
and development needs of each Director which 
he does with the assistance of the Company 
Secretary for governance related matters and the 
CEO for industry-specific knowledge and insights. 
The Chairman’s role involves but is not limited to 
the following: 

	◆ To ensure that the Board plays an effective 
role in setting up the Company’s corporate 
strategy and business direction.

	◆ To promote and oversee the highest 
standards of corporate governance within the 
Board and the Company. 

	◆ To ensure integrity, credibility, trustworthiness 
and active participation of Board members in 
key matters of the Company.

	◆ To ensure that the Board only directs the 
Company and does not manage it. 

	◆ To ensure that relevant, accurate and up 
to date Company information is received 
from the management and shared with the 
Board members to enable them to monitor 
performance, make sound decisions and give 
appropriate advice to promote the success of 
the Company. 

	◆ To review the Board performance and to 
take the lead in identifying and meeting the 
development needs of individual directors 
and to address the development needs of the 
Board as a whole with a view to enhance its 
overall effectiveness as a team. 

	◆ To manage and solve conflict (if any) amongst 
the Board members and to also ensure 
freedom of opinion in the Board. 

	◆ To promote highest moral, ethical and 
professional values and good governance 
throughout the Company.

	◆ To ensure that a formal and effective 
mechanism is in place for an annual 
evaluation of the Board’s own performance, 
members of the Board and of its committees.

Chairman’s Significant Commitments 

AGP’s Chairman Mr. Tariq Moinuddin Khan is 
the chairman of OBS group and its subsidiary 
Companies. He also serves as the Honorary 
General Consul of Netherlands, Karachi and 
Secretary General of World Federation of Consuls, 
Brussels for Pakistan Chapter.

Role of CEO

The CEO holds the overall responsibility for 
the implementation of the strategy agreed 
by the Board, the operational management 
of the Company and the business enterprises 
connected with it. She is well supported in the 
task by the members of senior management 
which heads their respective departments. The 
CEO reports to the Board of Directors and her 
responsibilities mainly include: 
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	◆ Formulating, and after Board approval, 
successfully implementing Company policies. 

	◆ Directing strategy towards the profitable 
growth and operations of the Company. 

	◆ Developing strategic operating plans that 
reflect the longer-term objectives and 
priorities established by the Board. 

	◆ Maintaining an ongoing dialogue with the 
Chairman of the Board to keep him fully 
informed of all significant developments. 

	◆ Putting in place adequate operational 
planning and financial control systems. 

	◆ Ensuring that operating objectives and 
required standards of performance are 
understood by all Company employees. 

	◆ Monitoring of operating and financial results 
against budget. 

	◆ Taking remedial action where necessary and 
informing the Board of significant changes. 

	◆ Ensuring that the Company is in compliance 
with all applicable laws and regulations. 

	◆ Building and maintaining an effective 
executive team and appropriate succession 
plans.

Evaluation of the performance of the 
Chief Executive 

The CEO, being part of the Board, attends every 
meeting of the Board. The CEO provides an 
overview of the Company’s performance to the 
Board and addresses any specific questions by 
the Board members. The performance of the CEO 
is assessed through the evaluation system set by 
the Company which is based on both qualitative 
and quantitative objectives. These objectives 
include financial performance, processes 
improvement, business excellence, compliance, 
sustainability and people management.

Diversity Policy

AGP has a diverse and balanced Board which 
not only represents the shareholders but also 
provides a mix of professional expertise in 
leadership, finance, legal, corporate law and 
business management skills and experiences 
covering adequately all areas of AGP’s business 
undertakings. Furthermore, in compliance with 

requirements of Code of Corporate Governance, 
a female director is also present on the Board 
of Directors. To encourage representation of 
minority shareholders, the Company facilitated 
the minority members, as a class, to contest 
election of directors for which purpose, the 
Company fully complies with the relevant 
regulation. 

The Board has given categorical instructions 
to sustain a diverse workforce and an inclusive 
environment that respects and shows care for 
all its people, irrespective of any sort of bias, and 
helps improve business performance. Alleviation 
of gender discrimination is instilled in the human 
capital strategy. 

Whistleblowing Policy 

AGP does not tolerate any unlawful and unethical 
activity and vows to take appropriate action to 
ensure compliance with law and safeguarding 
the interest of all stakeholders.

The Whistle Blowing Policy formalizes the 
company’s commitment to enabling its 
employees, shareholders and business 
associates to make fair and prompt disclosure of 
circumstances where it is genuinely believed that 
the company’s business is being carried out in an 
inappropriate manner or in violation of applicable 
laws, or the Company’s policies, procedures 
and ethical values. The whistleblowing unit, 
comprising of senior officials, is entrusted with 
duty to deal with the concerns or issues. Along 
with internal means, the stakeholders may also 
raise their concerns using e-mail and regular 
mail at the designated addresses mentioned on 
the official website of the Company. The policy is 
designed to:

	◆ Support company’s values in line with 
its commitment to the highest possible 
standards of ethical, moral and legal business 
conduct and its strong pledge to open and 
candid communication. 

	◆ Ensure that all stakeholders can raise 
concerns without fear of retribution and with 
full confidence that their identities will not be 
revealed. 

	◆ Provide a swift and confidential process 
for rectifying misconduct wherever and 
whenever it occurs in the Company.

During the year 2020, six complaints were 
received and were disposed after formal 
investigation by the whistleblowing unit. One of 
the complaint was serious in nature, employee 
involved in physical abuse was terminated and 
blacklisted. All other complaints were minor 
events requiring management’s attention only. 
Appropriate actions were taken for avoidance of 
such incidents in future. The CEO presented a 
whistleblowing status report of these complaints 
to the Audit Committee, clearly disclosing 
how such matters were dealt with and finally 
concluded.

IT Governance

AGP has aligned itself to efficient use of 
Information Technology resources in achieving 
its strategic and operational objectives while 
increasing shareholders’ value.

To ensure value creation through benefits 
realization and resource optimization, the 
Company has IT framework which governs the 
following aspects;

	◆ Alignment of IT objectives with overall 
corporate strategy;

	◆ Maximize return on technology investment 
by assuring that all the activities planned are 
delivered as per agreed achievable targets;

	◆ Ensure provision of a coherent and integrated 
IT architecture and management structure;

	◆ Encourage proactive innovation and 
automation in all business functions;

	◆ Assist in the decision-making process by 
providing reliable information and reports;

	◆ Ensure the necessary protection of IT assets 
through optimization of IT Risk Management; 

	◆ Comply with legal and regulatory 
requirements, internal controls and 
monitoring, and related policies and 
procedures; 

	◆ Ensure the satisfaction of end users 
expectations with respect to IT services; and

	◆ Employ comprehensive sourcing procedures 
to manage third parties / vendors 
relationships

Policy for Records Safety

The Company considered information as one 
of the most valued business asset and placed 
great emphasis for storage and safe custody of its 
financial and non-financial records. The Company 
uses the SAP system for recording its financial 
information. The access to electronic information 
has been limited and secured through 
implementation of a comprehensive password 
protected authorization matrix. The Company’s 
physical record have been stored in efficient, 
secure and easy to retrieve manner. The records 
have been kept at secure places with adequate 
measures in place.

The Company believes and practices that the 
information should be accessed on a need-
to-know basis. For this purpose, the Company 
has put in place a mechanism to define 
required access control measures to Company’s 
information, applications and system resources 
in a controlled environment to protect the 
privacy, security and confidentiality of Company 
information technology resources.

Investors’ Relations Policy

We have earned the trust of our investors and 
are fully committed to sustain it. Thus, to set 
guidelines for handling and addressing Investors’ 
and Shareholders’ grievances effectively and 
ensuring Investors’/Shareholders’ satisfaction, an 
Investor Grievance Policy has been formulated 
and strictly followed. The objective of this Policy 
is to enable effective communication and foster 
healthy relationships with shareholders / investors 
and resolve their concerns on a timely basis. The 
Company has internally established a mechanism 
for investor services and grievances handling. 
Main principles of the Investors Grievance Policy 
are as follows: 

	◆ All the investors are treated fairly and equally 
at all times

	◆ Complaints raised by investors are dealt with 
courtesy, fairness and in a timely manner 

	◆ The Management works in good faith and 
without prejudice towards the interests of any 
of the investors
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Investors’ Contacts Section on Our 
Website

Detailed information of the Company regarding 
financial highlights, investor information, share 
pattern/value and other requisite information 
specified under the relevant regulations, has 
been placed on the corporate website of the 
Company, which is updated on regular basis. 

In order to promote investor relations and 
facilitate access to the Company for grievance / 
other query registration, an ‘Investors’ Contacts’ 
section has been introduced on Company’s 
website www.agp.com.pk, besides the link to 
‘SECP’s Service Desk Management System’. 
The contact details of persons designated for 
assistance and handling investor related queries / 
grievances are also placed under this section.

Human Resource Management Policy

AGP has high standards of Human Resource 
Management practices to attract, induct, develop, 
retain and motivate high caliber talent who 
are qualified, capable and willing to contribute 
their best towards accomplishment of Company 
objectives.

The Company’s HR policy has been developed 
encompassing the following principles:

Equal Opportunity
The Company shall provide equal opportunity 
to all job applicants through clearly defined and 
consistently applied induction standards. In 
addition, a work environment shall be provided 
where every employee has an equal opportunity 
for optimum career growth and development.  

Recruitment and Selection
The hiring process of the Company is transparent 
and fair. The hiring process is followed 
consistently to select the right candidate as per 
the job requirement.

Training and Development
Appropriately planned activities are designed 
to help employees become more effective at 
their work by improving, updating or refining 
their experience, knowledge and skills through, 

formal training, education programs or on the job 
development that meets employee and Company 
objectives.

Performance Management
A transparent, objective oriented and merit based 
Performance Management System is followed, 
that supports and conserves a culture of learning, 
innovation, leadership and accountability. 

Compensation and Benefits
Compensation commensurate with the industry, 
particularly pharmaceutical sector and marked to 
market allowances and benefits are provided to 
attract and retain talent in the Company.

Diversity and Inclusion
Work environment free from all forms of 
discrimination and biases is provided where all 
individuals are treated fairly and respectfully, 
have equal access to opportunities and resources 
so that they may contribute fully to the success 
of the organization. Female participation in the 
workforce is encouraged.

Succession Planning
A key organizational priority for the HR 
department is to ensure structured career 
progression for all employees. To facilitate 
employees in steering their careers and realizing 
their full potential, a succession planning policy 
has been formally documented. 

Related Party Transaction Policy
The Company has a policy governing procedures 
for related party transactions and to ensure that 
all such transactions are reviewed, considered, 
approved and reported in accordance with the 
international accounting standards, applicable 
laws and regulations. The policy ensures that:

	◆ All transactions with related parties arising in 
the normal course of business are carried out 
in an unbiased, arm’s length basis at normal 
commercial terms and conditions

	◆ All transactions with related parties are 
referred to the Board Audit Committee for 
review and for onward recommendation to 
the Board of Directors for review and approval

	◆ The Company maintains the record of 
Related party transactions, prescribed in the 
Companies Act, 2017 and the Companies 
(Related Party Transactions and Maintenance 
of Related Records) Regulations, 2018

	◆ In the event, majority of Directors of AGP 
are interested in transactions with related 
parties, such transactions are referred to 
the shareholders in a general meeting for 
approval. However, during the year no related 
party transaction required shareholders’ 
approval

Related Party Transactions During the 
year 

The Company entered into Related party 
transactions during the year. Details of these 
transactions are disclosed in note 34 to financial 
statements attached therein.

Environmental, Social and Governance 
Policy

The Company believes in promoting sustainability 
in business strategies related to Environment, 
Social and Governance including Health, Safety 
and Environment (HSE) aspects and provides a 
roadmap to the stakeholders to conduct business 
in a fair, transparent and responsible manner. 

This policy ensures that business is conducted in 
a manner, which pro-actively ensures the safety 
of all employees, assets, interest of community 
and preservation of environment. It also serves 
as a guide to strategic plans and systematic 
management of Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) initiatives and activities.

Committees of the Board

The Board of Directors of the Company oversees 
the operations and affairs of the Company in 
an effective and efficient manner and for the 
aforesaid purpose, the Board has constituted 
three committees. These committees act as 
advisory bodies to the Board, keeping the Board 
updated about key developments and changes in 
the operating environment. 

The Board comprises of two independent 
directors who are not involved in the Company’s 

management nor are connected with any 
business or other relationships that could 
interfere materially with, or appear to affect, their 
judgement. 

Audit Committee

The terms of reference of Audit Committee have 
been explicitly documented and approved by the 
Board of Directors. The salient features of terms of 
reference of the Audit Committee are: 

	◆ Determination of appropriate measures to 
safeguard the Company’s assets 

	◆ Review of annual and interim financial 
statements of the Company, prior to their 
approval by the Board

	◆ Review of preliminary announcements of 
results prior to external communication and 
publication

	◆ Facilitating the external audit and discussion 
with external auditors of major observations 
arising from interim and final audits 

	◆ Review of management letter issued by 
external auditors and management’s 
response thereto 

	◆ Ensuring coordination between the internal 
and external auditors of the Company 

	◆ Review of the scope and extent of internal 
audit, audit plan, reporting framework and 
procedures and ensuring that the internal 
audit function has adequate resources

	◆ Consideration of major findings of internal 
investigations of activities characterized by 
fraud, corruption and abuse of power and 
management’s response thereto 

	◆ Ascertaining that the internal control systems, 
accounting systems and the reporting 
structure are adequate and effective 

	◆ Review of the Company’s statement on 
internal control systems prior to endorsement 
by the Board and internal audit reports

	◆ Instituting special projects, value for money 
studies or other investigations on any matter 
specified by the Board, in consultation with 
the CEO

	◆ Determination of compliance with relevant 
statutory requirements 

	◆ Monitoring compliance with Code of 
Corporate Governance
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	◆  Review of arrangement for staff and 
management to report to the Audit 
Committee in confidence, concerns, if any, 
about actual or potential improprieties 
and recommend instituting remedial and 
mitigating measures 

	◆ Recommend to the Board the appointment of 
external auditors, their removal and audit fees 

	◆ Consideration of any other issue or matter as 
may be assigned by the BOD 

Human Resource and Remuneration 
Committee

The terms of reference of the Human Resource 
and Remuneration Committee are determined 
by the Board. The salient features of terms 
of reference of the Human Resource and 
Remuneration Committee are: 

	◆ Recommend to the Board for consideration 
and approval a policy framework for 
determining remuneration of Directors and 
members of senior management

	◆ Undertaking annually a formal process of 
evaluation of performance of the Board as a 
whole and its committees either directly or by 
engaging external independent consultant

	◆ Recommending human resource 
management policies to the Board

	◆ Recommending to the Board the selection, 
evaluation, development, compensation 
(including retirement benefits) of CEO, Chief 
Operating Officer (COO), Chief Financial 
Officer, Company Secretary and Head of 
Internal Audit

	◆ Consideration and approval on 
recommendations of CEO on such matters 
for key management positions who report 
directly to CEO or COO

	◆ Where human resource and remuneration 
consultants are appointed, they shall disclose 
to the committee their credentials and as to 
whether they have any other connection with 
the company 

Strategy Committee

The terms of reference of the Strategy Committee 
are determined by the Board. The salient features 
of terms of reference of the Strategy Committee 

are:

	◆ Review and make recommendations to 
the Board regarding potential projects and 
new avenues for diversified investment of 
Company’s capital and financial resources 
providing attractive returns;

	◆ Review and provide guidance to the Board 
about proposed mergers, acquisitions, 
divestitures and similar transactions; &

	◆ May engage legal counsels or other 
consultants on terms and conditions that 
deems reasonably appropriate (including fees) 
to carry out its duties and responsibilities. The 
task of engaging appropriate experts may 
also be delegated to the senior management.

List of Companies in which Executive 
Director is acting as a Non-Executive 
Director

The Company only has one Executive Director 
of the Board which is CEO of the Company. The 
CEO of the Company, Ms. Nusrat Munshi holds 
Non-Executive Directorship on the Board of the 
following companies: 

	◆ OBS Healthcare (Pvt.) Limited 

	◆ Aspin Pharma (Pvt.) Limited

	◆ OBS Green (Pvt.) Limited

Board Meetings held outside Pakistan

No Board meeting was held outside Pakistan 
during the year 2020, in order to economize on 
the resources of the Company.

Meetings of the Board

As prescribed by the law, Board is required to 
meet at least once per quarter to monitor the 
Company’s performance and for effective and 
timely accountability of its Management. 

The Board held six meetings during the year. The 
notices and relevant materials, including agendas 
of the meetings were circulated in advance, in 
a timely manner. Decisions made by the Board 
during the meetings were clearly stated in the 
minutes of the meetings maintained by the 
Company Secretary, and were duly circulated 
to all the directors for endorsement and were 
approved in the subsequent Board meetings. 

All meetings of the Board during the year 
had attendance more than requisite quorum 
prescribed by the Code of Corporate Governance 
and were also attended by the Chief Financial 
Officer and the Company Secretary or in their 
absence, the nominee appointed by the Board 
except such part of the meetings wherein agenda 
item relates to consideration of their performance 
or terms and conditions of their service.

Board’s Roles and Decision Making

The powers of the Board of Directors and the 
management of the Company have been defined 
with special reference to, and in compliance with, 
the Companies Act 2017, the Code of Corporate 
Governance and the Articles of Association of the 
Company.

The core function of the Board is to act as 
stewards on behalf of the shareholders in 
governance of the Company. At AGP, the Board 
performs its duties by giving strategic directions 
to the management, setting performance targets 
and monitoring their achievements. Matters 
requiring a resolution by the Board of Directors 
in accordance with laws and regulations and 
important matters concerning management are 
resolved by the Board of Directors. The Board at 
AGP also oversees the business of the Company 
in light of emerging risks and opportunities on a 
regular basis.

Functions delegated to the 
Management

The management headed by the CEO is 
responsible for the business execution in an 
effective and ethical manner in conformity with 
the strategies approved by the Board, including 
annual targets of sales, costs and profitability. 

It is also responsible for identifying new areas 
of investment for the Company, managing 
the principal risks which could affect the 
achievement of Company’s objectives 
and compliance with legal and regulatory 
requirements. 

Policy of Retention of Board Fee by the 
Executive Director in Other Companies

The Executive Director of the Company is not 
remunerated with the Board fee against her 
services as Non-Executive Director in other 
companies. 

Security Clearance of Foreign Directors 

AGP does not has a foreign director on its Board. 
In case a foreign director is elected on the Board 
in future, security clearance will be duly made 
from the Ministry of Interior.

Directors’ Training Program 

Since the Board has duly complied with the 
Directors’ training program requirements and the 
criteria as prescribed in the regulations, therefore 
the Board has not arranged the training program 
during the year. Further, only one member of the 
Board is yet to obtain the requisite certification 
which will ensure the accreditation of the entire 
Board.

Trading in Shares by Directors and 
Executives

During the year, 13,500 shares of AGP was traded 
by an executive of the Company. No other trading 
was conducted by the directors, executives and 
their spouses and minor children.

Shares held by Sponsors / Directors / 
Executives 

During the year, the Sponsors’, Directors and 
Executives and their spouses held the following 
number of shares as of December 31, 2020.

A detailed pattern of shareholding is disclosed on 
pages 206 to 209 of the Annual Report.

Particulars Number of Shares

Sponsors 148,950,434

Directors & their spouse(s) 36,004

Executives & their spouse(s) 1,375
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Encouragement of Minority 
Shareholders to attend the General 
Meetings

The Company encourages all its shareholders 
to attend the general meetings. It circulates 
the notice of general meetings well within 
regulatory timeframe. Moreover, advertisement 
is published in English and Urdu newspapers, 
having nationwide circulation. The Company 
also updates its website with respect to notices 
of general meetings. We also ensure that the 
Annual Report, containing the agenda and 
notice of general meeting, is dispatched to every 
shareholder at her/his registered address within 
the stipulated time and uploaded on the website 
of the company.

Queries raised at last Annual General 
Meeting 

No significant issues were raised during the 6th 
Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company 
held on May 5, 2020. Queries raised during the 
last AGM of the Company pertained to the 
Company’s published financial statements, which 
were responded by present Board members, the 
CEO and Company Secretary and resolved to the 
satisfaction of the shareholders.

Presence of the Chairperson Audit 
Committee at the AGM 

Chairman of the Audit committee – Mr. Zafar 
Iqbal Sobani was present at the last AGM to an-
swer any questions on the Committee’s activities 
and matters within the scope of the Committee’s 
responsibilities.

Formal Orientation Program

When a new member is taken on Board it is 
ensured that he/she is provided with a detailed 
orientation of the Company, covering the 
following objectives: 

	◆ The Company’s vision and strategies

	◆ Company’s core competencies, investments, 
diversification ventures, etc. 

	◆ Organizational / group structure, associations 

and other related parties 

	◆ Summary of the Company’s major assets, 
liabilities, noteworthy contracts and major 
competitors

	◆ Major risks both external and internal, 
including legal and regulatory risks and 
constraints 

	◆ Critical performance indicators 

	◆ Summary of major members, stakeholders, 
suppliers and auditors

	◆ Role and responsibility of the Director as 
per the Companies Act, including Code 
of Corporate Governance and any other 
regulatory laws applicable in Pakistan 

	◆ AGP’s expectations from the Board, in terms 
of output, professional behavior, values and 
ethics

	◆ Major policies of the Company

Apart from a formal orientation program, 
Directors are encouraged to attend trainings, 
which help them reassess their role in 
the Company’s progress and hone their 
competencies for the betterment of the Company 
in line with Code of Corporate Governance.

Connection of External Search Consul-
tancy for Appointment of Chairman or 
Independent Directors 

The Company has effectively maintained the 
structure of its Board of Directors with the 
composition of a chairman, two independent 
directors and 4 non-executive directors. During 
the year, there was no change in the Board’s 
members and hence, the need for an external 
search consultancy for the appointment of 
chairman or independent directors did not arise.

Covid-19 Strategic Response

The Company’s strategic response to Covid-19 
with detailed explanation has been appropriately 
outlined on the pages 52 & 53 of the Annual 
Report.
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Stakeholders’
Relationships and Engagement

The Company places great emphasis on the development of sustained stakeholder relationships. It has 
developed various mechanisms that enable the Board and management to understand and consider 
stakeholder views and cater to their needs and interests. 

Stakeholders’ Engagement Process

AGP regularly engages and effectively communicates with its stakeholders. The table sets out our key 
stakeholder groups, some of the ways in which we engage with them and how these relationships are 
likely to affect the performance and value of the entity.
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Steps taken by the Board to engage 
with Shareholders

The AGP’s Board is cognizant of the potential 
impact of its decisions on stakeholders. In the 
performance of its duty to promote the success 
of the Company, the Board gives regard to a 
number of factors, including listening to and 
considering the views of shareholders and 
other key stakeholders. The Board’s interaction 
with the Company’s main stakeholder group – 
shareholders is set out below in more detail.

Participation at General Meetings

The Company engages with shareholders 
in several ways. This includes regular 
communications, the General Meetings and 
other investor relations activities. It announces 
results on a quarterly basis and annual results are 
included in the annual report. The management 
encourages maximum participation of 
shareholders including minority shareholders to 
attend general meetings. In addition to the legal 
requirements of dispatching and newspaper 
publication of the notice of general meetings, the 
shareholders can also view a notification through 
“Latest News” on the official website of the 
Company, which advises them that the annual 
report and notice of the general meetings are 
available.

The CEO and management maintain a 
continued and active dialogue with institutional 
shareholders on performance of the Company 
through regular meetings. The Company 
Secretary acts a focal point for handling investor 
grievances and queries raised through email, 
website or telephone. The Company Secretary 
also acts as a focal point for managing key 
relationships with the Company’s registrar. For 
facilitation of stakeholders and shareholders, 
the “Investors’ Relations” section is also present 
on the corporate website of the Company, 
containing useful information from investors’ 
perspective.

Last Annual General Meeting

The last Annual General Meeting had a 
considerable level of attendance, of more 
than 81%, and interactive engagement by 
shareholders. All the proposed resolutions were 
duly approved by shareholders. The Annual 
General Meeting held by the Company, provided 
an opportunity to put questions to the Board 
during the formal proceedings, while providing 
shareholders the chance to meet informally with 
the Board Directors and senior management.

Corporate Briefing Session

In the last quarter of the year, the CEO, Ms Nusrat 
Munshi, gave a presentation to shareholders and 
analysts. In this event, the CEO presented the 
highlights of financial results strictly ensuring 
accuracy and completeness of information, 
for the benefit of the audience. The session 
concluded with a Question & Answer session and 
the questions were responded to the statisfaction 
of the attendees.

Statement of Value 
Added and Distributed

EMPLOYEES AS
REMUNERATION
AND BENEFITS

2020:  1,309

2019:   1,068

GOVERNMENT AS
TAXES & DUTIES

2020:  300

2019:   446

STATUTORY LEVIES
2020:  150

2019:   144

PROVIDERS OF
LONG TERM FINANCE

2020:  466

2019:   686

SHAREHOLDERS
AS DIVIDEND

2020:  840

2019:   350

REINVESTED
2020:  381

2019:   433

RETAINED WITH ENTITY
2020:  747

2019:   1,096 4,193

Wealth Generated

Wealth Distributed
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Directors’
Report
The Board of Directors of AGP Limited is pleased to present the Annual Report along with the 
audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020.

Principal Activity 

The Company is primarily engaged in 
manufacturing, marketing and sales of 
pharmaceuticals and healthcare products in the 
domestic and export market. During the year, 
Company’s state of the art nutraceutical facility 
also commenced operations which will enable 
it to aggressively launch new products in the 
market.

Market Overview 

The pharmaceutical industry in Pakistan recorded 
a sales value in excess of PKR 500 Billion as per 
MAT Q4`2020 Industry Report issued by IQVIA 
Solutions Pakistan Pvt. Ltd., pharma research 
company. During the year under review, retail 
pharma business witnessed a growth of 10.1% 
over the last year primarily due to a high demand 
of COVID-management medicines and one 
time CPI based price increase allowed by Drug 
Regulatory Authority of Pakistan (DRAP).

Financial Results

The financial results of the Company in compari-
son to last year are as follows:

Particulars Unit Dec-
20

Dec-
19

Increase 
%

Net Revenue

P
K

R
 in

 
M

ill
io

n 6,946 6,253 11.1%

Gross Profit 3,861 3,659 5.5%

Profit After Tax 1,587 1,446 9.8%

Earnings Per Share PKR 5.67 5.17 9.8%

AGP continued its double-digit sales growth 
trajectory, an achievement amidst the 
unprecedented challenges posed by global 
Covid-19 pandemic. The topline grew to PKR 
6,946 Million i.e. 11.1% higher than last year. 
Despite a challenging environment, AGP’s sales 

performance displayed great resilience through 
continued production and ensured availability of 
its product portfolio in the market. 

The strong performance in sales was backed 
by an increase of 9% in the domestic retail 
portfolio and a robust growth of more than 
41% in Afghanistan sales. The Company’s top 
products continued to deliver stellar performance 
particularly Rigix, Osnate, Ceclor and Anafortan 
Plus. 

The healthy sales growth could not be fully 
translated to gross profit as margins remained 
under pressure due to local currency devaluation 
and a one-off provisioning of Covid-19 antibody 
testing kits as the same became redundant due 
to rapidly evolving testing technology. Despite 
these factors, gross margins of the Company 
remained impressive as compared to the 
industry.

The administrative costs increased by PKR 69 
Million, mainly on account of strengthening 
of workforce in line with expanding business 
operations and implementing preventive 
measures against Covid-19. Marketing and 
selling expenses were contained and grew only 
by 8% due to travel related restrictions. Finance 
costs witnessed a reduction of 33.1% primarily 
due to timely repayment of outstanding Sukuk, 
low interest rate regime and limited utilization 
of running finance facility. Taxation showed a 
decrease of 10.3%, as last year one-time prior year 
charge was booked on account of provision of 
super tax. The impressive results yield earnings 
per share of PKR 5.67, presenting an increase of 
9.8%.

Capital Structure

Total equity at the year-end increased to PKR 
8,210 Million as compared to PKR 7,463 Million last 
year, an increase of 10%. The Company continued 
its settlement of long-term financing on a timely 
basis and made Sukuk repayment of PKR 482 
Million and obtained running musharikah under 
SBP Refinance Scheme amounting to PKR 315 
Million during the year, thus reducing the long 
term financings to PKR 1,041 Million. 

The Company made capital investment of PKR 
381 Million through internally generated funds 
in line with the Company’s future business 
plans for expansion. The key components 
of the expenditure included the balancing, 
modernization and restructuring of existing 
plants to enhance capacities and efficiencies and 
construction of the new office block.

During the year, PACRA maintained AGP’s long 
term credit rating at A+ and short term credit 
rating at A1 respectively. 

Profit Distribution and Reserves 

The revenue reserves – unappropriated profit 
of the Company at beginning of the year stood 
at PKR 4,663 Million. The net profit for the year 
increased the reserves by PKR 1,587 Million. 
On the other hand, final and interim dividend 
payments decreased the reserves by 560 Million 
and PKR 280 Million respectively. The closing 
balance of unappropriated profit was PKR 5,410 
Million, signifying an overall increase of 16%.

Appropriations PKR in Million

Opening unappropriated profit 4,663

Net Profit 1,587

Final dividend at PKR 2 per share (560)

Interim dividend at PKR 1 per share (280)

Closing unappropriated profit 5,410

Dividend 

The Board of Directors of the Company in its 
meeting held on February 26, 2021 is pleased 
to recommend a final cash dividend of PKR 1 
per share i.e. 10% for the year ended 2020, for 
shareholder’s approval at the Annual General 

Meeting to be held on April 26, 2021. This is in 
addition to an interim cash dividend of PKR 1 per 
share i.e. 10% paid to the shareholders during the 
year 2020, bringing the total dividend for the year 
ended 2020 to PKR 2 per share i.e. 20%.

Pattern of Shareholding 

The Company’s shares are listed on the Pakistan 
Stock Exchange Limited. The shareholding 
information as of December 31, 2020 and other 
related information including trade of shares by 
a director, CEO, substantial shareholder and/or 
their spouses and minor children is set out in the 
relevant section of pattern of shareholding in the 
annual report. 

Subsequent Events

Subsequent to the reporting date, the Board, 
in its meeting held on 03 February 2021, has 
authorized the Company to participate with its 
parent company, through a Special Purpose 
Vehicle (SPV), OBS AGP (Private) Limited, for the 
purpose of acquisition of a selected portfolio of 
products which are commercialized in Pakistan 
under the Sandoz brand (“brands”) that are 
owned by Sandoz AG, Switzerland. The Company 
will own majority of the equity of sixty-five 
percent (65%) shareholding in the SPV. The 
acquisition is subject to necessary corporate 
and regulatory approvals and successful closing 
of the transaction with Sandoz AG. The said 
acquisition is likely to increase the market share, 
bring operational and logistical synergies and 
enhance the product portfolio of the Company 
along with increase in the Company’s revenues 
and profitability.

Business Impact on Environment 

At AGP Limited, we pride ourselves as a socially 
responsible corporate entity that places utmost 
importance in the social costs and benefits 
arising from our business decisions. Not only do 
we believe in conducting business operations 
while adhering to environmental regulatory 
standards such as Environment, Health and 
Safety (EHS) standards and Sindh Environmental 
Protection Agency (SEPA), but going an extra
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mile as we make a concerted effort towards 
exercising diligence in creating a positive impact.

 We fully account for the sustainability aspect of 
our decisions while demonstrating high ethical 
values. We focus on minimizing our carbon 
footprint by reducing carbon emissions and 
undertaking projects that help in conservation 
of water and energy. As part of our “Go Green 
Strategy” to develop sustainable sources of 
energy, we made an investment of around PKR 
60 Million in installing solar panels that will cover 
around 12% of our energy needs. Simultaneously, 
we are conducting tree plantation drives in 
various areas of Karachi to ensure a greener 
future. 

Our production practices conform to international 
standards and comply with good manufacturing 
practices (cGMP). Our processes and controls 
are agile and sustainable, ensuring that we do 
not compromise on quality and safety for our 
employees. Similarly, our products pass through 
stringent quality criteria, adequately serving the 
needs of our customers. To help achieve these 
objectives, well designed trainings and courses, 
both internal and external are imparted to 
concerned employees to maintain and further 
improve EHS performance in all operational areas 
of the Company. 

Corporate Social Responsibility

During the year, the implications of Covid-19 
required an urgent and concerted response as it 
imposed grave danger on the general public. As a 
major player in the pharmaceutical market, AGP 
remained fully cognizant of its responsibilities to-
wards joining the community in the fight against 
the pandemic. 

We have undertaken the sponsorship of various 
projects throughout the year pertaining to the 
promotion of wellbeing of the society.

Our approach, while pursuing sustainable 
development goals (SDGs) as adopted by 
Government of Pakistan (GoP), towards 
improving sustainability can be summarized 
through the following table:

SDGs ACTIONS

Goal 2:

Zero   
Hunger

	◆ Several ration drives were 

conducted for distribution of 

food to the underprivileged 

population;

	◆ Joined hands with DoctHERS, 

a digital health platform, to 

improve the overall health 

of underprivileged women, 

particularly pregnant females 

and feeding mothers, by 

enabling provision of easier 

access to the relevant 

healthcare products in our 

portfolio at discounted prices.

Goal 3:

Good Health 
and Well 
Being

	◆ We made several monetary 

donations alongwith 

medicines, PPE equipment, 

antibody testing kits to various 

institutions. We also donated a 

set of anesthesia machine with 

ventilator;

	◆ Arranged screening camps 

for Hepatitis B & C testing and 

served around 2,000 people 

in various institutes all over 

Pakistan; 

	◆ Introduced Dial Clinics, a 

digital platform to provide 

online consultancies wherein 

2,500 plus consultancies were 

conducted from experienced 

Doctors; 

	◆ Launched a series of health 

awareness sessions “Sehat ki 

Baatien” through renowned 

healthcare practitioners and 

more than 30 such sessions 

were held during 2020.

Goal 4:

Quality

Education

	◆ A policy is in place that provides 

educational scholarships for 

Higher Secondary, Graduation 

and Professional / Technical 

to the needy and deserving 

children of factory workers and 

support staff.

Goal 5:

Gender 
Equality

	◆ We have female strength of 

over 10.3% as a total workforce;

	◆ Female led pharmaceutical 

listed company;

	◆ Won GDIB award for the 

2nd consecutive year and 

this year we are awarded in 

three different categories, 

recruitment & developments, 

benefits and social 

responsibility;

	◆ Provide safe, convenient and 

affordable transportation 

facility to our female employees 

of lower management staff.

Goal 6:

Clean 
Water and 
Sanitation

	◆ Effluent water treatment plant 

is in place for proper water 

disposal that complies with 

Sindh Environment Protection 

Agency (SEPA) and approved 

by the competent regulatory 

authority;

	◆ Conserving water by using taps 

with sensors and springs. 

Goal 7:

Affordable 
and Clean 
Energy

	◆ Installation of Solar Power 

System on all 3 manufacturing 

sites that will cover around 12% 

of our energy needs.

Goal 8:

Decent 
Work and 
Economic 
Growth

	◆ Particle Size Analyzer is 

installed which provides more 

intelligence in the existing 

process as well as new product 

development as potential 

problems related to particle 

size can be detected at early 

stage;

	◆ A proper framework is in place 

to ensure that same wages and 

benefits are provided to male 

and female staff doing the 

same level of job with similar 

qualifications.

Goal 10:

Reduced 
inequalities

	◆ Duly adhere to all fiscal policies 

pertaining to labor wages and 

compensation;

	◆ The composition of employees 

contains different ethnic 

groups including minority 

classes;

	◆ The management strictly 

ensure that all workers and 

staff are older than 18 years of 

age and strongly discourages 

child labor.

Risk Management

The Board of AGP believes that governance of 
risk is integral to Company’s strategy and to the 
achievement of our long-term sustainable growth 
targets. The overall risk management framework 
focuses on mitigating potential adverse effects 
of risks and uncertainties being faced by the 
Company.

The management has maintained a sound 
system of risk identification and management. 
This entails identifying, evaluating and addressing 
strategic, financial, operational, reputational and 
legal and compliance risks faced by the Company. 
A summary of the principal risks, together with 
their mitigation plan, is presented to the Audit 
Committee for their review, consideration and 
necessary guidance. The conclusion and results 
are also shared with the Board.

The principal risks currently being faced by 
the Company include increase in cost of doing 
business due to devaluation of the Pakistani 
rupee and domestic inflation. To contain the 
devaluation impact, we have substituted bulk 
of our dollar denominated Chinese imports into 
Chinese Yuan. The smooth and uninterrupted 
supply of necessary Active Pharmaceutical 
Ingredients (APIs) may be threatened due 
to cross border geo-political challenges and 
escalation in COVID-19 pandemic. The Company, 
as part of its strategy, is building adequate raw 
material inventory and also working aggressively 
to develop alternate vendor sources. 
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Composition and Meetings of the 
Board and its Committees

The Board comprises of eminent personnel 
from varied fields with diverse skill set and 
knowledge in the relevant subjects, to provide 
strategic guidance to the Company. Our Board 
composition represents the interests of all 
categories of shareholders.

During 2020, the Company formed a Board 
Strategy Committee for reviewing the Company’s 
investment transactions and performance, and in 
overseeing the Company’s capital and financial 
resources. The meetings of the Board and its 
committees were held as follows for adoption 
of best corporate governance practices by the 
Company and monitoring effectiveness of such 
practices:

Board of Directors (Board) 6

Board Audit Committee (BAC) 4

Human Resource & Remuneration 
Committee (HRC) 3

Board Strategy Committee (BSC) 1

The composition and attendance records the 
meetings of the Board and its committees are as 
follows:

Name Categories Board BAC HRC BSC

Tariq 
Moinuddin 
Khan

Non-Executive 
Director 6/6 - - -

Naved Abid 
Khan

Independent 
Director 6/6 - 3/3 -

Zafar Iqbal 
Sobani

Independent 
Director 6/6 4/4 - -

Kamran 
Nishat

Non-Executive 
Director 6/6 4/4 - 1/1

Nusrat 
Munshi

Executive 
Director 6/6 - 3/3 1/1

Mahmud Yar 
Hiraj

Non-Executive 
Director 5/6 3/4 2/3 1/1

Muhammad 
Kamran 
Mirza

Non-Executive 
Director 6/6 4/4 3/3 1/1

Mr. Tariq Moinuddin Khan chairs the meetings 
of Board and Mr. Naved Abid Khan, Mr. Zafar 
Iqbal Sobani and Mr. Kamran Nishat chair the 
meetings of HRC, BAC and BSC respectively. The 
meetings of the Board and its committees were 

presided over by their respective Chairman. Leave 
of absence was duly granted to Directors who 
could not attend the meetings of the Board and 
its committees.

The Chief Financial Officer and Company 
Secretary attended all meetings of the Board 
except such part of the meetings wherein agenda 
item relates to consideration of their performance 
or terms and conditions of their service. 

The Chief Financial Officer attended meetings 
of BAC at the invitation of the Chairman of Audit 
Committee.

Adequacy of Internal Controls

The Board of Directors has established a system 
of sound internal control, which is effectively 
implemented and maintained at all levels within 
the company. The independent internal audit 
function of the Company is outsourced to a 
reputable professional service firm, A.F.Ferguson 
& Co. (AFF) who are suitably qualified and 
experienced for the purpose. 

The internal audit is conducted as per the internal 
audit plan duly reviewed and approved by the 
Audit Committee. The internal audit plan is driven 
by the Company’s organizational objectives and 
priorities, and the risks that may prevent the 
Company from meeting those objectives. The 
Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of 
the internal control framework whereas AFF 
regularly monitors and provides assurance on 
the effectiveness and adequacy of the internal 
controls and risk management framework

Board Evaluation

The Company has appointed Pakistan Institute 
of Corporate Governance (PICG) to evaluate 
the performance of the Board as a whole, its 
Committees and members of the Board. PICG is 
a not-for-profit company engaged in promoting 
good corporate governance practices in Pakistan. 
Their faculty comprises of professionals from 
diverse experiences and backgrounds. This shows 
the Board’s commitment towards excellence in 
corporate governance. 

Results of these evaluations are then discussed 
in detail in the subsequent Board meeting to 

address the highlighted areas and improve the 
Board’s performance. For the year 2020, the 
Board’s performance and effectiveness has been 
assessed as ‘Satisfactory’.

Directors’ Remuneration

In compliance with the applicable laws and 
regulations and as permitted by Articles of 
Association of the Company, the Board has duly 
approved the remuneration of the members of 
the Board for attending meetings of the Board 
and its committees.

To attract and retain directors to successfully 
govern affairs of the Company and to encourage 
value addition, the levels of remuneration 
is appropriate and commensurate with the 
expertise and responsibility and aligned in line 
with prevailing industry trends and business 
practices. However, the meeting fee shall 
not be at a level that it could be perceived to 
compromise the independence.

Disclosure with respect to remuneration package 
of each of the directors and chief executive 
including but not limited to salary, benefits, 
bonuses, stock options, pension and other 
incentives is as follows:

 
 
 

Chief
Executive

Directors Executives

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

 [------------ Rupees in '000 ------------]

Managerial 
remuneration 15,904 14,458 -   -   211,071 157,896

Bonus 2,171 1,971 -   -   19,547 11,209

Performance 
incentive 38,289 31,902 -   -   2,060 4,604

Reimbur-
sement of 
expenses

403 300 -   -   22,523 13,731

Provident 
fund 1,085 985 -   -   10,788 7,115

Others 1,449 1,316 -   -   14,282 15,452

  59,301 50,932 -   -   280,271 210,007

Number of 
persons 1 1 6 6 52 41

During the year, fee paid to two (2019: two) 
independent directors and four (2019: Nil) non-
executive directors for attending board and other 
meetings amounted to PKR 4.2 Million (2019: PKR 
1.13 Million). During the year, the Company revised 
its policy of meeting fee to Directors, wherein the 
Board approved a meeting fee of Non-Executive 
Directors equivalent to Independent Directors. 

Travelling and boarding expenses of executive 
and non-executive directors borne by the 
Company amounted to PKR 11.5 million (2019: PKR 
9.49 million). Number of non-executive directors 
at year end were four (2019: four).

Directors’ Compliance Statement

The Board is pleased to state that: 

	◆ The financial statements prepared by the 
Company’s management fairly present its 
state of affairs, the result of its operations, 
cash flows and changes in equity;

	◆ Proper books of account of the Company have 
been maintained; 

	◆ There are no significant doubts regarding 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern;

	◆ Appropriate accounting policies have 
been consistently applied in preparation of 
the financial statements and accounting 
estimates are based on reasonable and 
prudent judgment;

	◆ International financial reporting standards, 
as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed 
in preparation of the financial statements 
and any departure there from has been 
adequately disclosed;

	◆ The system of internal control is sound in 
design and has been effectively implemented 
and monitored;

	◆ There has been no material departure from 
the best practices of corporate governance, as 
detailed in the listing regulations;

	◆ Information regarding outstanding taxes 
and levies, as required by listing regulations, 
is disclosed in the notes to the financial 
statements;

	◆ The Board has duly complied with the 
Directors’ training program requirements and 
the criteria as prescribed in the regulations; 

	◆ The key operating and financial data for 
the last five years is set out in the relevant 
sections of the annual report; &

	◆ The management of the Company is 
committed to good corporate governance 
and appropriate steps are taken to comply 
with best practices.
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Provident Fund

The Company provides retirement benefits to its 
employees. This includes a contributory Provident 
Fund for all employees. Value of investments 
of Define Contribution Provident fund based 
on their accounts as at December 31, 2020 was 
PKR 279 Million - audit in progress, whereas at 
December 2019 it was PKR 226 Million – audited.

Auditors

The present auditors, M/s EY Ford Rhodes, 
Chartered Accountants retired, and being eligible, 
have offered themselves for reappointment for 
the new financial year. In concurrence with the 
Audit Committee, the Board has recommended 
the appointment of M/s EY Ford Rhodes 
Chartered Accountants as the statutory auditors 
of the Company, to the shareholders for their 
approval at the forthcoming Annual General 
Meeting.

Future Outlook

AGP continues to strengthen its footsteps in 
Pakistan’s pharmaceutical industry. With a large 
and growing population base, the Pakistani 
pharmaceutical market is poised to grow 
significantly with expectations of increase in 
per capita health spend. The Company made 
significant financial progress during 2020 by 
leveraging on better sales performance and 
production efficiencies. 

The Company remains focused on serving 
its customers, strengthening and building 
stakeholder relationships, expanding and 
diversifying its product offering and exploring 
opportunities for accelerating growth in the 
coming financial year.

In line with AGP’s commitment towards growth 
and excellence, we have participated with our 
parent company Aitkenstuart Pakistan (Private) 
Limited through a Special Purpose Vehicle set 
up by Aitkenstuart for the purpose of acquisition 
of a selected portfolio of products which are 
commercialized in Pakistan under the Sandoz 
brand. Simultaneously, the Company is also 
making tireless efforts in immunization of the 
population against Covid-19 as it has already 

obtained emergency use authorization (EUA) 
for the vaccine “Sputnik-V” developed by the 
Gamaleya National Center of Epidemiology 
and Microbiology, Russia. We are grateful 
and acknowledge the commitment and 
determination of DRAP and Health Ministry of 
Pakistan in granting registration of the Vaccine 
on a fast track basis.

As we look to the year ahead, AGP is committed 
to continue build on our competencies, 
implementing strategies and best governance 
practices to deliver to the expectations of 
stakeholders, contributing to a positive progress 
trajectory through capitalizing on organic and 
inorganic growth opportunities.

Acknowledgment

The Board would like to express its deep 
appreciation to its employees for their continued 
hard work, dedication and resilience in the face 
of adversity. Despite several difficulties, Company 
registered a remarkable performance with the 
undying support of its stakeholders.

The Board would like to place an appreciation 
on record to the Government and State Bank of 
Pakistan for introduction of a set of measures 
such as refinancing policies, reduction of policy 
rate, short-term tax reliefs and subsidies. These 
measures are helping to build fiscal resilience, 
stimulate business recovery and spur economic 
growth.

The Board looks forward to the forthcoming 
Annual General Meeting of the shareholders to 
discuss Company’s performance during the year 
2020, and is thankful for the trust and confidence 
reposed in the Board and the management by 
the shareholders.

Nusrat Munshi
Chief Executive Officer

Muhammad Kamran Mirza

Non - Executive Director
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The members of the Audit Committee are pleased to present their report to the shareholders for 
the year ended December 31, 2020.

Composition of the Audit Committee

The audit committee (Committee) comprises 
of the four (4) members. The Chairman is an 
independent director, who is not the Chairman 
of the Board. The remaining three members are 
non-executive directors. All the members are 
qualified as financially literate professional and 
the Committee as a whole possesses significant 
economic, financial and business acumen.

The Chief Executive Officer (CEO), the Chief 
Financial Officer (CFO) and the Internal Auditors 
are not members of the Committee but attended 
all its meetings during the year at the invitation 
of the Chairman. The Committee has appointed 
company secretary as a secretary of the 
committee.

Meetings of the Audit Committee

The audit committee met once every quarter 
primarily to review and recommend quarterly / 
half yearly and annual financial statements to 
the Board for its considerations and approval. 
The details of all related party transactions were 
placed periodically before the Committee and 
upon satisfaction and recommendations of the 
Committee, the same were placed before the 
Board for review and approval.

The secretary of the Committee, circulates 
minutes of meetings to all members, directors, 
head of internal audit and where required to 
CFO prior to the next meeting of the Board. The 
Chairman provides updates of the significant 
matters discussed in the meeting to the Board.

Financial Statements

The Committee has concluded its annual review 
of the Company’s performance, financial position, 
and cash flows during the year ended December 
31, 2020, and reports that:

	◆ The financial statements of the Company for 
the year ended December 31, 2020 have been 
prepared on a going concern basis under 
requirements of the Companies Act 2017, 
incorporating the requirements of the Code of 
Corporate Governance, International Financial 
Reporting Standards and other applicable 
regulations.

	◆ These financial statements present a true 
and fair view of the Company state of affairs, 
results of operations, profits, cash flows and 
changes in equities of the Company for the 
year ended December 31, 2020. 

	◆ The auditors have issued unmodified audit 
reports in respect of the above financial 
statements in line with the Auditors 
(Reporting Obligations) Regulations, 2018 
issued by SECP. 

	◆ Appropriate accounting policies have been 
consistently applied, which have been 
appropriately disclosed in the financial 
statements. 

	◆ The Chief Executive Officer, one Non-
Executive Director and the Chief Financial 
Officer have endorsed the financial 
statements of the Company, while the 
Directors’ Report is signed by Chief Executive 
Officer and one Non-Executive Director. 
They acknowledge their responsibility for 
true and fair presentation of the Company’s 
financial condition and results, compliance 
with regulations and applicable accounting 
standards and establishment and 
maintenance of internal controls and systems 
of the Company. 

	◆ Accounting estimates are based on 
reasonable and prudent judgment. Proper 
and adequate accounting records have been 
maintained by the Company in accordance 
with the Companies Act, 2017. The financial 
statements comply with the requirements of 

Report of the Audit 
Committee

the Fourth Schedule to the Companies Act, 
2017.

	◆ The Company has issued a “Statement of 
Compliance with the Code of Corporate 
Governance” which has also been reviewed 
and certified by the External Auditors of the 
Company. 

Internal Audit Function

The internal audit function is outsourced to 
a well-reputed professional service firm, M/s 
A.F.Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants (AFF) 
who are suitably qualified and experienced for 
the purpose. The Company has also appointed 
a fulltime employee other than CFO, as Head 
of Internal Audit (HOIA) holding equivalent 
qualification prescribed under the Code of 
Corporate Governance 2019 (Code). The HOIA 
functionally report to the Committee and 
administratively to the CEO and his performance 
appraisal was done jointly by the Chairman of the 
Committee and the CEO.

The Audit Committee has ensured the 
achievement of operational, compliance, risk 
management, financial reporting and control 
objectives, safeguarding of the assets of the 
Company and shareholders’ wealth, through 
assurances provided by internal audit function.

The internal audit is conducted as per the internal 
audit plan duly approved by the Committee. All 
internal audit reports are provided for the review 
of external auditors. The auditors also discussed 
major findings in relation to the reports with the 
Committee, and the Committee reports matters 
of significance to the Board.

Coordination between the External and Internal 
Auditors was facilitated to ensure efficiency 
and contribution to the Company’s objectives 
including a reliable financial reporting system. 
At year-end meeting, the Committee met 
AFF along with HOIA without the presence 
of CEO & CFO. The management supported 
internal audit activities and provided all the 
required information on timely basis. The 
recommendations of the auditors were agreed 
and there was no point of conflict between the 
management and the internal auditors.

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board has implemented the internal 
control system, the independent internal audit 
function of the Company regularly monitors the 
implementation of financial and operational 
controls, whereas the Committee reviews the 
effectiveness of the internal control framework. 
The Committee also reviewed the summary 
of risk assessment registers to ascertain that 
principal business risks are well identified and 
adequate action plans for mitigating risks are 
developed and implemented.

The Company’s approach towards risk 
management has been disclosed in the risk 
assessment portion of the Directors Report. The 
types and detail of risks along with mitigation 
measures are disclosed in relevant section of the 
Annual Report.

External Auditors

The statutory auditors of the Company, M/s 
EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants (EY), 
have completed their assignments of the audit 
of Company’s financial statements and the 
statement of Compliance with the Code for the 
year ended December 31, 2020 and shall retire on 
the conclusion of the 7th Annual General Meeting 
of the Company.

The Chairman met the EY audit team along 
with engagement partner Mr. Arif Nazeer at 
the start of the audit to ensure appropriateness 
of audit planning and sufficiency of resources 
and also discussed the possible impact of new 
IFRSs on the Company’s financial statements 
and other critical matters, if any. The Committee 
reviewed the Management Letter issued by 
external auditors along with Management’s 
response / actions plans. At year-end meeting, 
the Committee met Mr. Arif Nazeer along with 
his senior team members without the presence 
of CEO, CFO and HOIA. The Committee discussed 
the audit process and the observation, if any, 
regarding the audit of the financial statements 
and compliance with the applicable regulations 
or any other issues. 
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The Committee being satisfied with the 
performance of external auditors, has suggested 
their appointment for the year 2021 at the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the 
Company.

The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee believes that it has carried 
out responsibilities to the full, in accordance with 
Terms of Reference approved by the Board, which 
included principally the items mentioned above 
and the actions taken by the Audit Committee 
in respect of each of these responsibilities. 
Evaluation of the Board’s performance, which also 
included members of the Audit Committee was 
carried out separately and is detailed in Annual 
Report.

Conclusion

The Committee has performed its duties and 
discharges its responsibilities in compliance 
with the Code and as per the Terms of Reference 
approved by the Board. The evaluation of 
the Committee was carried out by external 
independent consultant, Pakistan Institute of 
Corporate Governance.

Zafar Iqbal Sobani
Chairman - Board Audit Committee
February 25, 2021

Statement
of Compliance 

with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

AGP LIMITED
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019 in the following manner:

1.	 The total number of Directors are 7 as per the following:

a.  Male 06
b.  Female 01

2.	 The composition of the Board is as follows:

a. Independent Directors 02 Mr.  Naved Abid Khan
Mr.  Zafar Iqbal Sobani

b. Non-executive Directors 04

Mr. Tariq Moinuddin Khan
Mr.  Kamran Nishat
Mr.  Mahmud Yar Hiraj
Mr.  Muhammad  Kamran  Mirza

c. Executive Director (Female Director) 01 Ms. Nusrat Munshi

3.	 The Directors have confirmed that none 
of them is serving as a Director on more 
than seven listed companies, including this 
Company;

4.	 The Company has prepared a code of conduct 
and has ensured that appropriate steps have 
been taken to disseminate it throughout the 
Company along with its supporting policies 
and procedures; 

5.	 The Board has developed a vision/mission 
statement, overall corporate strategy and 
significant policies of the Company. The 
Board has ensured that complete record of 
particulars of the significant policies along 
with their date of approval or updating is 
maintained by the Company; 

6.	 All the powers of the Board have been duly 
exercised and decisions on relevant matters 
have been taken by the Board/ shareholders 
as empowered by the relevant provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and the 
Regulations;

7.	 The meetings of the Board were presided 
over by the Chairman and, in his absence, 

by a Director elected by the Board for this 
purpose. The Board has complied with the 
requirements of Act and the Regulations 
with respect to frequency, recording and 
circulating minutes of meetings of the Board;

8.	 The Board have a formal policy and 
transparent procedures for remuneration of 
Directors in accordance with the Act and the 
Regulations;

9.	 The Board has duly complied with the 
Directors’ Training Program requirements and 
the criteria as prescribed in the Regulations; 

10.	 The Board has approved appointment of 
Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary 
and Head of Internal Audit, including their 
remuneration and terms and conditions of 
employment and complied with relevant 
requirements of the Regulations;

11.	 Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive 
Officer duly endorsed the financial 
statements before approval of the Board;

12.	 The Board has formed following committees 
comprising of members given below: 
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a.	 Audit Committee
Mr. Zafar Iqbal Sobani - Chairman 
(Independent Director)
Mr. Kamran Nishat - (Non-Executive 
Director)
Mr. Mahmud Yar Hiraj - (Non-Executive 
Director)
Mr. Muhammad Kamran Mirza - (Non-
Executive Director)

b.	 Human Resource and Remuneration 
Committee
Mr. Naved Abid Khan - Chairman 
(Independent Director)
Ms. Nusrat Munshi - (Executive Director)
Mr. Mahmud Yar Hiraj - (Non-Executive 
Director)
Mr. Muhammad Kamran Mirza - (Non-
Executive Director)

c.	 Board Strategy Committee
Mr. Kamran Nishat - Chairman (Non-
Executive Director)
Ms. Nusrat Munshi - (Executive Director)
Mr. Mahmud Yar Hiraj - (Non-Executive 
Director)
Mr. Muhammad Kamran Mirza - (Non-
Executive Director)

13.	 The Terms of Reference of the aforesaid 
committees have been formed, documented 
and advised to the committee for compliance;

14.	 The frequency of meetings of the committees 
were as per following: 

a.	 Audit Committee: Four meetings during 
the financial year ended December 31, 
2020.

b.	 HR and Remuneration Committee: Three 
meetings during the financial year ended 
December 31, 2020.

c.	 Board Strategy Committee: One meeting 
during the financial year ended December 
31, 2020.

15.	 The Board has outsourced the internal audit 
function to M/s. A.F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered 
Accountants who are considered suitably 
qualified and experienced for the purpose 
and are conversant with the policies and 
procedures of the Company; 

16.	 The statutory auditors of the Company have 
confirmed that they have been given a 
satisfactory rating under the Quality Control 

Review program of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and registered 
with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that 
they and all their partners are in compliance 
with International Federation of Accountants 
(IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted 
by the ICAP and that they and the partners 
of the firm involved in the audit are not 
close relative (spouse, parent, dependent 
and non-dependent children) of the Chief 
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, 
Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary or 
Directors of the Company; 

17.	 The statutory auditors or the persons 
associated with them have not been 
appointed to provide other services except in 
accordance with the Act, these Regulations 
or any other regulatory requirement and 
the auditors have confirmed that they have 
observed IFAC guidelines in this regard; and

18.	 We confirm that all other requirements of 
regulations 3 (Number of Directorship), 6 
(Independent Director), 7 (Female Director), 
8 (Executive Director), 27 (Audit Committee), 
32 (Terms of appointment of external auditor), 
33 (Rotation of auditors) and 36 (Compliance 
Statement and Auditor Review) of the 
Regulations have been complied with.

Tariq Moinuddin Khan
Chairman of the Board

Nusrat Munshi
Chief Executive Officer
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Strategic
Outlook
Forward Looking Statement 

AGP will continue to strive for sustainable growth 
utilizing Company’s own resources and focusing 
on inorganic opportunities. The Company plans 
to capitalize on its existing product pipeline, 
penetrating deeper into the domestic markets, 
marking the presence in international markets 
and strengthening our portfolio by introducing 
new products. Based on these measures, the 
Company has set a target higher than current 
years’ growth for both revenue and profitability.

The Company is also actively pursuing inorganic 
growth opportunity in hand and subject to 
necessary regulatory approvals, the acquisition 
of a selected portfolio of products which 
are commercialized in Pakistan under the 
Sandoz brand. This acquisition is likely to bring 
operational efficiencies, logistical synergies and 
enhance the product portfolio of the Company.

The Company is looking forward to a prosperous 
future for its employees, shareholders, partners, 
and customers, all of which we consider as our 
greatest assets.

Uncertainties that could affect 
entity’s resources, revenues and 
operations

Company’s response to critical challenges

1.	 Potential implications of Covid-19 AGP fully realized the vulnerabilities associated with the global outbreak of 
Covid-19 pandemic and geared itself to respond accordingly. Appropriate 
remedial actions are planned and are put in place to mitigate adverse impacts of 
the pandemic. 

	◆ Unavailability of raw materials 
and other inputs

The Supply Chain department is constantly monitoring raw material inventory, 
particularly for our top brands and building inventory where needed to avoid any 
potential stock out position. 

We have developed alternate vendor sources where possible and required, to 
mitigate supply chain disruption emphasizing particularly on the supplies being 
sourced from India due to political instability between the two countries. 

The management will maintain the inventory coverage keeping Covid-19 
implications in close considerations.

	◆ Loss of production due to  
absenteeism of human  resources 

The Production department is managing the continuous production of our 
healthcare products by following Covid-19 protocols and SOPs. 

In times of need, labor mobility was ensured through provision of conveyance 
facilities with proper SOPs. 

As and when necessary, extra workers shifts will be promulgated to ensure that 
social distancing is maintained on the production floors.

	◆ Disruptions in distribution 
network for supplies of 
healthcare products

The Company has adopted a thorough and highly adaptable strategy to make 
sure that the supplies of its medicines is available in the market all the time.

Close monitoring of the market dynamics and needs and robust distribution 
planning will ensure that general public have access to essential medicines. 

2.	 Increase in cost of doing business due 
to devaluation of the Pakistani rupee 
and domestic inflation 

To contain the devaluation impact, we have substituted bulk of our dollar 
denominated Chinese imports into Chinese Yuan. 

The Company is actively pursuing geographical diversification and is in search 
for feasible international markets to penetrate. This will help the Company in 
acquiring valuable foreign currency, hedging the risks of PKR devaluation. 

The Company looks forward for favorable Government policies and measures to 
facilitate business environment, and Drug Regulatory Authority Pakistan (DRAP) 
in particular to support the pharmaceutical industry. The annual CPI linked 
price increase will continue to mitigate the impact of devaluation and monetary 
tightening to some extent.

3.	 PESTEL factors We keep a stringent eye on the external environment to remain mindful of 
the potential opportunities and possible uncertainties. The detailed PESTEL 
analysis, describing a framework of macro-environmental factors used in 
the environmental scanning, is mentioned on page 22 and 23 in Company’s 
overview section.

Performance Analysis and Progress 
Made over Last Year’s Statement 

Driven by its relentless commitment to provide 
affordable and reliable health care solutions, AGP 
has continued its journey towards operational 
and financial excellence with pride and passion. 
Accordingly, the Company achieved double 
digit growth of 11.1% in revenue. Impressive 
topline performance together with focus 
on cost effectiveness has translated in to an 
increase of 9.8% in profitability. In line with the 
Company’s aim to establish its presence across 
borders, Afghanistan sales have experienced a 
robust growth as it penetrated further in the 
Afghanistan pharmaceutical market. To support 
sales growth and enhance the product portfolio, 
the Company introduced 4 products. The new 
launches include Zapol, our sanitizer prepared 
as per WHO formula and Test Kits to detect the 
presence of Covid-19 antibodies within 15 minutes. 
In our dedication to expand our horizons and 
open new avenues, nutraceutical plant, that was 
acquired last year, commenced operations in the 
last quarter of the year.

Sources of Information and 
Assumptions Used

A holistic view of past trends, prevailing 
market conditions and future expectations are 
embedded in the framework for development 
of business forecasts and projections. 
Comprehensive information from critical 
functions of the Company, including but not 
limited to Marketing and Sales, Production and 
Operations, Quality Management & Finance along 
with external industry and market analysis is used 
for the planning. External factors that are relevant 
and appropriate in the circumstances, such as 
macro and micro economic indicators, market 
trends, availability of active pharmaceutical 
ingredients, data from regulatory authorities and 
research companies and competitors’ actions etc. 
are also taken into account when devising future 
plans. 

These forecasts are adopted as budget after 
approval by the Board of Directors. Periodic 
reviews of performance against the budget is 
done to ensure adequate monitoring and control. 
Corrective actions including amendment of 
budget and reallocation of resources are initiated, 
if required. New ventures have to pass through an 
extensive due diligence process encompassing 
the technical, financial and regulatory feasibility 
studies with an involvement of core management 
team and external experts, if and when required.
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2020
In Numbers
Financial KPIs Non-Financial KPIs
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS Unit 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Profitability Ratios
Gross profit to sales %    55.6  58.5       56.5   60.8    58.5 
Net profit to sales %       22.9      23.1    22.4    26.1   25.8 
EBITDA margin to sales %       32.0     34.9          32.1    36.4 38.9 
Operating leverage ratio Times           0.1      1.6          0.1        0.4          1.5 
Return on equity % 19.3   19.4      19.0     22.4 25.4 
Return on Capital Employed % 17.7      17.3    15.3          16.1       14.2 

Liquidity Ratios
Current ratio Times         1.7         1.6        1.4        1.3    0.9 
Quick / Acid test ratio Times        0.9       0.9     0.8       0.8   0.6 
Cash to Current Liabilities Times        0.25        0.09     0.02      0.02    0.25
Cash flow from operations to Sales Times      0.2        0.2       0.2   0.2     0.2 

Investment / Market Ratios
Earnings per share (EPS) and diluted EPS PKR         5.7      5.2    4.3  4.4 3.9 
Price Earnings ratio Times       20.1      19.2   20.3 N/A N/A
Price to Book ratio Times         3.9          3.7      3.8 N/A N/A
Dividend Yield ratio %       1.8         3.3        1.4 N/A N/A
Dividend Payout ratio % 35.3  62.9         29 N/A N/A
Dividend per share PKR      2.0     3.3    1.3 N/A N/A
Market value per share
  - at the year end PKR   113.9 99.4 87.4 N/A N/A
  - high during the year PKR 126.9  99.7 107.2 N/A N/A
  - low during the year PKR 73.0   51.5 68.4 N/A N/A
Breakup value per share PKR  29.3 26.7   22.7   19.7 15.3 

Capital Structure Ratios
Financial leverage ratio Times           0.1         0.2       0.3    0.4   0.8 
Weighted average cost of debt % 12.3 14.0 8.8 10.6 22.0
Debt to Equity ratio (as per book value) Times           0.1    0.2       0.3    0.4     0.8 
Debt to Equity ratio (as per market value) Times 0.03 0.04 0.07 N/A N/A
Interest Cover ratio Times      13.7    9.0        8.1       5.8       4.2 

Activity / Turnover Ratios
Total Assets turnover ratio Times     0.7         0.7      0.6      0.6            0.5 
Fixed assets turnover ratio Times       0.9            0.8  3.0           3.0         3.0 
No. of Days in Inventory Days         130          127      114           117           98 
No. of Days in Receivables Days            32          29        32        31         27 
No. of Days in Creditors Days        100       106           114         143           113 
Operating Cycle Days            63              51           33           4         12 

Financial
Ratios

Profitability Ratios

Despite economic headwinds due to Covid-19 

pandemic, the Company is able to register a double 

digit growth of 11.1% in the revenue. However, 

the resilient growth in topline could not be fully 

translated as the gross profit margin experienced 

a decrease to 55.6% from 58.5%, owing to the one-

off provisioning of Covid-19 antibody test kits as the 

same became redundant due to rapidly evolving 

technology and devaluation of Pakistani rupee. 

However, the Company is able to maintain its net 

profit margin as the marketing and travel related 

costs were contained due to Covid-19 restrictions. 

Further, finance cost has been reduced due to 

decrease in policy rate as announced by State Bank 

of Pakistan whereas taxation expense has reduced 

as there was no super tax provision in the current 

year as compared to the last year. The return on 

capital employed increased by around 41 bps as the 

Company timely settled its liabilities, indicating an 

increase in the efficiency of its employed resources. 

Liquidity Ratios 

The Current ratio rose to 1.7 times, attaining its peak 

in the last five years. This indicates that the Company 

is constantly improving its ability to meet its short 

term obligations, an excess of around 70% in the form 

of current assets. Due to the improvement in early 

settlement of liabilities, quick ratio increased to 0.9 

times which is higher than the last five years. 

Investment / Market Ratios 

The Company’s share traded on Pakistan Stock 

Exchange between the range of PKR 73.0 to PKR 

126.9, with year-end share price closing at PKR 113.9 

against PKR 99.4 in 2019. The earnings per share 

improved to PKR 5.67 per share as compared to PKR 

5.17 per share as a result of better sales performance 

and financial and operational efficiencies. 

The dividend policy of the Company maintained 

a strategic balance between retaining equity for 

profitable ventures and paying out dividend to its 

shareholders. Contributing with this objective for 

growth and development and yielding sufficient 

operational gains for our shareholders, the 

Company’s Board of Directors have approved a total 

dividend of PKR 2.0 per share. 

Capital Structure Ratios 

Debt to Equity Ratio improved to 0.1 from 0.2 last 

year, owing to timely repayment of long term debt. 

The interest cover ratio has increased to a five-year 

high of 13.7 times, demonstrating improvement 

in the Company’s ability to settle its financial 

obligations as financial cost has decreased resulting 

in increase in net profits. 

Activity / Turnover Ratios 

The total assets turnover ratio has continued its 

trajectory of a steady increase which shows that 

the Company’s ability to generate sales from its 

assets has improved. This has been backed by an 

increase in the fixed assets turnover ratio. Despite the 

challenges caused by Covid-19, the Company ensured 

continuity in production and operation, including 

higher buffer stock levels. Hence, the operating 

cycle was recorded at 63 days as the number of 

days in inventory increased by 3, number of days 

in receivable increased by 3 and number of days in 

payable decreased by 6. 

Methods and Assumptions Used in 
Compiling the Key Performance
Indicators

The Company has set financial and non-financial 

indicators to track progress against strategic 

objectives. Sales are monitored regularly and 

future lines of actions are decided accordingly. The 

Company analyses a number of internal and external 

factors including availability and quality of in-house 

resources, economic indicators, geopolitical situation, 

competitors’ positioning and general market trends 

while compiling KPIs. These indicators have been 

compiled through methodologies widely used 

in the industry and are reviewed regularly by the 

Management Team and on quarterly basis by the 

Board to take appropriate corrective actions when 

and where necessary. 

Ratio Analysis
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DuPont
Analysis

Dupont Analysis 2020 2019

Tax burden 82% 79%

Interest burden 93% 89%

EBIT margin 30% 33%

Asset turnover (times) 0.7x 0.7x

Leverage 13% 16%

Return on equity 19% 19%

19%
Return on

Equity

16%
Return on

Asset

81%
Equity
Ratio

23%
NP Margin

0.7
Asset

Turnover
(Times)

8,210
Equity

10,191
Total

Assets

1,587
Net Profit

6,946
Revenue

10,191
Total

Assets

1,980
Total 

Liabities

8,210
Equity

6,946
Revenue

5,359
Total cost

7,615
Non-Current

Assets

2,575
Current
Assets

472
Non-Current

Liabiities

1,508
Current

Liabilities

PKR in Million

Free
Cash Flows

Economic
Value Added

2020 2019 2018

---------PKR in Million---------
NOPAT 2,192 2,002 1,546

Cost of Capital (1,054) (1,262) (1,084)

Economic value added 1,138 740 462
 

The topline recorded at PKR 6,946 Million, a growth of 11.1% over the last year, on the back of strong 

performance of the domestic retail portfolio supported by the robust growth in sales to Afghanistan. 

Despite an increase in the administrative costs owing to the preventative measures against Covid-19, the 

marketing costs were contained due to travel related restrictions, finance costs reduced due to a reduction in 

the policy rate by State Bank of Pakistan, and taxation expenses reduced as there was no super tax provision 

in the current year. Resultantly, the bottom-line increased to PKR 1,587 Million, a growth of 9.8% over the last 

year, reflecting a net profit margin of 23%. 

Total assets of the Company witnessed an increase of 6.1%, driven mainly by capital investment for 

nutraceutical facility and balancing, modernization and restructuring of existing plants to enhance capacities 

and efficiencies. The stock in trade was maintained at an optimum inventory levels. This resulted in an asset 

turnover of 0.7 times and in turn, return on assets of 16%. 

The Company continued its settlement of long term financing on a timely basis and hence, the total liabilities 

reduced by 7.4%. On the other hand, owner’s equity increased by 10% to PKR 8.2 Billion, improving the equity 

ratio to 81% from 78% last year. As a result of these factors, the Company recorded a return on equity of 19%. 

Economic value added (EVA) is a measure of a company’s financial performance based on the residual wealth 

calculated by deducting its cost of capital from its operating profit, adjusted for taxes on cash basis (NOPAT).

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

---------------------- PKR in Million ----------------------

Profit before taxation   1,927   1,825    1,426    1,333    1,168 

Adjustment of non-cash items      432     494      382        450      537

Changes in working capital       (292)      (119)     (322)     (132)        43 

  2,067   2,200   1,486    1,652   1,748

Less: Capital Expenditures    (381)    (433)     (337)    (194)    (125)

Free cash flows    1,687    1,767     1,149   1,458   1,622
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Vertical
Analysis

(PKR in Million)
---- 2020 ---- ---- 2019 ---- ---- 2018 ---- ---- 2017 ---- ---- 2016 ----

PKR % PKR % PKR % PKR % PKR % 

Statement of Financial Position 

Assets

Non-current Assets
Property, plant & equipment 2,203 21.6 1,977 20.6 1,685 18.8 1,479 17.3 1,393 16.4 
Intangible assets 5,398 53.0 5,395 56.2 5,398 60.2 5,385 63.2 5,402 63.5 
Long-term loans, deposits & 
receivables 14 0.1 14 0.1 12 0.1 11 0.1 9 0.1 

7,615 74.7 7,385 76.9 7,095 79.2 6,875 80.6 6,804 79.9 
Current Assets
Stores, spares and loose tools 7 0.1 7 0.1 7 0.1 7 0.1 7 0.1 
Stock-in-trade 1,184 11.6 1,013 10.6 797 8.9 670 7.9 513 6.0 
Trade debts 705 6.9 523 5.4 483 5.4 467 5.5 345 4.1 
Loans and advances 30 0.3 34 0.4 67 0.7 48 0.6 58 0.7 
Trade deposits, prepayments 
and other receivables 31 0.3 88 0.9 5 0.1 7 0.1 4 0.0 

Taxation – net 248 2.4 435 4.5 483 5.4 423 5.0 280 3.3 
Cash and bank balances 370 3.6 117 1.2 24 0.3 30 0.4 502 5.9 

2,575 25.3 2,216 23.1 1,868 20.8 1,652 19.4 1,709 20.1

Total Assets 10,191 100.0 9,602 100.0 8,963 100.0 8,527 100.0 8,513 100.0 

Equity & Liabilities

Equity
Share Capital 2,800 27.5 2,800 29.2 2,800 31.2 2,800 32.8 2,800 32.9 
Revenue reserve 5,410 53.1 4,663 48.6 3,568 39.8 2,711 31.8 1,477 17.4 

8,210 80.6 7,463 77.7 6,368 71.0 5,511 64.6 4,277 50.2 
Non-Current Liabilities
Long-term financing 400 3.9 717 7.5 1,192 13.3 1,673 19.6 2,231 26.2 
Deferred grant 8 0.1 -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   
Gas infrastructure 
development cess 8 0.1 -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

Deferred Taxation 56 0.6 71 0.7 59 0.7 41 0.5 26 0.3 
472 4.6 788 8.2 1,251 14.0 1,714 20.1 2,257 26.5 

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 837 8.2 846 8.8 660 7.4 801 9.4 692 8.1 
Unclaimed dividend 2 0.0 1 0.0 31 0.3 -   -   -   -   
Accrued interest 4 0.0 13 0.1 18 0.2 11 0.1 127 1.5 
Short-term borrowings           -   -   -   -   145 1.6 -   -   22 0.3 
Current maturity of long-term 
financing        665 6.5 491 5.1 490 5.5 490 5.7 1,138 13.4 

1,508 14.8 1,351 14.1 1,344 15.0 1,302 15.3 1,979 23.2 

Total Equity & Liabilities 10,191 100.0 9,602 100.0 8,963 100.0 8,527 100.0 8,513 100.0 

Statement of profit or loss

Net sales 6,946 100.0 6,253 100.0 5,382 100.0 4,725 100.0 4,206 100.0 
Cost of sales 3,086 44.4 2,594 41.5 2,341 43.5 1,851 39.2 1,746 41.5
Gross profit 3,861 55.6 3,659 58.5 3,041 56.5 2,874 60.8 2,460 58.5 

Administrative expenses 227 3.3 158 2.5 127 2.4 134 2.8 109 2.6 
Marekting & selling exenses 1,404 20.2 1,294 20.7 1,153 21.4 1,050 22.2 763 18.1 
Other expenses 183 2.6 167 2.7 152 2.8 100 2.1 102 2.4 
Other income 32 0.5 11 0.2 17 0.3 20 0.4 42 1.0 
Finance cost 152 2.2 227 3.6 200 3.7 277 5.9 361 8.6 

Profit before tax 1,927 27.7 1,825 29.2 1,426 26.5 1,333 28.2 1,168 27.8 
Taxation 339 4.9 378 6.1 220 4.1 100 2.1 81 1.9 
Profit after tax 1,587 22.9 1,446 23.1 1,206 22.4 1,234 26.1 1,087 25.8 

Graphical Presentation of
Vertical Analysis
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Horizontal
Analysis

(PKR in Million)

2020
PKR

20vs19
%

2019
 PKR 

19vs18
%

2018
PKR

18vs17
%

2017
PKR

17vs16
%

2016
PKR

Statement of Financial Position 

Assets

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment  2,203          11.5         1,977          17.3     1,685         14.0         1,479           6.1     1,393 

Intangible assets      5,398         0.1    5,395   (0.06)    5,398       0.2         
5,385       (0.3)     5,402 

Long-term loans, deposits and 
receivables            14         6.1             14           13.3              12            9.9            11 26.6           9 

      7,615    3.1        7,385     4.1       7,095             3.2  6,875            1.0       6,804 
Current Assets
Stores, spares and loose tools              7             5.3             7          (9.0)          7         10.9               7    3.1      7 
Stock-in-trade     1,184     16.9      1,013          27.1     797        19.0       670        30.6         513 
Trade debts          705      35.0       523         8.1         483        3.6        467     35.1    345 
Loans and advances        30         (11.4)           34     (49.4)         67          38.8             48 (17.5)          58 
Trade deposits, prepayments and other 
receivables             31 (64.6)             88  1,512.4          5   (23.7)          7       100.6             4 

Taxation – net   248 (43.1)          435      (10.1)      483         14.2      423         51.1    280 
Cash and bank balances         370      215.6           117        379.7     24      (19.4)      30       (94.0)     502 

   2,575        16.2         2,216  18.6   1,868     13.1       1,652          (3.3) 1,709 

Total Assets 10,191       6.1   9,602  7.1  8,963      5.1 8,527           0.2      8,513 

Equity & Liabilities

Equity
Share Capital     2,800          -   2,800               -   2,800               -   2,800           -   2,800 
Revenue reserve       5,410          16.0        4,663          30.7        3,568        31.6         2,711          83.5        1,477 

     8,210           10.0        7,463           17.2       6,368         15.6         5,511          28.9     4,277 

Non-Current liabilities
Long-term financing        400       (44.3)            717       (39.8)         1,192       (28.8)         1,673       (25.0)        2,231 
Deferred grant              8     100.0      -              -             -           -      -        -       -   
Gas infrastructure development cess              8       100.0         -         -      -         -   -   -    -   
Deferred Taxation         56       (20.8)        71          20.2            59          43.7              41          57.9         26 

472       (40.1)          788       (37.0)      1,251      (27.0)         1,714        (24.1)       2,257 

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables         837          (1.0)         846         28.0           660        (17.5)          801          15.7           692 
Unclaimed dividend        2       75.5          1 (96.9)          31 100.0  -     -                  -   
Accrued interest          4       (70.8)              13 (26.4)          18          63.6             11       (91.3)         127 
Short-term borrowings             -                 -               -      (100.0)           145     100.0          -     (100.0)           22 
Current maturity of long-term financing        665     35.5  491      0.3          490               -        490   (57.0)     1,138 

 1,508           11.7      1,351        0.5 1,344          3.3   1,302      (34.2) 1,979 

Total Equity & Liabilities 10,191        6.1 9,602            7.1 8,963             5.1 8,527         0.2        8,513 

Statement of profit or loss

Net sales      6,946         11.1       6,253          16.2        5,382           13.9    4,725           12.3 4,206 
Cost of sales      3,086          19.0       2,594         10.8       2,341       26.5        1,851           6.0 1,746 
Gross profit        3,861          5.5       3,659     20.3      3,041         5.8 2,874   16.8    2,460 

Administrative expenses          227         43.6          158          24.1        127         (5.1)       134        23.2     109 
Marekting & selling exenses       1,404            8.5        1,294          12.2         1,153   9.9       1,050        37.6     763 
Other expenses   183   9.7       167    10.2        152        52.1       100  (1.9)  102 
Other income         32   180.4             11     (33.6)          17    (13.0)           20     (53.6)     42 
Finance cost  152         (33.1)        227        13.5           200        (27.8)          277     (23.3)         361 

Profit before tax        1,927   5.6  1,825  28.0  1,426           6.9 1,333         14.2      1,168 
Taxation 339     (10.3)        378      72.1  220        120.9           100           23.1            81 
Profit after tax       1,587            9.8    1,446 20.0 1,206 (2.3)        1,234        13.5 1,087 

Graphical Presentation of
Horizontal Analysis
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Summary of Cash Flow
Statement

2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9 2 0 1 8 2 0 1 7 2 0 1 6

------------------ (PKR in Million) ------------------------------------- (PKR in Million) -------------------

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net profit before taxation     1,927   1,825 1,426 1,333   1,168 

Adjustments for non cash & other items 432 494   382  450 537 

Changes in working capital (292) (119) (322) (132)   43 

Cash generated from operations 2,067 2,200 1,486  1,652 1,748

Finance costs paid (161) (232) (168) (373) (418)

Income tax paid (167) (318) (261) (228) (214)

Statutory charges paid (150) (144) (89) (115) (73)

Net cash flows generated from operating activities 1,590 1,507 967 936 1,043 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Fixed capital expenditure    (381)    (433)    (337)    (194)    (125)

Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets          8           12 14           16 19 

Others 13         5 5 (2)   -   

Net cash flows used in investing activities     (360)      (415)     (318)     (180) (106)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid   (839) (380) (319) -   -   

Long-term financing repaid - net (137)    (474)     (480) (1,206)   (1,116)

Net cashflows used in financing activities (977)     (854)  (799) (1,206)    (1,116)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash & cash equivalents        253        238   (151) (450) (179)

Cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 117    (121) 30 480 659 
Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the year 370        117    (121)   30 480 

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

------------------ (PKR in Million) ------------------

Property, plant & equipment       2,203        1,977        1,685        1,479        1,393 

Intangible assets       5,398     5,395       5,398       5,385     5,402 

Long-term deposits and receivables             14             14             12              11              9 

Non-Current Assets        7,615       7,385       7,095 6,875      6,804 

Current Assets      2,575        2,216       1,868        1,652      1,709 

Total Assets     10,191     9,602     8,963     8,527      8,513 

Share Capital     2,800     2,800      2,800     2,800      2,800 

Revenue Reserve       5,410      4,663       3,568         2,711        1,477 

Total Equity       8,210       7,463      6,368 5,511 4,277 

Non-Current liabilities          472          788         1,251       1,714      2,257 

Current liabilities       1,508         1,351        1,344        1,302        1,979 

Total Liabilities       1,980        2,139       2,595       3,016 4,236 

Total Equity & Liabilities     10,191     9,602     8,963     8,527      8,513 

Summary of Statement 
of Financial Position

Summary of Statement 
of Profit or Loss

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
------------------------- (PKR in Million) -------------------------

Net sales 6,946  6,253     5,382  4,725 4,206 

Gross profit     3,861 3,659    3,041  2,874  2,460 

Operating profit 2,078  2,052 1,626  1,610   1,529 

Profit before tax 1,927    1,825   1,426 1,333    1,168 

Taxation        339      378        219       100           81 

Profit after tax 1,587     1,446    1,207 1,234 1,087 
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Graphical Presentation
of Statement of Financial
Position and Profit or Loss

SUMMARY OF PROFIT OR LOSS
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL POSITION - ASSETS
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL POSITION - EQUITY & LIABILITIES 
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Statement of Cash Flows 
-Direct Method

2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9
----- (Rupees in ‘000) ----- 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from customer - net 6,763,600 6,219,312 

Cash paid to supplier / employees / service providers (4,696,229) (4,018,563)

Finance costs (161,171) (232,161)

Income tax (166,786) (317,595)

Workers' Profit Participation Fund (105,937) (96,046)

Workers' Welfare Fund (24,307) (32,381)

Central Research Fund (19,664) (15,346)

Net cash flows generated from operating activities 1,589,506 1,507,220 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Fixed capital expenditure (380,568) (433,088)

Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets 7,521           
12,465 

Long-term deposits and receivables (825)                   -   

Interest income received 13,745 5,138 

Net cash flows used in investing activities (360,127) (415,485)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid (839,268) (380,087)

Long-term financings repaid - net (137,485) (473,940)

Net cashflows used in financing activities (976,753) (854,027)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 252,626 237,708 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 117,154 (120,554)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 369,780 117,154 
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Five Year
Analysis
Statement of Financial Position 
Analysis

Assets

The overall non-current assets have increased 
by PKR 811 Million over last five years mainly 
because capital expenditures of PKR 1,470 Million 
over 5 years were offset by depreciation and 
disposals. The majority of the capital expenditures 
were incurred for balancing, modernization 
and replacements of plant and machinery to 
enhance and upgrade manufacturing capacities 
and operational efficiencies of the Company. In 
recent years, sizable investments were made 
in developing state of the art nutraceutical 
production capabilities and construction of a new 
office block. The Company has a plan to utilize old 
office building for expansion of manufacturing 
facility area.

A nutraceutical plant was purchased in 2019 
and modernized during 2020 with a total 
capital outlay of PKR 220 Million. The facility has 
commenced operations in the last quarter of the 
year. Further, an office block is being constructed 
with a capital expenditure of PKR 230 Million until 
December 2020. The Company also purchased 
0.5acre land in 2018 for future expansion for PKR 
35 Million.

The current assets have increased by PKR 867 
Million in last 5 years due to investment in 
working capital to manage business operations. 
In line with business volume, stock-in-trade is 
recorded at PKR 1,184 Million, showing an increase 
of more than 2 times over the last 5 years. The 
Company is maintaining optimum level of 
inventory to ensure uninterrupted production 
particularly in view of supply disruptions due to 
Covid-19 pandemic. The Company has maintained 
number of days in receivables at around 32 days 
and have increased by PKR 360 million over the 
last 5 years which is in line with growth in revenue 
of the Company.

Equity and Liabilities

The equity of the Company comprises of 
Shareholder’s equity and revenue reserves. The 
Company’s equity increased to over PKR 8.2 
Billion from PKR 4.3 Billion over the last 5 years 
after adjustments for dividend payments to 
shareholders of PKR 1.54 Billion. There were no 
further changes on the Company’s equity during 
the period; the Company was enlisted on the 
Pakistan Stock Exchange in 2018.

The long term liability has decreased as the 
Company settled its long term debts of PKR 
2,624 Million with internal sources over the last 
5 years. The Company has restructured its long 
term debts from syndicate finance arrangement 
in June 2017 by issuing 5-year Sukuk bonds 
which enabled the Company to avail lower 
financing costs due to floating rate of mark-
up associated with Sukuk certificates. Also the 
principal repayments were reduced significantly 
as the remaining syndicate finance in 2017 was 
converted into Sukuk bonds with 5-year term. 
Further, the Company has availed Refinance 
Scheme for Payment of Wages & Salaries 
introduced by the State Bank of Pakistan to the 
tune of PKR 315 Million.

The current liabilities have reduced by PKR 471 
Million in last 5 years majorly due to reduction 
of current payments of long term liabilities, as 
more fully explained in the preceding paragraph. 
Number of days in creditors have improved and 
increase in trade payables have is in line with the 
growth in business operations.  

Statement of Profit & Loss Analysis

Net Revenue

The revenue of the Company has grown with a 
cumulative average growth rate (CAGR) of 12.0%, 
better than the industry CAGR of 11.5% over the 
last 5 years as per MAT Q4 2020 Industry Report 
issued by IQVIA Solutions Pakistan Pvt Ltd. With 

renewed focus on growth, the company has 
launched 31 new products and line extensions 
during the period which cumulatively added PKR 
900 Million in 2020.

The increase in sales is mainly on the back 
of strong performance of the domestic retail 
portfolio aptly supported by robust growth 
in exports. The Company changed its export 
partner in Afghanistan in 2019 which has yielded 
substantial increase in Afghanistan sales. 

Cost of Sales

The year 2020 was a tough year due to economic 
headwinds posed by the Covid-19 pandemic. 
Adding to the challenges, the Company recorded 
a one-off provisioning of Covid-19 antibody test 
kits as they became redundant due to rapidly 
evolving technology. Significant devaluation 
of local currency, substantial rise in domestic 
inflation and utility rates have caused cost of sales 
to increase considerably over the period. However, 
one-time price adjustment allowed by Drug 
Regulatory Authority of Pakistan (DRAP) along 
with a CPI based price increase in the wake of 
devaluation of Pak Rupee and domestic inflation, 
supported the industry to partially mitigate the 
sharp increase in the cost of doing business. The 
Company has always focused to bring efficiency 
in operations and resultantly Company’s cost 
economization efforts along with business-
friendly measures taken by DRAP has enabled 
the Company to maintain impressive gross 
margins in excess of 55% throughout the period.

Expenditures

The increase in administrative and marketing 
expenses is mainly on account of strengthening 
of human resources required to support growing 
business needs of the Company. Addition 
of nutraceutical plant has also augmented 
expenditures whereas economic benefits 
associated with the business proposition will 
flow to the entity in the short term to medium 
term. Upsurge in domestic inflation and utility 
rates have also led business expenditures to rise. 
Despite these factors, Company’s resilient focus 
on cost containment has enabled the Company 
to contain expenses well within the average 

industry range. 

Finance costs have decreased substantially as 
the principal payment of outstanding loans has 
decreased due to timely payments and reduction 
in policy rates. The tax expense were lower in 2016 
to 2017 as group tax benefits were claimed on 
acquisition related expenses. 

Net Profit

In spite of rising costs of doing business due to 
macroeconomic factors and challenges posed 
by Covid-19 in 2020, the impressive top-line 
performance coupled with efficient cost control 
measures have led the Company to achieve 
double digit CAGR of 10% in net profit over the 5 
years period.  

Cash flow Analysis

Operating Activities

The cash flow from operating activities grew 
with a CAGR of 11.1% in the 5 years period which 
is in line with the CAGR of sales and net profit. 
The finance costs have reduced as the long 
term liabilities are decreasing due to timely 
repayments of loan instalments. 

Due to efficient tax management, the payments 
for income tax have decreased significantly as the 
Company has managed to realize and settle tax 
refunds of earlier years.  

Investing Activities

Capital investments of PKR 1,470 Million were 
made during the last 5 years mainly for balancing, 
modernization and replacement of plant and 
machinery as more fully explained in the opening 
paragraph of assets in the Statement of Financial 
Position Analysis. 

Financing Activities

The Company paid dividends of PKR 3.00, PKR 
1.25 and PKR 1.25 per shares in 2020, 2019 and 
2018 respectively aggregating to PKR 1.54 Billion. 
Net principal repayments of long term liabilities 
cumulating to PKR 3.4 Billion are being made as 
agreed schedules with the financial institutions.
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Share Price
Sensitivity Analysis
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Share Price Movement

Share Price Information

The Company’s shares are listed on the Pakistan 
Stock Exchange (PSX), which represents the 
Country’s capital market. The Company’s share 
price is affected by both internal and external 
factors. The Company’s financial performance 
directly impacts its share price. External factors, 
such as economic and political environment of 
the Country, Government regulations, macro-
economic indicators and stakeholder view 
impact the share price. During the year, AGP’s 
share price remained an attraction for investors 
due to continuous improvement in revenue and 
profitability despite challenging socio economic 
environment. The movement of AGP’s share price 
throughout the year is shown below.

Market Capitalization and Sensitivity 
Analysis

The capital market witnessed a growth of 2.9% 
during the year, recording a market capitalization 
of PKR 8,035 Billion, up from PKR 7,812 Billion 
in the preceding year. KSE-100 index also rose 
to 43,755 points from 40,735 points at the end 
of the year, registering an increase of 7.4% 
compared to the last year. The share price of 
AGP outperformed the market and its market 
capitalization improved to PKR 31.9 Billion from 
PKR 27.8 Billion, an increase of 14.6%, while there 
has been no change in the number of shares 
outstanding of the Company throughout the 
year.

CAPEX
Rationalization
During the year 2020, the Company made capital investment of PKR 381 Million through internally 
generated funds. The funds were maily utilized for nutraceutical facility revamping and improving 
construction of new office block and for (BMR) of plant and machinery.   

The Company plans to incur capital expenditure to complete the new office block in the next year. 
Further investment will be made in BMR to enhance capacities and efficiencies. 

A nutraceutical plant was purchased in 2019 and further modernized during 2020 with a total capital 
outlay of PKR 220 Million which has commenced operations in the last quarter of 2020. Furthermore, an 
office block has been constructed and is in final stages of completion, with a capital expenditure for PKR 
230 Million. The Company also purchased 0.5acre land in 2018 for future expansion for PKR 35 Million.

Statement of Unreserved 
Compliance of International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

The Company’s Financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and 
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, which comprise of:

	◆ International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017; 

	◆ Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. 

Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from IFRS Standards, 
the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Note 4.21 of the financial statements specifies the standards and interpretations which are yet to be 
effective in Pakistan. The Company believes that the impact of these standards and interpretations does 
not have any material impact on the financial statements.

CEO 
Presentation Video
Chief Executive’s presentation video regarding Company’s business overview, performance, strategy and 
outlook of the Company, is available on AGP’s Website and can be accessed through the following web 
link: 

http://agp.com.pk/documentary/
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Quarterly Analysis

 
Net Turnover Gross Profit Operating Profit Profit After Tax

Quarter 1 1,756 972 592 435

Quarter 2 1,417 773 422 320

Quarter 3 1,818 948 522 414

Quarter 4 1,955 1,168 542 418

  6,946 3,861 2,078 1,587

This year was adversely impacted by the global Covid-19 pandemic and yet the Company has managed to post 

impressive financial results in the year as a whole. Despite socio-economic disturbances, the Company was able 

to record double digit growth of 11% and 10% in revenue and net profitability. The second quarter was the most 

affected period for the Company, ignoring which the revenue has registered a growth of 17.5% over same period last 

year. 

The strong performance in sales was backed by an increase of 9% in the domestic retail portfolio and a robust 

growth of more than 41% in Afghanistan sales. However, margins remained under pressure due to local currency 

devaluation and a one-off provisioning of Covid-19 antibody testing kits as the same became redundant due to 

rapidly evolving testing technology. Generally, the expenditures have increased, mainly on account of strengthening 

of workforce in line with expanding business operations and implementing preventive measures against Covid-19 

whereas marketing and selling expenses were contained due to travel related restrictions. Finance costs witnessed 

a reduction primarily due to timely repayment of outstanding Sukuk, low interest rate regime and limited utilization 

of running finance facility. The impressive top-line performance with emphasis on cost containment, yielded an 

earnings per share of PKR 5.67, presenting an increase of 10%. A detailed financial analysis of quarterly performance 

is shown below.
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QUARTER

1
Net revenue for the 
quarter is at PKR 1,756 
Million, which is 9% 
higher than the same 
period last year (SPLY). 

It is the most affected 
quarter because of 
lockdowns and business 
restrictions due to 
Covid-19 pandemic. 
The revenue for the 
period was PKR 1,417 
Million which is 9% 
lower than SPLY.

This quarter witnessed 
an economic 
recovery as there 
was improvement in 
Covid-19 cases and 
hence lock down 
situations.
Accordingly, the 
revenue boosted to 
PKR 1,818 Million, 
representing an 
increase of 30% over 
SPLY. The robust 
increase in Afghanistan 
sales was a major 
contributing factor in 
this growth.

The Company 
continued the growth 
trajectory and earned 
a revenue of PKR 1,955 
Million which is 16% 
higher than SPLY.  
Both domestic 
retail portfolio and 
Afghanistan sales 
showed impressive 
growth in the quarter.

Gross profit was PKR 
972 Million which is 4% 
higher than SPLY and 
translates into a gross 
margin of over 55%.

Gross profit was 
recorded at PKR 773 
Million, which translated 
into a gross margin of 
55% despite the peak of 
pandemic crisis. 

Gross profit was PKR 
948 Million which is 
19% higher than SPLY. 
However, due to a 
one-off provisioning 
of Covid-19 antibody 
testing kits, gross 
margin was recorded 
at 52%.

Gross profit was 
recorded at PKR 1,168 
Million which is 15% 
higher than SPLY and 
translates in to a year 
highest gross margin 
of 60%. The margins 
improved because of 
better sales mix of high 
margin products.

Operating profit was 
PKR 592 Million which 
was 7% higher than 
SPLY.

Operating profit was 
registered at PKR 422 
Million. However, due 
to containment of 
expenses, particularly 
travel related costs, 
operating margin is 
maintained at 30%

Operating profit was 
PKR 522 Million which 
was 13% higher than 
SPLY and translates in 
to an operating margin 
of 29%.

Operating profit was 
recorded at PKR 542 
Million which is 4.4% 
lesser than SPLY. 
With normalization of 
pandemic situation, 
marketing and 
promotional expenses 
have shown an 
increased. Further, the 
expenditures have also 
increased to support 
sales growth.

The Company earned 
a profit after tax (PAT) 
of PKR 435 Million in 
the quarter which is 2% 
higher than SPLY. 
During this quarter, net 
margin is maintained at 
25% with earnings per 
share (EPS) recorded at 
PKR 1.55

The Company earned a 
PAT of PKR 320 Million, 
1% higher than SPLY. 
During this quarter, 
on account of peak 
pandemic situation, 
the net margin for the 
quarter was recorded 
at 23% with EPS of PKR 
1.14.

The Company earned a 
PAT of PKR 414 Million, 
29% higher than SPLY. 
Net margin was 
maintained at 23% with 
the EPS of PKR 1.48.

The Company earned a 
PAT of PKR 418 Million 
which is 9% higher than 
SPLY. 
Net Margin for the 
quarter was recorded at 
21 with EPS of PKR 1.49.

QUARTER

2

QUARTER Net Turnover Gross Profit Operating Profit Profit After Tax

QUARTER

3

QUARTER

4

(PKR in Million)
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Statement of Financial Position
As At 31 December 2020

       

     2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9

  Note --------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

ASSETS      
       
NON-CURRENT ASSETS  

Property, plant and equipment 5 2,203,001 1,976,564 

Intangible assets 6 5,397,875 5,395,055 

Long-term deposits and receivables 7 14,339   13,514 

        7,615,215         7,385,133 

CURRENT ASSETS    

Stores, spares and loose tools                 7,144               6,785 

Stock-in-trade 8         1,184,441         1,013,401 

Trade debts 9         705,290           522,535 

Loans and advances 10            30,016            33,863 

Trade deposits, prepayments and other receivables 11              31,157 87,940 

Taxation – net          247,623 434,809 

Cash and bank balances 12          369,780           117,154 

          2,575,451 2,216,487 
     
TOTAL ASSETS       10,190,666     9,601,620 

     

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    

     

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES    
     

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital    

Share capital 13     2,800,000 2,800,000 

Revenue reserve - unappropriated profits        5,410,326 4,662,899 

          8,210,326 7,462,899 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES    

       

Long-term financings 14          399,732          717,065 

Deferred grant 15              7,906                      -   

Gas infrastructure development cess 16              8,383                      -   

Deferred tax liabilities - net 17            56,201 70,920 

             472,222 787,985 
     
CURRENT LIABILITIES    

Trade and other payables 18         837,209 845,557 

Unclaimed dividends                 1,701                969 

Accrued interest                3,870              13,249 

Current maturity of non-current liabilities 20          665,338 490,961 

           1,508,118       1,350,736 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 21  

     

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES       10,190,666      9,601,620 
   
The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

________________________ ___________________________  ________________________ 
Chief Financial Officer  Chief Executive Officer Director

Statement of Profit or Loss
For The Year Ended 31 December 2020

  2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9

Note -------(Rupees in ‘000)-------

Revenue from contracts with customers - net 22 6,946,355    6,253,239 

 

Cost of sales 23 (3,085,723) (2,594,117)

   

Gross profit    3,860,632         3,659,122 

 

Administrative expenses 24 (226,693) (157,872)

Marketing and selling expenses 25 (1,403,883) (1,293,946)

Other expenses 26 (183,172)     (166,927)

Other income 27 31,588              11,264 

Finance costs 28 (151,792)   (226,858)

(1,933,952) (1,834,339)

   

Profit before taxation 1,926,680        1,824,783 

 

Taxation 29 (339,253)   (378,395)

   

Net profit for the year      1,587,427      1,446,388 

 

 

Earnings per share - basic and diluted 13.2 Rs. 5.67 Rs. 5.17

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

   

________________________ ___________________________  ________________________ 
Chief Financial Officer  Chief Executive Officer Director
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For The Year Ended 31 December 2020 

     

  2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9

  -------(Rupees in ‘000)-------

   
Net profit for the year 1,587,427 1,446,388

Other comprehensive income, net of tax - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,587,427 1,446,388

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Statement of Changes In Equity
For The Year Ended 31 December 2020
 

 Share Capital

 Revenue
reserve - 

Unappropriated 
profits

  Total  
 

    ------------------ Rupees in ' 000------------------  

       

Balance as at 31 December 2018 - Restated       2,800,000            3,566,511          6,366,511 

Profit for the year                            -            1,446,388          1,446,388 

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax                            -                           -                             -   

Total comprehensive income for the year                            -               1,446,388           1,446,388 

Interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019

@ Rs. 1.25 per share                            -            (350,000)           (350,000)

Balance as at  31 December 2019       2,800,000         4,662,899       7,462,899 

Profit for the year -            1,587,427        1,587,427 

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax -                           -   -

Total comprehensive income for the year -            1,587,427       1,587,427 

     

Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019      

@ Rs. 2 per share -             (560,000)       (560,000)

     

Interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020

@ Re. 1 per share -           (280,000)       (280,000)

     

Balance as at  31 December 2020      2,800,000       5,410,326         8,210,326 

       

       

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.    

       

________________________ ___________________________  ________________________ 
Chief Financial Officer  Chief Executive Officer Director

________________________ ___________________________  ________________________ 
Chief Financial Officer  Chief Executive Officer Director
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Statement of Cash Flows 
For The Year Ended 31 December 2020

2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9

Note -------(Rupees in ‘000)-------

    CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations 32 2,067,371 2,200,428 

Payments for:  

Finance costs    (161,171)    (232,161)

Income tax      (166,786) (317,597)

Workers' Profit Participation Fund (105,937)          (96,046)

Workers' Welfare Fund    (24,307)      (32,381)

Central Research Fund  (19,664)     (15,346)

   Net cash flows generated from operating activities 1,589,506 1,506,897 

   CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  

Fixed capital expenditure (380,568) (433,088)

Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets 7,521 12,465 

Long-term deposits and receivables         (825)    (1,590)

Interest income received 13,745  7,051 

Net cash flows used in investing activities (360,127) (415,162)

     CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid (839,268) (380,087)

Long-term financings repaid - net (137,485) (473,940)

Net cashflows used in financing activities (976,753) (854,027)

   Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 252,626 237,708 

   Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 117,154 (120,554)

   Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 33 369,780 117,154 

No non-cash item is included in investing and financing activities

 

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 Notes to The Financial Statements
 For The Year Ended 31 December 2020 

1.	 THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

1.1	  AGP Limited (the Company) was incorporated as a public limited company in May 2014 under the repealed Companies            

                  Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017). The Company got listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on 05 March 

                  2018. The registered office of the Company is situated at B-23C, S.I.T.E., Karachi. The principal activities of the Company 

                       include import, marketing, export, dealership, distribution, wholesale and manufacturing of all kinds of pharmaceutical 

                  products.

1.2	 As of reporting date, Aitkenstuart Pakistan (Private) Limited (parent company) holds 52.98% (2019: 52.98%) of the 

                share capital of the Company and West End 16 Pte Limited, Singapore is the ultimate parent company.

1.3  	 Geographical location and addressess of major business units of the Company are as under:

                Location					                    Purpose						   

         B-23C, S.I.T.E. Karachi				    Head Office and Production Plant					   

	 D-109, S.I.T.E. Karachi				    Production Plant						   

	 F/46, S.I.T.E. Superhighway Phase II, Karachi	                  Production plant	

2.	 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as 

applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise of International 

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), issued by International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial 

Accounting Standards (IFASs) issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), as notified under 

Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and, provisions of and directives issued under the Act. Where the provisions of and 

directives issued under the Act differ from the IFRSs, the provisions of and directives issued under the Act have been 

followed.

3.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION	

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, unless otherwise specifically 

stated.

4.	 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1	 Standards, amendments, interpretations and improvements adopted during the year

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with those of the 

previous financial year, except as described below:

New / amended standards and interpretations 

IFRS 3 - Definition of a Business (Amendments)

IFRS 9 / IAS 39 / IFRS 7 - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments)

IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts

IFRS 16 - COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions (Agreements) 

IAS 1 / IAS 8 - Definition of Material (Amendments)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

The adoption of above standards, amendments, interpretations and improvement to standards did not have any 

material effect on these financial statements of the Company.	 						    

									       

________________________ ___________________________  ________________________ 
Chief Financial Officer  Chief Executive Officer Director
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 Notes to The Financial Statements
 For The Year Ended 31 December 2020 

4.2         Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires the use of 

certain critical accounting estimates and assumptions. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the 

process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. Estimates, assumptions and judgements are continually 

evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are 

believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in 

which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. Significant accounting estimates and judgments are 

disclosed in relevant notes to these financial statements and summarised below.

 a)            Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets having indefinite useful lives (Refer notes 4.4 and 4.8)

The Company assesses annually at year end and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may 

be impaired. Impairment for goodwill and intangible having indefinite useful lives is determined by assessing 

the recoverable amount using Level 1 of fair value hierarchy of cash generating unit (i.e. at the Company 

level) to which these assets relates. When the recoverable amount of CGU is less than its carrying amount, an 

impairment loss is recognised.

 b)            Allowances for expected credit losses (Refer note 4.7.1)

The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on the Company’s historical credit loss 

experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. 

However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or 

external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in 

full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. The Company will calibrate the 

matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. The amount of ECLs is 

sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Company’s historical credit 

loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual 

default in the future. At each reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes 

in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. Any change might affect the carrying value and amount of 

expected credit loss charge to profit or loss.  

 c)	  Taxes (Refer note 4.11)	

In making the estimates for income taxes, the Company takes into account the current income tax law and 

decisions taken by appellate authorities on certain issues in the past. There may be various matters where 

the Company’s view differs with the view taken by the income tax department at the assessment stage and 

where the Company considers that its view on items of a material nature is in accordance with the law. The 

difference between the potential and actual tax charge, if any, is disclosed as a contingent liability. 

Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax that can be 

recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits, together with future tax 

planning strategies. The management consider tax consequences that would follow from the manner in 

which the entity expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its 

assets and liabilities.

							     

 Notes to The Financial Statements
 For The Year Ended 31 December 2020 

4.3	   Property, plant and equipment

(i)	  Operating fixed assets

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 

losses, if any, except for freehold land, which is stated at cost, if any. 

Depreciation charge is based on the straight-line method whereby the cost of an asset is written off to 

statement of profit or loss over its estimated useful life after taking into account residual value, if material. The 

cost of leasehold land is depreciated in equal installments over the lease period and charged to statement of 

profit or loss. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset is available for use and 

no depreciation is charged in the month of disposal. The rates of depreciation disclosed in note 5.1 to these 

financial statements. When a particular class of asset under property, plant and equipment includes an item 

having different useful life and is required to be replaced at different intervals, the Company depreciates it 

separately based on its specific useful life. 

The residual value, depreciation method and the useful lives of each part of property, plant and equipment 

that is significant in relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted, if 

appropriate. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount, if the asset’s 

carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major 

renewals and improvements are capitalised when it is probable that respective future economic benefits 

will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably and assets so replaced, if any, are 

derecognised or retired.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 

are expected to arise from the continued use of asset. Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the 

statement of profit or loss. 

(ii)	  Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any and consists of costs 

incurred in respect of operating fixed assets in the course of their construction, installation and acquisition. 

Transfers are made to relevant asset category as and when assets are available for intended use.

4.4	   Intangible assets			 

Intangible assets acquired separately (other than goodwill and intangible assets having indefinite useful lives) are 

stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost of intangible assets 

acquired in business combinations is their fair value at the date of acquisition.

Amortisation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Amortisation is recognised in statement of profit or 

loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets. Full month’s amortisation is charged in 

the month of addition when asset is available for use, whereas amortisation on disposals is charged upto the month in 

which the disposal takes place. Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting 

date and adjusted, if appropriate.

Intangible assets (goodwill and intangibles having an indefinite useful lives i.e trademarks) are stated at cost less 

accumulated impairment losses, if any. These are tested for impairment annually at year end and when circumstances 

indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount 

of Cash Generating Unit (CGU) (i.e. the Company as a whole is considered to be a single CGU) to which the assets 

relate. When the recoverable amount of cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss is 

recognised.
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4.5	   Stores, spares and loose tools

Stores, spares and loose tools are stated at the lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value (NRV). Cost 

comprises all costs of purchase, and other costs incurred in bringing the stores, spares and loose tools to their present 

location and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less net 

estimated costs to sell, which is generally equivalent to replacement cost and is also adjusted through systematic 

provision for damaged, obsolete and slow moving items. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value 

plus other charges incurred thereon up to the reporting date.

4.6	   Stock-in-trade	 		

These are valued at the lower of NRV and cost determined as follows:

- Raw and packing material - weighted average cost.

- Work-in-process and finished goods - cost of direct materials and labor plus attributable overheads.   

- Finished goods (manufactured and trading products) - weighted average cost.

- Stock in transit - invoice price plus other charges paid thereon.

Cost of raw material and finished trading goods comprises purchases cost and other incidental charges incurred in 

bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Manufactured finished goods and work-in-progress 

include prime cost and appropriate portion of production overheads based on the normal operating capacity but 

excluding borrowing costs. Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business 

less net estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale and is also adjusted through 

systematic provision for damaged, obsolete and slow moving items. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising 

invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the reporting date.

4.7	   Financial Instruments	

4.7.1	   Financial assets			

  i) 	 Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value 

through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.  

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash 

flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade debts, 

the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair 

value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade debts are measured at the transaction price determined 

under IFRS 15.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it 

needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal 

amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. 

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in 

order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting 

contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

								      

  Notes to The Financial Statements
 For The Year Ended 31 December 2020 

  ii) 	   Subsequent measurement		  		

  For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into following categories:

                   a)             Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

This category is the most relevant to the Company. The Company measures financial assets at    

amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met: 

-             the financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets 

             in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

-             the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

             solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate (EIR) 

method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in Statement of profit or 

loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

                   b)             Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and 

                                   losses (debt instruments) 

The Company measures debt instruments at fair value through OCI if both of the following 

conditions are met:

-	 The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to 

             collect contractual cash flows and selling; and 

-	 The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

             solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and 

impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the Statement of profit or loss and computed 

in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value 

changes are recognised in OCI. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised 

in OCI is recycled to profit or loss.

The Company does not have any debt instruments at fair value through OCI investments during 

the current and last year and as of reporting date.

                   c)             Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and

                                   losses upon derecognition (equity instruments) 

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as 

equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity 

under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is 

determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis. 

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to statement of profit or loss. Dividends 

are recognised as dividend income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has 

been established, except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of 

the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments 

designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment assessment.

The Company does not have any equity investments during the current and last year and as of 

reporting date.
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                     d)           Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading, financial 

assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets 

mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading 

if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.  Financial assets 

with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured 

at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria 

for debt instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI, as described 

above, debt instruments may be designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition 

if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position 

at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of profit or loss. This category 

includes listed equity investments which the Company had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair 

value through OCI. Dividends on listed equity investments are also recognised as dividend income 

in the Statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established.

The Company does not have any listed equity investments during the current and last year and as 

of reporting date.

  iii) 	  Derecognition	 									       

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) 

is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company’s statement of financial position) when:

- 	 the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or		

- 	 the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an

obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a pass-

through arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and 

rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the 

risks and rewards of the asset,  but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into 

a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards 

of ownership. 

When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, 

nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the 

extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. 

The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and 

obligations that the Company has retained. 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured 

at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration 

that the Company could be required to repay.  

          

 Notes to The Financial Statements
 For The Year Ended 31 December 2020 

iv) 	  Impairment

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held 

at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows 

due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted 

at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows 

from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. The 

Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs for its trade debts and receivables. Therefore, the 

Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime 

ECLs at each reporting date. For deposits, other receivables and bank balances that are held with reputational 

banks and other third parties, the Company applies low credit risk simplifications. At each reporting date, 

the Company evaluates whether these assets are considered to have low credit risk using all reasonable and 

supportable information that is available without un-due cost or effort including their credit ratings assessed 

by reputable agencies and therefore assessed to have immaterial impact of allowances for ECL. For trade 

debts and receivables, the Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss 

experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the third parties and the economic environment.

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are past due over 180 days. 

However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or 

external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts 

in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is written 

off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.				  

				  

4.7.2           Financial liabilities		  									       

     i)         Initial recognition and measurement 							     

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, 

loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, 

as appropriate.  

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, 

net of directly attributable transaction costs.

    ii)        Subsequent measurement	 								      

The measurement of financial liablities depends on their classification, as described below:

a) 	  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading 

and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through statement of 

profit or loss. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit 

or loss. Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are 

designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. 
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b) 	  Loans and borrowings	 	

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at 

amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss 

when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost 

is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that 

are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of 

profit or loss.  

iii) 	 Derecognition 	 	 									       

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different 

terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is 

treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the 

respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of profit or loss. 

4.7.3	   Offsetting of financial instruments	 								      

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial position if there is a 

currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to 

realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

  4.8	    Impairment of non-financial assets (including goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful lives)

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets (other than inventories and deferred tax) are reviewed at each reporting 

date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, or when annual 

impairment testing for asset is required then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount 

of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value-in-use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing   

value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 

reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 

In determining the fair value less cost of sell, recent market transaction are taken into account, if no such transaction 

can be identified appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, 

quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other fair value indicators. For the purpose of impairment testing, 

assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash 

inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (“the 

cash-generating unit, or CGU”). 

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable 

amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.  

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually at year end and when the circumstances indicate that the carrying 

value may be impaired. Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each cash 

generating unit (CGU) or group of CGUs to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of CGU is less 

than its carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.

 Notes to The Financial Statements
 For The Year Ended 31 December 2020 

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually at year end either individually or at 

the CGU level, as appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication 

that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the 

Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. 

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to 

determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so 

that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that 

would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior 

years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

Impairment losses relating to goodwill are not reversed in future periods.

  4.9	    Cash and cash equivalents									       

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and current and deposit accounts held with banks, which 

are subject to insignificant risk of change. Short-term finance facilities availed by the Company, which are payable 

on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management are included as part of cash and cash 

equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash flows. 

  4.10	    Borrowing costs	

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred except to the extent of 

borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset. Such 

borrowing costs, if any, are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset.

4.11	    Taxation	 										        

Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items 

recognised in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is 

also recognised in statement of other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

   Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation 

after taking into account the available tax credits and rebates, if any, in accordance with provision of the Income Tax 

Ordinance, 2001. It also includes any adjustment to tax payble in respect of prior years. The charge for current tax 

includes adjustments to charge for prior years, if any. However, for income covered under final tax regime, taxation is 

based on applicable tax rates under such regime.

   Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised using balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying 

amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is 

realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at 

the reporting date. In this regard, the effects on deferred taxation of the portion of income expected to be subject to 

final tax regime is adjusted in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Technical Release – 27 of the Institute 

of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax on goodwill and intangible 

assets having indefinte useful lives are considered on account of tax consequences that would follow from the expected 

manner of recovery of these assets. While deferred tax assets are recognised  for all deductible temporary differences, 

carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits for the 

foreseeable future will be available against which the asset can be utilised. The carrying value of deferred tax assets 

is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit 

will be realised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it is 

probable that future taxable profit will allow deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is charged or credited to statement of profit or loss. However, deferred tax relating to items recognised 

directly in the other comprehensive income is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income or directly in 

equity. 

Deferred tax asset and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current assets 

and liabilities and they relate to the income tax levied by same tax authority. 

4.12	    Government grant

Government grant is recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached 

conditions will be complied with. When the grant related to an expense item, it is recognised in the statement of 

profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are 

expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is  recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful 

life of the related asset.		

The financing facility is recognised and measured in accordance with the accounting policies as disclosed in note 4.7.2 

to these financial statements.		

4.13	    Provisions

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Company has a present (legal or constructive) 

obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle 

the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. The amount recognised as a provision 

reflects the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting 

period. They are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively to reflect current best estimate.	

4.14	   Employee benefits

4.14.1	    Staff provident fund

The Company operates approved contributory provident fund for all its permanent staff. Equal monthly 

contributions are made, both by the Company and the employees, to the fund at the rate of 8.33% of basic 

salary and cost of living allowance.		

4.14.2	   Compensated absences									       

Accrual for compensated absences is made to the extent of value of accrued absences of the employees at 

the reporting date using their current salary levels as per Company’s policy. 
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4.15	    Foreign currency translation 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupee at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the exchange rate ruling at the 

reporting date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in Statement of profit and loss. Non-monetary items that 

are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates 

of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the 

exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

4.16	    Revenue recognition		

4.16.1	    Revenue from contracts with customers

a)	    Sale of goods	 	

The Company is engaged in the manufacturing and selling of pharmaceutical products. Revenue 

from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods is transferred to the 

customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled 

in exchange for those goods. The Company has concluded that it is the principal in its revenue 

arrangements because it typically controls the goods before transferring them to the customer.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is 

transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods. The normal credit term is 30 days 

upon delivery. The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are 

separate performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated 

(e.g., discounts). In determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the Company considers 

the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non cash 

consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

  b)	     Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount 

of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. 

The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly 

probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised 

will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently 

resolved. The contracts for the sale of goods provides certain customers with a right to return 

within a specified period.

    i)	     Right of return

The contracts for sales of goods provides certain customers with a right to return the 

products within a specfied time. The Company uses the expected value method to 

estimate the goods that will be returned because this method best predicts the amount 

of variable consideration to which the Company will not be entitled. The Company 

applies the requirements on constraining estimates of variable consideration in order to 

determine the amount of variable consideration that can be included in the transaction 

price and recognised as revenue. A refund liability is recognised for the goods that are 

expected to be returned (i.e. amount not included in the transaction price). A right of 

return assets (and corresponding adjustment to cost of sales) is also recognised for the 

right to recover the goods from the customer.		
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ii) 	 Discounts

The Company offers discounts to certain distributors, who shall pass the same onwards and 

accordingly accounted for as a reduction from the transaction price. A refund liability is 

recognised for the expected future discounts (i.e. the amount not included in the transaction 

price).		

c)	 Contract balances

i) 	 Contract assets	

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods transferred to the 

customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods to a customer before the customer 

pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned 

consideration that is conditional.		

ii) 	 Trade debts

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is 

unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration 

is due). Refer to Accounting policies of financial assets as disclosed in note 4.7.1 ‘financial 

assets’ to these financial statements.

iii) 	 Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods to a customer for which the Company 

has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If 

a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods to the customer, a 

contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever 

is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under 

the contract.

d)	 Assets and liabilities arising from rights of return 	 		

i) 	 Right of return assets 	 				  

Right of return asset represents the Company’s right to recover the goods expected to 

be returned by customers. The asset is measured at the former carrying amount of the 

inventory, less any expected costs to recover the goods, including any potential decreases 

in the value of the returned goods. The Company updates the measurement of the asset 

recorded for any revisions to its expected level of returns, as well as any additional decreases 

in the value of the returned products.

Returns for the Company comprise of expired products or near expiry products (i.e. within 6 

months of expiry), which are of zero value by the time of return and are subject to disposition 

as per prevailing statutory laws.

ii) 	 Refund liabilities					  

A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or 

receivable) from the customer and is measured at the amount the Company ultimately 

expects it will have to return to the customer. The Company updates its estimates of refund 

liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the end of each 

reporting period. 
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   4.16.2	    Other income

Other income is recorded on accrual basis and interest income is accounted for using the effective interest 

rate (EIR) method.

4.17	    Dividends and other appropirations									       

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which the dividends 

are approved. However, if these are approved after the reporting period but before the financial statement are 

authorised for issue, disclosure is made in these financial statements.

4.18	    Segment reporting											         

The Company as a whole is considered to be a single cash generating unit. Operating segments are reported in a 

manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker. Segment results, 

assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment. Segment capital expenditure is the total cost 

incurred during the year to acquire property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

4.19	    Earning per share											         

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated 

by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number 

of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable 

to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all 

dilutive potential ordinary shares.

4.20	    Functional and presentation currency									       

Items included in these financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment 

in which the Company operates. The financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company’s 

functional and presentation currency.

4.21	    Standards, interpretations, amendments and improvements to approved accounting standards that are not yet    

                   effective

The following standards, amendments, interpretations and improvements with respect to the approved accounting 

standards as applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective 

standard or interpretation or improvement:

Standards
Effective date (annual 

periods beginning on or 
after)

IFRS 3 - Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments) 01 January 2022
IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 - Interest Rate Benchmark 
Reform - Phase 2 (Amendments) 01 January 2021
IFRS 10 - Consolidated financial statements and IAS 28 Investment in Associates and 
Joint Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendment) Not yet finalized
IAS 1 - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current (Amendments) 01 January 2023
IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment : Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments) 01 January 2022
IAS 37 - Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments) 01 January 2022
Improvement to accounting standards issued by the IASB (2018-2020 cycle) 01 January 2022

The above standards and amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the Company’s financial 

statements in the period of initial application.

Further, the following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the 

purpose of applicability in Pakistan.
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Standards

Effective date (annual 
periods beginning on or 

after)

IFRS 17 – Insurance Contracts 01  January 2023

The Company expects that above new standards will not have any impact on the Company's financial statements in 

the period of initial application.

4.22	    COVID-19 impact on the Company’s financial position and performance

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization made an assessment that the outbreak of a coronavirus (COVID-19) 

can be characterized as a pandemic. The outbreak of COVID-19 continues to progress and evolve. Therefore, it was 

challenging, to predict the full extent and duration of its business and economic impact. 

Though, COVID-19 pandemic has caused slowdown of the overall economy and has caused disruptions amongst the 

Company’s supply chain partners, workforce, facilities and operations. The Company however, being covered under 

essential services of providing pharmaceutical products is in better position with less being impacted in terms of 

the financial performance. The Company continues to monitor the rapidly evolving situation closely, including the 

potential impacts on revenue, supply chain continuity, employees and operations. The Company has taken effective 

measures for proactive inventory management to develop alternate and reliable vendor sources and build inventory 

levels to ensure supplies of goods in the short to medium term. 

Further, the Company deployed effective measures to maintain sufficient liquidity and funds which includes 

deferment of expenditures and availing the temporary Refinance Scheme for Payment of Wages and Salaries 

introduced by State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) at subsidized rates to support businesses in the aftermath of COVID-19 

outbreak. Necessary precautions and procedures were also deployed by the Company to address workforce safety, 

promote labour mobility and sustain remote working capability to ensure uninterrupted production and hence 

availability of our medicines for patients.

4.22.1	    Property, plant and equipment	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  

Due to COVID-19 pandemic, we do not foresee any change in usage and / or retention strategy of the Company’s 

assets or any adverse effect as the Company’s operational activities continues without any disruption during the 

period. Therefore, the significant judgements, estimates and the methods of consumption adopted in determining 

recoverable and residual values, depreciation method and useful lives of these assets are the same as those applied 

in preparation of financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019. 

4.22.2	    Intangible assets	  

The carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets having indefinite useful lives has been allocated to AGP Limited, 

(i.e. a single cash generating unit (CGU)), which is also the operating and reportable segment for impairment testing. 

The Company performed its impairment test annually at year end (i.e. 31 December 2019). However, given the current 

situation because of COVID-19, the Company performed its impairment testing as at 31 December 2020 and considers 

the relationship between its market capitalisation, using the Level 1 input of the fair value hierarchy - quoted prices 

of the Company, and its book value, among other factors. As a result of this assessment, the management did not 

identify any impairment for the cash generating unit to which goodwill of Rs. 743.23 million and intangible assets with 

indefinite useful lives of Rs. 4,641.09 million are allocated.

 Notes to The Financial Statements
 For The Year Ended 31 December 2020 

4.22.3	    Allowance for expected credit loss	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  

The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on the Company’s historical credit loss experience. 

The matrix has been adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment 

including the macroeconomic effects resulting from COVID-19 outbreak. Management also considered the impact 

of COVID-19 on the probability of default, exposure at default and loss given default and concluded that there is no 

material impact on these financial statements.

4.22.4	    Revenue from contract with customers	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  

Given the current economic condition and overall domestic and international lockdown due to COVID-19 outbreak, 

the Company budgeted revenue for FY 2020 from ongoing and future contracts with customers was slightly affected 

in the first six months of the year. However, there was significant improvement in the second half of the year in 

domestic sales on uplifting of lock-down and improving economic conditions. Even export sales also improved after 

opening of Pak-Afghan border.

The Company continues the attitude of being cautious and adhering to the strict SOPs including Government 

recommended precautions to keep the work environment safe for the employees and ensure business continuity for 

the Company. As the businesses and the economy have opened up, we remain cautiously optimistic about the future 

growth prospects.

    2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9
Note -------(Rupees in ‘000)-------

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets 5.1   1,858,858 1,846,072 

Capital work-in-progress 5.2 344,143       130,492 

    2,203,001 1,976,564 
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5.1 Operating fixed assets

Land Buildings Plant and 
machinery

Furniture 
and 

fixtures

Motor 
Vehicles

Office 
equipment

Gas and 
electrical 
fittings

Refrigerators 
and air-

conditioners

Laboratory 
equipments

Computers 
and related 
accessories

Total

Freehold Leasehold Factory Office  

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ Rupees in ‘ 000 ---------------------------------------------------------------------

Net carrying value basis
Year ended 31 December 2020

Opening net book value
                 

369,000 
                     

228,819 
                    

398,022 
                              

12,193 
                                                            

385,910 
                                                         

21,793 
                                                     

153,330 
                                                         

22,613 
                                                            

4,346 
                                                            

102,422 
                                                     

129,520 
                                                          

18,104 
                                                        

1,846,072 

*Transfers (note 5.2.1)
                                                                         

-   
                                                                         

-   
                                                         

44,617 
                                                                         

-   
                                                                           

33,134 
                                                            

2,770 
                                                        

25,449 
                                                            

9,572 
                                                             

3,591 
                                                                

10,294 
                                                             

8,891 
                                                         

19,435 
                                                              

157,753 

Disposals (at NBV)

Cost
                                                                         

-   
                                                                         

-   
                                                                         

-   
                                                                         

-   
                                                                         

(7,230)
                                                                 

(26)
                                                      

(11,981)
                                                        

(1,607)
                                                              

(192)
                                                               

(2,781)
                                                                         

-   
                                                    

(12,253)
                                                            

(36,070)

Depreciation
                                                                         

-   
                                                                         

-   
                                                                         

-   
                                                                         

-   
                                                                              

5,092 
                                                                      

26 
                                                            

8,490 
                                                             

1,499 
                                                                   

167 
                                                                   

2,722 
                                                                         

-   
                                                         

12,253 
                                                                 

30,249 

- - - - (2,138) - (3,491) (108) (25) (59) - - (5,821)

Assets written off (at NBV)

Cost
                                                                         

-   
                                                                         

-   
                                                                         

-   
                                                        

(1,464)
                                                                         

(5,676)
                                                             

(355)
                                                                         

-   
                                                              

(414)
                                                                 

(30)
                                                                        

(60)
                                                        

(1,445)
                                                             

(625)
                                                             

(10,069)

Depreciation
                                                                         

-   
                                                                         

-   
                                                                         

-   
                                                             

1,428 
                                                                               

4,031 
                                                                  

355 
                                                                         

-   
                                                                   

414 
                                                                      

26 
                                                                             

60 
                                                             

1,404 
                                                                  

625 
                                                                     

8,343 
                                                                         

-   
                                                                         

-   
                                                                         

-   
                                                                 

(36)
                                                                          

(1,645)
                                                                         

-   
                                                                         

-   
                                                                         

-   
                                                                     

(4)
                                                                                

-   
                                                                  

(41)
                                                                         

-   
                                                                 

(1,726)

Depreciation charge
                                                                         

-   
                                                       

(4,259)
                                                    

(16,054)
                                                       

(2,526)
                                                                     

(23,850)
                                                       

(3,288)
                                                   

(36,885)
                                                       

(3,993)
                                                             

(844)
                                                            

(15,192)
                                                    

(18,029)
                                                    

(12,500)
                                                         

(137,420)

Closing net book value
                    

369,000 
                    

224,560 
                    

426,585 
                          

9,631 
                               

391,411 
                       

21,275 
                     

138,403 
                       

28,084 
                         

7,064 
                          

97,465 
                     

120,341 
                       

25,039 
                     

1,858,858 

Gross carrying value basis
As at 31 December 2020

Cost
                                                    

369,000 
                                                    

245,284 
                                                    

509,790 
                                                        

24,504 
                                                                       

484,216 
                                                          

36,131 
                                                    

207,743 
                                                         

47,173 
                                                           

11,513 
                                                             

141,958 
                                                     

193,523 
                                                         

55,919 
                                                       

2,326,754 

Accumulated depreciation
                                                                         

-   
                                                   

(20,724)
                                                   

(83,205)
                                                    

(14,873)
                                                                     

(90,795)
                                                    

(14,856)
                                                   

(69,340)
                                                    

(19,089)
                                                       

(4,449)
                                                          

(44,493)
                                                    

(73,182)
                                                   

(30,880)
                                                        

(465,886)

Accumulated impairment
                                                                         

-   
                                                                         

-   
                                                                         

-   
                                                                         

-   
                                                                          

(2,010)
                                                                         

-   
                                                                         

-   
                                                                         

-   
                                                                         

-   
                                                                                

-   
                                                                         

-   
                                                                         

-   
                                                                 

(2,010)

Net book value

             
369,000 

                    
224,560 

                    
426,585 

                          
9,631 

                               
391,411 

                       
21,275 

                     
138,403 

                       
28,084 

                         
7,064 

                          
97,465 

                     
120,341 

                       
25,039 

                     
1,858,858 

Net carrying value basis
Year ended 31 December 2019

Opening net book value
                                                    

369,000 
                                                     

162,454 
                                                     

335,371 
                                                          

15,017 
                                                                       

331,889 
                                                          

16,351 
                                                     

149,704 
                                                          

15,155 
                                                             

3,318 
                                                               

88,422 
                                                     

108,976 
                                                            

9,933 
                                                        

1,605,590 

*Transfers (note 5.2.1)
                                                                         

-   
                                                          

70,112 
                                                        

77,826 
                                                                         

-   
                                                                          

84,022 
                                                             

8,195 
                                                        

45,967 
                                                         

10,797 
                                                             

1,524 
                                                               

27,038 
                                                        

37,895 
                                                         

16,373 
                                                             

379,749 

Disposals (at NBV)

Cost
                                                                         

-   
                                                                         

-   
                                                             

(272)
                                                               

(131)
                                                                        

(11,601)
                                                             

(465)
                                                   

(24,495)
                                                             

(467)
                                                                         

-   
                                                                

(1,313)
                                                       

(7,224)
                                                       

(4,489)
                                                            

(50,457)

Depreciation
                                                                         

-   
                                                                         

-   
                                                                    

131 
                                                                      

89 
                                                                              

6,839 
                                                                  

465 
                                                         

17,807 
                                                                  

307 
                                                                         

-   
                                                                    

1,097 
                                                            

6,026 
                                                            

4,366 
                                                                  

37,127 

- - (141) (42) (4,762) - (6,688) (160) - (216) (1,198) (123) (13,330)

Depreciation charge
                                                                         

-   
                                                       

(3,747)
                                                    

(15,034)
                                                       

(2,782)
                                                                     

(25,239)
                                                       

(2,753)
                                                   

(35,653)
                                                        

(3,179)
                                                             

(496)
                                                           

(12,822)
                                                     

(16,153)
                                                       

(8,079)
                                                         

(125,937)

Closing net book value
                    

369,000 
                     

228,819 
                    

398,022 
                        

12,193 
                              

385,910 
                       

21,793 
                     

153,330 
                       

22,613 
                         

4,346 
                        

102,422 
                     

129,520 
                        

18,104 
                     

1,846,072 

Gross carrying value basis
As at 31 December 2019

Cost
                                                    

369,000 
                                                    

245,284 
                                                     

465,173 
                                                        

25,968 
                                                                      

463,988 
                                                        

33,742 
                                                     

194,275 
                                                        

39,622 
                                                             

8,144 
                                                            

134,505 
                                                     

186,077 
                                                        

49,362 
                                                         

2,215,140 

Accumulated depreciation
                                                                         

-   
                                                    

(16,465)
                                                     

(67,151)
                                                    

(13,775)
                                                                     

(76,068)
                                                     

(11,949)
                                                   

(40,945)
                                                    

(17,009)
                                                       

(3,798)
                                                          

(32,083)
                                                   

(56,557)
                                                    

(31,258)
                                                        

(367,058)

Accumulated impairment
                                                                         

-
                                                                         

-   
                                                                         

-   
                                                                         

-   
                                                                          

(2,010)
                                                                         

-   
                                                                         

-   
                                                                         

-   
                                                                         

-   
                                                                                

-   
                                                                         

-   
                                                                         

-   
                                                                 

(2,010)

Net book value
                    

369,000 
                     

228,819 
                    

398,022 
                        

12,193 
                              

385,910 
                       

21,793 
                     

153,330 
                       

22,613 
                         

4,346 
                        

102,422 
                     

129,520 
                        

18,104 
                     

1,846,072 

Annual rate of depreciation (%) - 60 / 91 years 3.33 5 5 10 20 10 10 10 10 33

5.1.1 Particulars of immovable assets (freehold / leasehold lands and buildings for factory and office premises) of the Company 
are as follows:

Location Addresses Usage of immovable property Covered Area 
(Acres)

Karachi B-23C, S.I.T.E. Karachi Head Office and Production Plant 2.809
Karachi D-109, S.I.T.E. Karachi Production Plant 1.25
Karachi F/46, S.I.T.E. Superhighway Phase II, Karachi Production Plant 0.50

Karachi E-134, S.I.T.E. Area, Super Highway Phase II, 
Karachi Future expansion 0.50

 Notes to The Financial Statements
 For The Year Ended 31 December 2020 

* Represents assets transfers from capital work-in-progress (note 5.2.1)
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2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9
Note -------(Rupees in ‘000)-------

5.1.2 Deprecation for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales 23          93,744          86,900 
Administrative expenses 24            8,928            6,439 
Marketing and selling expenses 25          34,748          32,598 

       137,420        125,937 

  5.1.3	 The cost of fully depreciated assets of the Company amounted to Rs. 238.95 million (2019: Rs. 237.89 million). In           
                 addition, land includes leasehold land having cost of Rs.35.17 million remains idle as of 31 December 2020 and 2019.

5.1.4 Details of operating fixed assets disposed off during the year are as follows:

Description Mode of
disposal Cost Accumulated

Deprecation
Net book 

value
Sales

proceeds
Gain / 
(loss)

Relationship 
of purchaser 

with the
Company

Particulars 
of buyers

    ----------------------- Rupees in '000 --------------------
Aggregate amount 
of assets disposed 
off having NBV not 
exceeding Rs. 5 
million

36,070 30,249 5,821 7,521 1,700 various various

  2020 36,070 30,249 5,821 7,521 1,700 

  2019 50,457 37,127 13,330 12,466 (865)  
														            

2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9 2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9

Additions during
the year

Closing balance as
at December 31

----------(Rupees in ‘000)----------

5.2 Capital work-in-progress comprise of:  

Land -    70,112 -   -   

Buildings - factory / office 170,701  135,861 209,587 83,504 

Plant and machinery 70,223  79,570 77,221 40,129 

Furniture and fixtures 18,195  7,723 15,425 -   

Motor vehicles 27,967   43,998  2,517  -   

Office equipment 9,572  10,660  -     -   

Gas and electrical fittings 3,591  1,524 -    -   

Refrigerators and air conditioners 26,796 26,734  21,561  5,059 

Laboratory equipments  11,596 36,499  2,705 -   

Computer and related accessories 20,344  18,116 2,709  1,800 

Solar Panels 5,498 -  5,498 -  

Softwares 16,085   2,291 6,920 -   

   380,568    433,088 344,143 130,492 
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2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9
5.2.1 The following is the movement in capital work-in-progress during the year: Note -------(Rupees in ‘000)-------

Opening balance            130,492 79,444 
Additions during the year 5.2 380,568  433,088 
Transferred during the year to:
- operating fixed assets 5.1           (157,753) (379,749)
- intangible assets 6.1               (9,164) (2,291)
Closing balance           344,143  130,492 

2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9
6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS Note -------(Rupees in ‘000)-------

Goodwill 6.2             743,226 743,226 
Trademarks - (indefinite lives) 6.2 4,641,087 4,641,087 
Computer software                13,562 10,742 

        5,397,875 5,395,055 

Goodwill Trademarks - 
Indefinite

Trademarks - 
finite

Computer 
softwares Total

6.1 Intangible assets -------------------------Amount in Rupees ‘000-------------------------

Net carrying value basis
Year ended 31 December 2020
Opening net book value 743,226 4,641,087 -    10,742 5,395,055 

Transfers (note 5.2.1) -   -   -  9,164    9,164 
Amortisation charge -   -   -    (6,344) (6,344)
Closing net book value 743,226 4,641,087        -    13,562 5,397,875 

Gross carrying value basis
As at 31 December 2020

Cost 743,226 4,641,087 365,930  52,791 5,803,034 
Accumulated amortisation -    -   (365,930)   (39,229) (405,159)
Net book value 743,226 4,641,087 - 13,562 5,397,875 

Net carrying value basis
Year ended 31 December 2019

Opening net book value 743,226 4,641,087 -    13,943 5,398,256 
Transfers (note 5.2.1) -   -    -    2,291 2,291
Amortisation charge -   -   -    (5,492) (5,492)
Closing net book value 743,226 4,641,087 -    10,742 5,395,055

Gross carrying value basis
As at 31 December 2019

Cost 743,226        4,641,087            365,930 43,627  5,793,870 
Accumulated amortisation -    -   (365,930) (32,885) (398,815)
Net book value 743,226 4,641,087  - 10,742 5,395,055

Annual rate of amortisation (%) - - 10-20 33

 Notes to The Financial Statements
 For The Year Ended 31 December 2020 
 

6.2  	   Impairment testing of goodwill and intangible assets (i.e. trademarks) having indefinite lives
							     

The carrying value of goodwill and intangibles assets having indefinite useful lives has been allocated to AGP Limited, 

the Company as a whole i.e. a single cash generating unit (CGU), which is also the operating and reportable segment 

for impairment testing. The Company performed its impairment test annually at year end (i.e. 31 December 2020). 

Considering the relationship between its market capitalisation, using the Level 1 input of the fair value hierarchy - 

quoted prices of the Company, and its book value, among other factors. As a result of this analysis, the management 

did not identify any impairment for the cash generating unit to which goodwill of Rs. 743.226 million and intangible 

asset with indefinite useful lives of  Rs. 4,641.087 million are allocated.

2020 2019
6.3    Amortisation for the year has been allocated as follows: Note ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

   Cost of sales 23 1,081 363 
   Administrative expenses 24 5,236 4,796 
   Marketing and selling expenses 25 27 333 

6,344 5,492 

	
6.4          The cost of fully amortized assets of the Company amounted to Rs. 393.21 million (2019: Rs. 392.11 million).
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2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9

9. TRADE DEBTS - unsecured Note ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Related parties (associated companies)
- OBS Pakistan (Private) Limited 3,490 625
-  Aspin Pharma (Private) Limited 3,140 1,054 
-  Muller & Phipps Pakistan (Private) Limited  654,779 491,824 

9.2 661,409 493,503 

Others than related parties 44,785   30,256 
9.1 706,194 523,759 

Less: Allowances for expected credit losses 9.4 (904)  (1,224)

 705,290 522,535 

9.1 The credit risk exposure on the Company's trade debts using provision matrix at year end is as follows:

Days past due

TOTAL Current 1-30 days 30- 90 days 90 and above 
days

-----------------(Rupees in ‘000)-----------------

2020

Expected credit loss rate 0.13% 0% 0% 0% 3.95%
Estimated total gross 
 carrying amount at default 706,194 606,203 75,303  1,786 22,902 

Expected credit loss 904 -   -   -   904 

2019

Expected credit loss rate 0.23% 0% 0% 0% 4.93%

Estimated total gross 
 carrying amount at default 523,759 432,408 27,181 39,323  24,847 

Expected credit loss  1,224 -   -   -    1,224 

 Notes to The Financial Statements
 For The Year Ended 31 December 2020 
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Note ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

7. LONG-TERM DEPOSITS AND RECEIVABLES

Security deposits - unsecured, considered good            9,665    9,759 

Receivables from employees - secured, considered good 7.1            8,202   6,232 

Less: Recoverable within one year           (3,528) (2,477)

           4,674     3,755 

          14,339   13,514 

7.1 Represents interest free receivables from the employees of the Company on acocunt of purchase of vehicles (i.e. motor 
bikes) and laptops, in accordance with their employment terms. These receivables are secured against the title of said 
assets and are recoverable within five and three years respectively in equal monthly installments. The discounting 
impact of these receivables to their present value is not considered by the management of the Company, as the 
financial impact is immaterial.

2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9

8. STOCK-IN-TRADE Note ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Raw and packing materials

- In hand 8.1        568,332 521,864 

- In transit          32,442 35,005 

       600,774 556,869 

Work-in-process          86,860 58,022 
Finished goods
- Manufacturing         217,995 217,846 
- Trading        376,498 201,774 

       594,493 419,620 

Provision for obsolescence and slow moving stock 8.3         (97,686)   (21,110)

8.2       1,184,441 1,013,401 

 Notes to The Financial Statements
 For The Year Ended 31 December 2020 

8.1 Included herein items having value of  Rs. 14.87 million (2019: Rs. 21.51 million), representing stock held by third parties.

8.2 Stock-in-trade includes items having cost of Rs. 1.56 million (2019: Rs. 4.88 million) written down to net realisable value 
of Rs. 1.20 million (2019: Rs. 3.98 million) resulting in a writedown of Rs. 0.36 million (2019: Rs. 0.90 million).

2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9
8.3 Provision for obsolescence and slow moving stock is as follows: Note ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Opening balance 21,110   17,229 

Provision made during the year - net 8.3.1 93,270   11,900 

Written off during the year (16,694)    (8,019)

 97,686     21,110 

8.3.1 Included herein Rs. 89.87 million (2019: Nil) on account of provision for SARS Covid Antibody Kits, since the testing was 
not executed as per the initially anticipated volumes and accordingly, the same remained unutilised. 
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 Notes to The Financial Statements
 For The Year Ended 31 December 2020 

9.2 The ageing analysis of unimpaired trade debts due from related parties is as follows:

Days past due

TOTAL Current 1-30 days 30- 90 days 90 and above 
days

----------(Rupees in ‘000)----------
2020
OBS Pakistan (Private) Limited 3,490  -    909 2,581  -   
Aspin Pharma (Private) Limited 3,141 3,101    -   40 -   

Muller & Phipps Pakistan (Private) Limited 654,778 602,951 37,794 (2,038) 16,071 

661,409 606,052 38,703 583 16,071 
2019
OBS Pakistan (Private) Limited 625 312  313  -    -   
Aspin Pharma (Private) Limited 1,054 937  48 69 -   

Muller & Phipps Pakistan (Private) Limited 491,824 428,041 22,530 27,178   14,075 
493,503 429,290 22,891 27,247  14,075 

9.3 The maximum amount outstanding from related parties at any time during the year calculated by reference to month 
end balances are as follows:

2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9
Related parties - associated companies Note ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

OBS Pakistan (Private) Limited 3,826   10,696 
Aspin Pharma (Private) Limited 18,428 10,759 
Muller and Phipps Pakistan (Private) Limited 664,625 647,644 

9.4 The movement in allowances for expected credit losses is as follows:

 
Opening balance 1,224  -   
Adjustments due to initial application of IFRS 9 -   1,114 
Allowances for expected credit losses for the year (net) (320)  110 
Closing balance 9.4.1 904 1,224 

9.4.1 Included herein amount of  Rs 0.81 million (2019: Rs. Nil) related to Muller and Phipps Pakistan (Private) Limited, a 
related party.

2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9

10. LOANS AND ADVANCES - Considered good Note ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Advances - unsecured
-  suppliers 18,954 18,970 
-  employees 9,423 7,525
-  custom authorities / clearing agents 1,639 7,368

30,016 33,863 

 Notes to The Financial Statements
 For The Year Ended 31 December 2020 
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------(Rupees in ‘000)------

11. TRADE DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVBALES  
Trade deposits - considered good, unsecured
Security deposits 9,108             6,178 
Margin on letters of credit 16,112           76,509 

25,220           82,687 

Prepayments - insurance 383               240 

Other receivables
Current portion of receivables from employees - secured 7 3,528             2,477 
Receivable from Workers’ Profit Participation Fund 18.2 694                  -   
Others - unsecured 1,332             2,536 

5,554             5,013 
31,157           87,940 

12. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash at banks
Current accounts
- local currency 66,854             4,448 
- foreign currency 346               346 
Deposit accounts 12.1 301,757         111,716 

368,957         116,510 
Cash in hand 823               644 

12.2 369,780         117,154 

12.1 These carry markup at the rates ranging from 2.75% to 11.66% (2019: 4.22% to 12.30%) per annum.

12.2 The following information is disclosed by the Compamy being a Shariah compliant entity and listed on Islamic index: 

Financing 
Facility 

Obtained

Financing 
Facility 
Utilized 

Current / 
Deposit 

Accounts

Profit / Markup 
Earned

Profit / 
Markup Paid

-------------------------------------- Rupees in ‘000) -------------------------------------- 
2020
Shariah compliant financings
Short-term borrowings         1,050,000                      -        294,814               10,073        295 
Long-term financings
-Sukuk        2,448,000              721,177                 -                         -                129,145 
-Diminishing musharikah              25,000                 5,105                 -                         -                     845 
-Running musharikah           350,000            314,560                 -                         -                  11,732 

       3,873,000         1,040,842      294,814               10,073             142,017 
Conventional financings

Short-term borrowings       900,000  -    74,143                 3,672                 1,995 
4,773,000 1,040,842 368,957 13,745 144,012

2019
Shariah compliant financings
Short-term borrowings            700,000                       -            77,737                3,289                2,660 
Long-term financings

-Sukuk       2,448,000           1,201,559                 -                          
-               209,536 

-Diminishing musharikah               25,000                 6,467                 -                         -                      297 
         3,173,000          1,208,026          77,737                 3,289              212,493 

Conventional financings
Short-term borrowings           1,150,000                       -           38,773                 2,806                  5,821 

        4,323,000          1,208,026         116,510                 6,095              218,314 
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13. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised share capital

2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9 2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9

 -------Number of shares ---------- ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 
    350,000,000      350,000,000 fully paid in cash        3,500,000         3,500,000 

Issued, subcribed and paid-up capital

2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9 2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9
 -------Number of shares ---------- ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 

    280,000,000      280,000,000 fully paid in cash        2,800,000        2,800,000 

13.1 Voting rights, board selection and similar rights of shareholders are in proportion to the shareholding of the Company.

2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9

13.2 Basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Net profit for the year �� 1,587,427 1,446,388 

  --------- Number of shares --------- 

Weighted average number of ordinary outstanding during the year 280,000,000   280,000,000 

Basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) 5.67 5.17 

2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9
14. LONG-TERM FINANCINGS - secured ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Running musharikah under SBP Refinance Scheme 14.1 314,560 -   
Diminishing musharikah 14.2 5,105 6,467 
Sukuk net of transaction cost of Rs. 13.25 million 
(2019: Rs. 22.44 million)] 14.3 721,177 1,201,559 

1,040,842 1,208,026 
Less: current maturity 20      (641,110) (490,961)

      399,732 717,065 
The movement in long term financing is as follows:

Opening balance 1,208,026 1,681,966 
Financing obtained during the year 314,560 6,467 
Financing repaid during the year (481,744) (480,407)
Closing balance 1,040,842 1,208,026 

14.1 With a view to support businesses to continue payment of wages and salaries to their workers and employees in the 
aftermath of COVID-19 outbreak, State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) has introduced a temporary Refinance Scheme for 
Payment of Wages and Salaries to the workers and employees of business concerns for three (3) months (i.e. April 
2020 to June 2020) at a subsidized mark-up rate. However, since the impact of pandemic continues, subsequently the 
facility has been extended to the Company for a further period of three (3) months (i.e. from July 2020 to September 
2020). 

The Company has availed and entered into an arrangement of said refinancing scheme with the Faysal Bank Limited 
(FBL) up to Rs.350 million for a period of 2.5 years including 6 months grace period. The repayment will be made in 
8 equal instalments after the grace period. It carries profit rate of SBP rate (i.e. NIL) + 1% per annum. The facility is 
secured against first pari passu hypothecation charge of Rs. 334 million and ranking charge of Rs. 133 million over 
current assets of the Company. The security is common for funded facilities. As of reporting date, Rs 5.74 million of 
the facility limit remained unutilised.

14.2 The Company had obtained diminishing musharakah (DM) facility of Rs. 25 million from Bank Islami Pakistan Limited 
for purchase of private and commercial vehicles. The facility limit utilised is repayable in equal monthly installments 
of Rs.0.11 million in arrears. The maximum period of finance is 5 years. The facility carries profit at the rate of 6 months 
KIBOR + 1.5% per annum with floor of 14% and cap of 24%. The facility is secured against 15% share of the Company 
(minimum), and ownership title over DM assets duly insured comprehensively. As of reporting date, Rs. 18.20 mllion 
of the facility limit remained unutilised.

14.3 The Company had obtained long-term finance of Rs. 2,448 million through the issuance of Sukuk certificates 
repayable in quarterly instalments commencing from September 2017, over the term of 5 years. These carry profit 
rate of 3 months KIBOR + 1.30% per annum and are secured against the present and future property, plant and 
equipment of the Company to the extent of Rs. 2,412 million.

2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9
15. DEFERRED GRANT Note  -----  Rupees in '000   ------

Recognized during the year 39,907  -   
Released to statement of profit or loss 27 (10,208) -   
As at December 31, 2020 29,699 -   
Current portion under non-current liabilities 20 (21,793) -   

7,906 -   

16. GAS INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT CESS

Gas Infrastructure Development Cess                     10,818 -   
Less: Current portion under non-current liability 20 (2,435) -   

8,383 -

16.1 In accordance with the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2011 (GIDC Act, 2011), the Company was required to 
pay GIDC to applicable supplier of Gas, as specified in the First Schedule and at rates specified in the Second Schedule 
to the GIDC Act, 2011. The Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan on August 13, 2020 decided the Gas Infrastructure 
Development Cess (GIDC) case and held that the levy of GIDC under the GIDC Act 2015 is constitutional. The Apex 
court further stated that all industrial and commercial entities which consume natural gas pass on the burden to 
their customers, have to pay the GID Cess that become due upto 31 July 2020 w.e.f 2011. Later, in November 2020, the 
SCP also dismissed all review petitions. Accordingly, the Company in the current year has recognised a liability for 
GIDC in these financial statements.

 Notes to The Financial Statements
 For The Year Ended 31 December 2020 

 Notes to The Financial Statements
 For The Year Ended 31 December 2020 
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2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9
17. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES - NET ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Taxable temporary differences
Accelerated tax depreciation / amortisation           82,217           76,691 
Deferred grant             7,837                  -   

          90,054           76,691 
Deductible temporary differences
Provisions          (26,016)            (5,771)
Long-term financings            (7,837)                  -   

         (33,853)            (5,771)
          56,201           70,920 

2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9
18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Note ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Creditors 464,351         464,112 
Accrued liabilities 245,649         275,578 
Compensated absences 34,217             23,377 
Retention money 13,192   8,955 
Other payables:
 - Provident fund 18.1 5,622 4,647 
-  Infrastructure Cess 13,801 13,801 
-  Workers’ Profit Participation Fund 18.2 -   2,335 
-  Workers’ Welfare Fund 18.3 26,918 24,096 
 - Central Research Fund 18.4 20,789 19,664 
 - Withholding tax 5,831 3,898 
 - Sales tax 4,954 3,489 
 - Others 1,885 1,605 

837,209 845,557 

18.1 Payable to the provident fund

18.1.1 Investments of provident fund have been made in accordance with the Provisions of Section 218 of the Act and the 
rules formulated for this purpose.

18.1.2 During the year, the Company's contribution to provident fund amounted to Rs. 27.17 million (2019: Rs. 22.83 million).

 Notes to The Financial Statements
 For The Year Ended 31 December 2020 
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18.2 Workers’ Profits Participation Fund Note ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Balance at the beginning of the year 2,335 1,043 
Allocation for the year 102,908 97,338 

105,243  98,381 
Payments made during the year (105,937)  (96,046)

(694) 2,335 

18.3 Workers’ Welfare Fund

Balance at the beginning of the year 24,096 32,178 
Charge for the year 27,129 24,299 

51,225 56,477 
Payments made during the year      (24,307)  (32,381)

     26,918 24,096 
18.4 Central Research Fund

Balance at the beginning of the year 19,664 15,346 
Charge for the year 20,789  19,664 

40,453 35,010 
Payments made during the year (19,664) (15,346)

20,789 19,664 

19. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS - Secured

19.1 As of reporting date, the facilities relating to running finance under mark-up arrangements obtained from commercial 
banks of Rs.900 million (2019: Rs. 1,150 million) remained untilised carrying markup at the rate of 1 - 3 months KIBOR 
plus 0.30% to 1.50% per annum payable quarterly. The facility is secured by way of hypothecation charge over current 
assets of the Company.

19.2 As of reporting date, the facilities relating to running musharka arrangements obtained from islamic banks of Rs.1,050 
million (2019: Rs. 700 million) remained untilised carrying markup at rate of 1 - 3 months KIBOR plus 0.70% to 1% per 
annum payable quarterly. The facility is secured by way of hypothecation charge over current assets of the Company.

2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9
20. CURRENT MATURITY OF NON-CURRENT Note ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

LIABILITIES

Long-term financings 14 641,110 490,961 
Deferred grant 15       21,793 -   
Gas infrastructure development cess 16         2,435 -   

      665,338          490,961 

 Notes to The Financial Statements
 For The Year Ended 31 December 2020 
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21.           CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

               21.1                Contingencies

21.1.1              		  										        
	

21.1.2                 

	 												          

21.1.3								        				  

 Notes to The Financial Statements
 For The Year Ended 31 December 2020 

21.1.4

												          

21.1.5

In year 2018, the Company received a demand for tax year 2017 from the taxation authorities  of Rs.145.93 

million in respect of amortisation of goodwill and the payment made by the Company towards Sindh 

Revenue Board (SRB) in respect of Workers Welfare Fund (WWF) disallowed. The Company filed an appeal 

before Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals  [CIR(A)] against the above mentioned demand and the 

case was decided in favor of the Company in respect of amortisation of goodwill allowed, whereas WWF 

has been rejected.  In the year 2019, the Company had filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland 

Revenue  (ATIR) to allow expense in respect of WWF. Whereas during the year  2018, the taxation authority 

filed an appeal before ATIR against amortisation of goodwill allowed by CIR(A),  for which no hearing is 

fixed till date. The Company, in view of a tax advice, expects a favorable outcome, accordingly, no provision 

has been made in these financial statements. 

In year 2014, the Company imported an active pharmaceutical material namely Ossein Mineral Complex 

(OMC) which is exempt from sales tax. Customs duty and advance income tax paid at applicable rates 

by the Company on the import. No discrepancy and irregularity was made out against the Company at 

the time of release of its consignments of OMC. However, after the release of its consignments the tax 

authorities made demand of short-paid duties and taxes which includes 30% custom duty, 17% sales 

tax and 5% advance income tax on the imported value, amounted to Rs.5.11 million, without issuing any 

show cause notice. The Company has filed a petition before High Court of Sindh (SHC) which is pending 

adjudication. During the year, the petition has been withdrawn by the Company, as recommended by 

the lawyer on the contention that the case pertains to classification of raw material in accordance with 

Customs Act, 1969 and already pending before the Pakistan Custom Tarrif (PCT) committee. The Company 

is now contesting the case before PCT committee level. The Company, in view of a legal advice, expects a 

favorable outcome, accordingly, no provision has been made in these financial statements. 

In year  2008, the Company imported consignments of Medicines (Multivitamin) against which, it filed 

goods declaration through their authorized clearing agent. The Company declared the description of 

goods as medicines and claimed assessment under relevant PCT Code. The Custom Authorities rejected 

these assessments and issued demand notices to the Company indicating short levy of duty / taxes. The 

Deputy Collector of Customs, Air Freight Unit/Jinnah International Airport, Karachi, passed an order against 

the Company according to which the Company was liable to pay the short paid amount of Rs.1.17 million 

against the respective consignments / demand notices. The Company filed appeal before the Collectors 

of Customs, Sales Tax & Federal Excise (Appeals) which was decided in favor of the Company vide their 

order dated 30 October 2009.  The Deputy Collector of Customs, Air Freight Unit approached the learned 

Tribunal, Customs, Central Excise & Sales Tax, Bench, and filed appeal against the said order which was 

also dismissed and decided in favour of the Company vide order dated 23 December 2010. Thereafter, the 

Collector of Customs (Preventive) filed the title reference before the SHC which is pending adjudication. 

The Company, in view of a legal advice, expects a favorable outcome, accordingly, no provision has been 

made in these financial statements. 	

In year 2020, during the course of tax audits for tax years 2018 and 2019, the Company has received a show 

cause notice from Sindh Revenue Board (SRB), for depositing Sindh Sales Tax (SST) of Rs. 22.21 million on 

account of contract labour services acquired by the Company during years ended 31 December 2017 and 

2018 based on the contention by SRB that the services of labour and manpower supply are covered under 

Second Schedule to the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 (the Act). In addition, under Withholding 

Rules 2014, the Company is liable to deduct the amount of sales tax at the applicable tax rate on the basis 

of gross value of the taxable services. 

On the other hand, the Company’s contention was that SRB relied upon the Notifications issued by SRB to 

impose SST on the reimbursements of, inter alia, salary payments that the Company made to providers of 

services, though these reimbursements do not fall within the definition of “labour and manpower supply 

services” under Section 2(55A) of the Act nor do they constitute part of the value of such taxable service. 

Therefore, the amount of sales tax shall be worked out on the basis of net value of the taxable services. 

Further, the Notifications were unlawful and unconstitutional, as under the Constitution no tax may be 

levied for the purposes of the province except by or under an Act of the Provincial Assembly. Hence, being 

aggrieved, the Company had filed a constitutional petition C.P.No. D-1014 of 2020 with the Honourable 

High Court of Sindh (SHC) against the said show cause notice, whereby SHC has granted a stay order dated 

17 February 2020 against recovery of the amount and directed SRB not to pass any final adverse order till 

next date of hearing. On 17 Novemebr 2020, the case has been decided in favour of the Company. However, 

SRB is expected to file an appeal against the said order with the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan. 

The Company expects a favourable outcome on this matter and accordingly, no provision has been made 

in these financial statements.

Economic Coordination Committee (ECC) of the Cabinet in its meeting held on 26 June 2019 has taken 

the decision to discontinue Industrial Support Package (ISP) for industrial consumers, which includes a 

decreased off peak hour rate/unit. The decision was effective from 01 July 2019, but since, there were some 

clarity issues, as to timeline and implementation, therefore K-Electric Limited (KEL) continued to provide 

relief to industrial consumers during off-peak hours under the support package. However, as per Ministry 

of Energy Corrigendum of SRO 575 (1) / 2019 dated 22 January 2020, industrial tariff rates were revised w.e.f 

01 July 2019 due to withdrawal of ISP from off-peak consumption, accordingly, the impact of the same 

amounting to Rs. 5.46 million has been included in the energy bill for the month of March 2020 by KEL. The 

Company being aggrieved filed a constitutional petition C.P.No. D-2300 of 2020 against the withdrawal 

of ISP in the Honourable High Court of Sindh (SHC), whereby SHC has granted stay order dated 28 April 

2020 in respect of recovery of ISP charges. The SHC has declared the above mentioned corrigendum as 

illegal and ordered KEL to refund or adjust any sums paid by consumers or reissue bills to petitioners who 

have not paid bills or ISP component. KEL is expected to file an appeal against SHC order, however, the 

Company is confident of a favourable outcome, hence, no provision for the above charges have been made 

in these financial statements.	
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21.1.6 Guarantees ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Bank guarantees
-   limit 310,000 260,000

-   unutilised portion 287,160              234,139 

-   utilised portion   22,840                25,861 

21.2 Commitments

21.2.1 As at 31 December 2020, capital expenditure contracted for but not incurred amounted to Rs 95.67 million (2019: Rs 
92.550 million).

2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9
21.2.2 Letters of credit ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Letters of credit 
-    limit 2,320,000        2,320,000 

-   unutilised portion 2,117,043          1,929,854 

-   utilised portion 202,957            390,146 

2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9
22. REVENUE FROM CONTRACT WTH CUSTOMERS - net Note ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Sale of goods (at a point in time)
Local 
-    Manufacturing  6,002,331 5,743,682 
-    Trading     993,388 730,293 

 6,995,719 6,473,975 
Export   738,224      352,755 
Less: Trade discounts (735,389) (557,409)
         Sales returns   (38,172)       (14,111)
         Sales tax  (14,027)         (1,971)

(787,588)   (573,491)
 22.1 & 22.2 6,946,355 6,253,239 

22.1 Included herein sales of Rs. 5,667 million (2019: Rs. 5,403 million) made to related parties (see note 34).

22.2 Revenue recognised during the year includes Rs. NIL (2019: Rs. 1.06 million) included in contract liabilities at the 
beginning of the year.

 Notes to The Financial Statements
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23. COST OF SALES Note ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Cost of sales – manufacturing

Raw and packing materials consumed
Opening stock 8 556,869    469,435 
Purchases 1,880,289 1,709,718 
Available for consumption 2,437,158 2,179,153 
Closing stock 8 (600,774) (556,869)
Raw and packing material consumed 1,836,384 1,622,284 

Manufacturing cost
Salaries, wages and other benefits  23.1       461,214    378,784 
Stores and spares consumed          25,794        23,740 
Provision against slow moving and obsolete materials - net  8.3           93,270        11,900 
Processing charges            10,634     7,651 
Freight               5,798                5,050 
Fuel, gas and electricity      117,014       105,460 

Repairs and maintenance      74,973         71,482 

Travelling and conveyance         20,080         20,079 
Insurance              5,956           6,040 
Laboratory expenses           26,216       17,914 
Rates and taxes         874        4,016 
Depreciation  5.1.2  93,744  86,900 
Amortisation  6.3        1,081       363 
Postage, telegraph and telephones          2,377    2,651 

Printing and stationery            6,041  3,161 

 945,066 745,191 
2,781,450 2,367,475 

Work-in-process
Opening stock 8         58,022  43,601 
Closing stock 8    (86,860) (58,022)

      (28,838)  (14,421)
Cost of goods manufactured  2,752,612 2,353,054 

Finished goods
Opening stock 8     217,846 216,385 
Closing stock 8 (217,995) (217,846)

             (149)         (1,461)
2,752,463 2,351,593 

Cost of samples for marketing and sales promotion 25     (52,583)  (54,145)

Cost of sales – trading
Opening stock 8         201,774       84,825 
Purchases    560,567         413,618 
Closing stock 8  (376,498) (201,774)

 385,843   296,669 
3,085,723   2,594,117 

23.1 Included herein Rs. 7.7 million (2019: Rs. 6.79 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.
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2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9
24. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES Note ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Salaries and other benefits  24.1           118,653             91,942 
Travelling and conveyance                 408                 479 
Printing and stationery               1,610               1,871 
Directors' remuneration               4,200               1,125 
Postage, telegrams and telephones                 467                 485 
Legal and professional             43,659             24,468 
Research cost               1,500               1,679 
Repairs and maintenance               6,937               5,003 
Software license renewals and maintenance fee             16,724             12,555 
Subscription and fee               1,362                 662 
Advertisement               2,063                 221 
Auditors' remunerations  24.2               3,213               3,878 
Donations  24.3               8,790               1,580 
Insurance                 439                 405 
Depreciation  5.1.2               8,928               6,439 
Amortisation  6.3               5,236               4,796 
Corporate social responsibility               2,146                    -   
Vehicle running expenses                 358                 284 

          226,693           157,872 

24.1 Included herein Rs. 3.69 million (2019: Rs. 2.81 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9
24.2 Auditors' remunerations ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Statutory audit fee               1,663               1,512 
Special audit fee                 120               1,188 
Half yearly review and other certifications               1,264                 875 
Out of pocket expenses                 166                 303 

3,213 3,878 

24.3 Donation to a single party exceeding higher of Rs. 1 miilion or 10% of total donations are as follows:

2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9
------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Patients' Aid Foundation               2,944         -   
National Institute of Kidney Diseases               1,100         -   
Saylani Welfare Trust               1,041       -   

              5,085      -   

24.3.1 None of the directors of the Company or their spouses had any interest in the donee.

2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9
25. MARKETING AND SELLING EXPENSES Note ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Salaries and other benefits  25.1           685,379           598,786 
Travelling and conveyance           180,877           184,251 
Repairs and maintenance 6,021 4,808
Insurance               4,557               4,708 
Depreciation  5.1.2             34,748             32,598 
Amortisation  6.3                   27                 333 
Printing and stationery               3,709               3,756 
Samples 23             52,583             54,145 
Sales promotion expenses           284,983           267,378 
Meeting and conferences             60,927             79,547 
Communication             14,890             10,879 
Subscription             14,295               9,658 
Freight, handling and transportation             60,887             43,099 

       1,403,883        1,293,946 

25.1 Included herein Rs.15.79 million (2019: Rs. 13.24 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9
26. OTHER EXPENSES Note ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Workers’ Profit Participation Fund  18.2           102,908             97,338 
Workers’ Welfare Fund  18.3             27,129             24,299 
Central Research Fund  18.4             20,789             19,664 
Exchange loss - net             30,940             24,651 
Allowances for expected credit loss (net) 9.4                (320)                 110 
Assets written off  5.1               1,726                    -   
Loss on disposal of operating fixed assets - (net)                    -                   865 

          183,172           166,927 

27. OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets

Markup on deposit accounts             13,745               6,095 

Income from non-financial assets

Gain on sale of operating fixed assets (net)  5.1.4               1,700                    -   
Government grant  15             10,208                    -   
Scrap sales               5,930               5,032 
Others                     5                 137 

            17,843               5,169 
            31,588             11,264 

28. FINANCE COSTS

Mark-up on:
- long-term financings           141,722           209,833 
- short term borrowings               2,290               8,481 

          144,012           218,314 
Bank charges               7,780               8,544 

          151,792           226,858 
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29. TAXATION 2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9
------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Current           353,207           278,738 
Prior                 765             87,523 
Deferred            (14,719)             12,134 

          339,253           378,395 

29.1 Relationship between income tax expense and accounting profit is as follows:

Profit before taxation        1,926,680        1,824,783 

Tax at the applicable tax rate of 29% (2019: 29%)           558,737           529,187 
Prior year charge                 765             87,523 
Effect of lower tax rate          (177,152)          (171,956)
Effect of tax credits            (41,099)            (69,535)
Others              (1,998)               3,176 

          339,253           378,395 

Effective tax rate 17.61% 20.74%

30. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Chief Executive Directors Executives
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

 ---------------------------- Rupees in '000 ---------------------------

Managerial remuneration 15,904 14,458 -   -   211,071 157,896 
Bonus 2,171 1,971 -   -   19,547   11,209 
Performance incentive 38,289 31,902 -   -   2,060   4,604 
Reimbursement of expenses 403 300 -   -   22,523 13,731 
Provident fund 1,085 985 -   -   10,788     7,115 
Others  1,449  1,316 -   -   14,282 15,452 

59,301 50,932 -   -   280,271 210,007 

Number of persons 1 1 6 6 52 41

30.1          In addition, the chief executive and certain executives are provided with free use of Company maintained car in 

                 accordance with their entitlements.										        
												          

During the year, fee paid to two (2019: two) independent directors and four (2019: Nil) non-executive directors for                  

attending board and other meetings amounted to Rs. 4.2 million (2019: Rs. 1.13 million). Travelling and boarding 

expenses of executive and non-executive directors borne by the Company amounted to Rs. 11.5 million (2019: Rs. 9.49  

million). Number of non-executive directors at year end were four (2019: four).					     	
							     

30.3         No remuneration was paid/payable to any of the directors other than chief executive.

	 													           
31.            PRODUCTION CAPACITY

The capacity and production of the Company’s plants is indeterminable, as these are multi-product plants involving   

varying processes of manufacturing. The Company’s production is based on market demand.

 Notes to The Financial Statements
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2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9
32. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS Note ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Profit before taxation 1,926,680 1,824,783 

Adjustments for non-cash items:
Depreciation 5.1.2 137,420 125,937 
Amortisation 6.3    6,344    5,492 
Allowances for expected credit losses 26      (320)               110 
(Gain) / loss on disposal of operating fixed assets 27  (1,700)          865 
Assets written off 26     1,726                 -   
Mark-up on deposits accounts 27 (13,745) (6,095)
Finance costs 28 151,792 226,858 
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 26 102,908 97,338 
Workers' Welfare Fund 26 27,129 24,299 
Central Research Fund 26 20,789 19,664 

432,343 494,468 
Operating profit before working capital changes 2,359,023 2,319,251 
Working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Stores, spares and loose tools       (359)         673 
Stock-in-trade (171,040) (216,384)
Trade debts (182,435) (40,321)
Loans and advances      3,847 30,575 
Trade deposits, prepayments and other receivables   57,477 (80,967)

(292,510) (306,424)
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables  858 187,601 

2,067,371 2,200,428 

2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9
33. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Note ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Cash and bank balances 12 369,780 117,154 
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34.     TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties of the Company comprises ultimate parent company, parent company, group companies, 
associated companies, staff retirement funds, directors and key management personnel. All transactions with related 
parties are executed into at agreed terms duly approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. Transactions with 
related parties,  other than those disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are as follows:

Name and country of 
Incorporation

Basis of 
relationship

% of shares held 
by related parties Nature of transactions 2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9

------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Parent company

Aitkenstuart Pakistan
(Private)  Limited -
Pakistan

Parent
company

52.98% (2019:
52.98%) Dividend paid 445,051 176,857 

Associated companies

OBS Pakistan (Private) 
Limited- Pakistan

Common
directorship
(significant
influence)

Nil (2019: NIL)

Sale of goods 4,408 6,926 

Expenditure incurred / paid by the 

Company on behalf of associate 2,334 3,362 

Expenditure incurred / paid by 

associate on behalf of the Company -   9,569 

Dividend paid -   -   

Aspin Pharma (Private) 
Limited - Pakistan

Common
directorship 4.79% (2019: 4.79%)

Sale of goods 38,637  29,322 

Expenditure incurred / paid by the 

Company on behalf of associate 745 2,243 

Expenditure incurred / paid by 

 associate on behalf of the Company 13,249 -   

Dividend paid 40,200 16,750 

Muller and Phipps
Pakistan (Private) Limited 
- Pakistan

Common
directorship 

13.54% (2019:
13.54%)

Sale of goods 5,624,161 5,422,654 

Expenditure incurred / paid by the 

 Company on behalf of the associate -   -   

Settlement of amount incurred by the 

 associate on behalf of the Company 77,812 58,085 

Dividend paid 113,760 47,400 

OBS Green (Private) Ltd - 
Pakistan

Common
directorship NIL (2019: NIL)

Purchase of Personal Protective 

Equipment Kits 400 -   

Service charges for test kits 546 -   

Staff retirement benefits - AGP Limited staff provident fund Contribution paid 26,201 22,444

Key management personnel (other than Chief Executive) Managerial remuneration 68,962 58,426

Bonus 7,899 4,266

Performance incentives 236

Reimbursement of expenses 3,525 1,511

Provident Fund 3,556 2,027

Dividend paid 19 40

Others 4,589 2,523

Directors Dividend paid 1,893 789

Board and other meeting fee 4,200 1,125

Others (due to common directorship)

Dubai Islamic Bank Limited - Pakistan Repayment of long-term financings 119,657 134,104

Muller & Phipps Express Logistics (Private) Limited - Pakistan Services incurred 48 475

Baltoro Partners (Private) Limited - Pakistan Purchase of test kits 240 -   

34.1 The related parties status of outstanding receivables / payables as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 is disclosed in 
respective notes to these financial statements.

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including currency, 
interest rate and other price risks). The Company's overall risk management policy focuses on the unpredictability of 
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance. No changes 
were made in the risk management framework and capital management of the Company during the year ended 31 
December 2020.

35.1 Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and over sight of the Company's risk management 
framework. The executive management team is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk 
management policies. The team regularly meets and any changes and compliance issues are reported to the Board of 
Directors through the audit committee. 

Risk management systems are reviewed regularly by the executive management team to reflect changes in market 
conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, 
aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and 
obligations.

The audit committee oversees compliance by management with the Company’s risk management policies and 
procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company.
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35.1.1 Financial assets and liabilities by category and their respective maturities are as follows:

Interest bearing Non-Interest bearing

Maturity 
upto one 

year

Maturity 
after one 

year
Total

Maturity 
upto one 

year

Maturity 
after one 

year
Total Total

------------------------------------------ (Rupees in ‘000) ------------------------------------------ 
Financial assets (at amortised cost)

Deposits and receivables                       
-   

                    
-   

                   
-         30,080       14,339        44,419         44,419 

Trade debts                       
-   

                    
-   

                      
-      705,290                -       705,290      705,290 

Cash and bank balances     301,757                -        301,757   67,200                -      67,200 368,957 
December 31, 2020     301,757                -     301,757    802,570      14,339    816,909   1,118,666 

Financial liabilities  (at amortised cost)

Long-term financings      641,110      399,732 1,040,842                -         -                  -   1,040,842 
Trade and other payables            -           -               -   764,916                -   764,916 764,916 
Unclaimed dividends                -            -        -       1,701         -           1,701        1,701 
Accrued interest      -       -              -         3,870                -           3,870        3,870 
December 31, 2020        641,110      399,732  1,040,842     770,487                -      770,487    1,811,329 

Interest bearing Non-Interest bearing

Maturity 
upto one 

year

Maturity 
after one 

year
Total

Maturity 
upto one 

year

Maturity 
after one 

year
Total Total

------------------------------------------ (Rupees in ‘000) ------------------------------------------ 

Financial assets (at amortised cost)

Deposits and receivables           -          -   -          87,700         13,514       101,214        101,214 
Trade debts          -          -          -        522,535              -        522,535       522,535 
Cash and bank balances        111,716         -           111,716          4,794           -            4,794        116,510 
December 31, 2019          111,716      -           111,716      615,029   13,514       628,543     740,259 

Financial liabilities (at amortised cost)

Long-term financings 490,961        717,065 1,208,026       -                  -                -    1,208,026 
Trade and other payables           -           -   -    778,274                -      778,274       778,274 
Unclaimed dividends -           -               -               969                -               969             969 
Accrued interest      -            -            -         13,249                -           13,249        13,249 
December 31, 2019   490,961       717,065   1,208,026      792,492                -      792,492   2,000,518 

35.1.2 The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in these financial statements approximate their fair 
values.
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35.2 Capital Management

The Company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company’s ability to remain as a going concern 
and continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital 
structure to reduce the cost of capital. Capital includes issued capital and reserves and the Company is not subject to 
any regulatory capital requirements. The Company is currently financing majority of its operations / investing activities 
through long-term financing and short-term borrowings in addition to its equity. 

2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9
Note ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Long-term financings 14 1,040,842 1,208,026 
Accrued interest        3,870  13,249 
Total debts 1,044,712 1,221,275 
Less: Cash and bank balances 12 369,780 117,154 
Net debts 674,932 1,104,121 

Total capital 8,210,326 7,462,899 

Gearing ratio 8% 15%

35.3 Credit risk

35.3.1 Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an 
obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss without taking into account the fair value of any collateral. 
Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business activities or have 
similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by 
changes in economical, political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the 
Company's performance to developments affecting a particular industry. Credit risk of the Company arises principally 
from the trade debts, deposits, other receivables and balances with banks. The carrying amount of financial assets 
represents the maximum credit exposure. The management continuously monitors the credit exposure towards the 
customers and records an allowance for expected credit loss. The credit risk on liquid funds such as balances with banks 
is limited because the counter parties are banks with reasonably high credit ratings. The Company seeks to minimize 
the credit risk exposure through having exposures only to customers considered credit worthy and obtaining securities, 
where applicable. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is:

2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9
Note ------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Receivables and deposits 7 & 11 44,419 101,214 
Trade debts 9 705,290 522,535 
Bank balances 12 368,957  116,510 

1,118,666 740,259 

Secured        8,202     6,232 
Unsecured 1,110,464 734,027 

1,118,666 740,259 

Not past due 606,203 427,806 
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35.3.2 The credit quality of financial assets can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings or the historical information 
about counter party default rates as follows:

2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9

------(Rupees in ‘000)------

Trade debts (note 9)
Customers with no defaults in the past one year 705,290 522,535 

Bank Balances (note 12)
A-1+ 316,806 115,801 
A-1  52,151     709 

368,957 116,510 

35.3.3 As at reporting date, there are no financial assets that could otherwise be past due or impaired whose terms have been 
renegotiated.

35.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company 
applies prudent liquidity risk management by maintaining sufficient bank balances and the availability of funding 
through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual 
undiscounted payments:

On demand Less than 3 
months

3 to 12 
months

More than 12
 months Total

--------------------------- Rupees in '000 ------------------------------

2020
Long-term financings                       -   160,277 480,833 399,732 1,040,842 
Trade and other payables 34,217 715,622 15,077                         -   764,916 
Unclaimed dividends                       -      1,701           -     -       1,701 
Accrued interest                       -   3,870            -                -      3,870 

34,217 881,470 495,910 399,732 1,811,329 

2019
Long-term financings                       -   122,740 368,221 717,065 1,208,026 
Trade and other payables 23,377 744,337 10,560               -   778,274 
Unclaimed dividends                       -    969                       -                     -   969 
Accrued interest                       -   13,249                     -                  -   13,249 

23,377 881,295 378,781 717,065 2,000,518 

35.5 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and equity price risk.

35.5.1 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rate relates 
primarily to the Company's  long-term financing and short-term borrowings at a floating rate to meet its business 
operations requirements. The Company manages interest rate risk by maintaining arrangement with number of 
financial institutions to have access to the best possible rate, if financing from banks is required. Management of 
the Company estimates that 1% increase in the market interest rate, with all other factors remaining constant, would 
decrease the Company’s profit before tax by Rs.10.46 million,  and a 1% decrease would result in the increase in the 
Company’s profit before tax by the same amount. However, in practice, the actual result may differ from the sensitivity 
analysis.
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35.5.2 Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
the changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is mainly exposed to such risk in respect of foreign currency 
receivables from customers, bank balances and payable to suppliers  amounting. The Company manages currency risk 
by carefully selecting countries for purchasing which pose minimum risk for foreign currency fluctuations. Moreover, 
the Company's exports in foreign currency are pursued to offset the adverse currency fluctuations.

The significant currency exposure at the year end is as follows:

2020 2019
 USD  EURO  CNY  CHF  USD  EURO  CNY  CHF 

Financial assets
Trade debts        150,144             -                    -             -         103,516                   -                      -                     -   
Bank balances                  -         1,992                  -             -                      -          1,992                   -                     -   

       150,144       1,992                  -           -         103,516            1,992                   -                 -   

Financial liabilities
Trade payables  (1,067,898)   (28,506) (1,990,298)   -   (1,435,744)    (40,848) (1,439,589)     (45,000)

------------------------------------ Equivalent Rs '000 ----------------------------------
Financial assets
Trade debts         23,998             -                    -             -            16,121                    -                     -                   -   
Bank balances                  -            392                  -             -                     -               346                    -                    -   

        23,998          392                  -         -             16,121              346                   -                    -   

Financial liabilities
Trade payables    (170,687)   (5,606)     (48,684)         -      (222,756)         (7,061)       (31,883)        (7,035)

The exchange rates applied during the year and at year end were as follows:

Average rate for the 
year

 Spot rate as at 31 
December 

2020 2019 2020 2019
----(Rupees in ‘000)---- ----(Rupees in ‘000)----

US Dollar 162.02   150.06 159.83 154.85 
Chinese Yuan 23.42          21.79 24.46    22.24 
Euro 184.20    168.75 196.64 173.48 
Swiss Franc 172.13    151.25 181.49  160.08 

Sensitivity analysis

Every 1% increase or decrease in exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, will decrease or increase profit 
before tax for the year by Rs 2.03 million (2019: Rs 2.52 million).

35.5.3 Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk of loss arising from uncertainities about future values of investments securities movements 
in prices of equity investments. The Company is not exposed to any equity price risk, as the Company does not have 
any investment in equity securities.

35.6 Fair values of financial assets and liability

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability can be settled, between knowledgeable 
willing parties in an arm's length transaction other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The carrying values of all 
financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair values.
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36. INFORMATION ABOUT OPERATING SEGMENTS

36.1 For management purposes, the activities of the Company are organised into one operating segment i.e. manufacture 
and sale of pharmaceutical products. The Company operates in the said reportable operating segment based on the 
nature of the products, risks and returns, organisational and management structure and internal financial reporting 
systems. The operating interests of the Company are confined to Pakistan in terms of production/generation capacity. 
Accordingly, the information and figures reported in these financial statements are related to the Company’s only 
reportable segment in Pakistan.

36.2 Export sales made to Afghanistan represents the geographical breakup of the Company's gross turnover.

36.3 The revenue information is based on the location of the customer. The details of customers with whom the revenue 
from sales transactions amount to 10% or more of the Company's overall revenue related to manufactured and trading 
goods is as follows:

2 0 2 0 2 0 1 9

------(Rupees in ‘000)------

-  Muller & Phipps Pakistan (Private) Limited 5,624,161 5,422,654 

36.4 Non-current assets of the Company are confined within Pakistan and consist of property, plant and equipment, 
intangibles assets and long-term deposits and receivables.

37. DATE OF AUTHORISATION

These financial statements were authorised for issue on 26 February 2021 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

38. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

38.1 Subsequent to the reporting date, the Board of Directors (the Board), in its meeting held on 03 February 2021, has 
authorized the Company to participate with its parent company through a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) for the 
purpose of acquisition of a selected portfolio of products which are commercialized in Pakistan under the Sandoz 
brand (“brands”) that are owned by Sandoz AG, Switzerland. The Company will own majority of the equity upto sixty-
five percent (65%) shareholding in the SPV. The acquisition is subject to necessary corporate and regulatory approvals 
and successful closing of the transaction with Sandoz AG. The said acquisition is likely to increase the market share, 
bring operational and logistical synergies and enhance the product portfolio of the Company  along with increase in 
the Company’s revenues and profitability, improve value proposition for customers, employees and other stakeholders 
and in turn maximizing shareholders' value. 

38.2 The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 26 February 2021 has proposed a final cash dividend for the year 2020 of 
Re. 1 per share (aggregating to Rs. 280 million) subject to approval of shareholders in the Annual General Meeting of 
the Company to be held on 26 April 2021. This is in addition to the interim cash dividend of Re. 1 per share aggregating 
to the total dividend for the year of Rs. 2 per share.

39. GENERAL

39.1 The number of persons employed as at year end were 976 (2019: 900) and the average number of persons employed 
during the year were 967 (2019: 901).

39.2 Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified for better presentation, wherever considered necessary. 
However, there are no material transactions to report.

39.3 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees, unless otherwise stated.

 

________________________ ___________________________  ________________________ 
Chief Financial Officer  Chief Executive Officer Director
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Notice of 7th Annual 
General Meeting
NOTICE is hereby given that the 7th Annual General Meeting (Meeting) of the shareholders of AGP Limited 
(the Company) will be held on Monday, April 26, 2021 11:30 A.M. at Beach Luxury Hotel, Moulvi Tamizuddin 
Khan Road, Karachi, to transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS

I.	 To confirm the minutes of Extraordinary General Meeting held on April 02, 2021

II.	 To consider, approve and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company together with 
Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon for the year ended December 31, 2020.

III.	 To appoint Auditors for the year ending December 31, 2021 and fix their remuneration.

IV.	 To consider and approve the payment of final dividend at the rate of PKR 1 per share (i.e. 10%) as 
recommended by the Board of Directors.

V.	 To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By Order of the Board

Karachi. Umair Mukhtar
Dated: April 05, 2021 Company Secretary

NOTES:

1.	 Closure of share transfer books

The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from April 20, 2021 to April 26, 2021 (both 
days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of our Registrar, namely CDC Share Registrar 
Services Limited situated at CDC House, 99-B, Block B, S.M.C.H.S. Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi 
- 74400 by the close of business (5:00 p.m.) on April 19, 2021 will be treated as being in time for the 
purposes of payment of final cash dividend to the transferees and to attend and vote at the Meeting.

2.	 Appointment of proxy holder
A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting may appoint a proxy to attend 
and vote on his / her behalf. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the registered office 
of the Company or emailed at corp.affairs@agp.com.pk not later than forty-eight (48) hours before 
the time of holding the Meeting. In calculating the aforesaid time period, no account shall be taken 
of any day that is not a working day. A member shall not be entitled to appoint more than one proxy. 
Proxy form is available at Company’s website www.agp.com.pk and also attached at the end of the 
annual report.

3.	 Guidelines for CDC Account Holders 

Any Individual Beneficial Owner of CDC, entitled to vote at this Meeting, must bring his/her 
original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) to prove identity, and in case of proxy, a copy 
of shareholder’s attested CNIC must be attached with the proxy form. Representatives of corporate 
members should bring the usual documents required for such purpose.

CDC Account Holders will also have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down in 
Circular 1 dated January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 
(SECP).

4.	 Participation in the Meeting

Keeping in view continuing threats of Covid-19 pandemic and to ensure maximization of members’ 
participation, the SECP, through its Circular No. 04 of 2021 dated February 15, 2021, has advised 
all listed companies to hold general meetings virtually through video link as a regular feature, till 
further order, in addition to the requirement of holding physical meeting. Accordingly, in the best 
health interest of our valued shareholders and to ensure maximum participation, the Company is 
also providing facility to its valued shareholders to attend the AGM through video link facility. 

To attend the AGM through video link, members are requested to register their following particulars 
by sending an e-mail at corp.affairs@agp.com.pk.

Folio / CDC
account no.

No. of
shares held Name CNIC No Cell No. Email

address

The video link and login credentials will be shared with the shareholders whose e-mails, containing 
all the requested particulars, are received at the given e-mail address by or before the close of 
business hours (5:00 p.m.) on April 22, 2021. The shareholders are also encouraged to send their 
comments / suggestions, related to the agenda items of the AGM on the above mentioned e-mail 
address by the close of business hours (5:00 p.m.) April 22, 2021.

5.	 Notice of Meeting and Annual Report 
The notice of Meeting along with Annual Report 2020 will also be uploaded on the official website of 
the Company. Further the same shall also be posted at PUCAR system of Pakistan Stock Exchange 
Limited and e-mailed to the members who have provided their valid email addresses to the 
Company or Registrar. Other members who wish to receive the Annual Report 2020 through email 
may send us the request at corp.affairs@agp.com.pk as per the standard request form available at 
the Company’s website.

Members are requested to intimate any change in their registered email addresses on a timely 
manner, to ensure effective communication by the Company.

6.	 E- Voting
Members can exercise their right to poll subject to meeting of requirement of Section 143 to 145 of 
the Companies Act, 2017 and applicable clauses of Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations 2018.

7.	 Video Conference Facility

Pursuant to Section 132(2) of the Companies Act, 2017, if the Company receives consent from 
members holding in aggregate ten percent (10%) or more shareholding residing at geographical 
location, to participate in the meeting through video conference at least seven (7) days prior to 
the date of meeting, the Company will arrange video conference facility in that city subject to 
availability of such facility in that city. The Company will intimate members regarding venue of 
video conference facility at least five (5) days before the date of the Meeting along with complete 
information necessary to enable them to access such facility. In order to avail this facility please 
provide the following information to our Registrar:
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8.	 Electronic payment of cash dividend
In accordance with the provisions of section 242 of the Companies Act 2017, a listed company 
is required to pay cash dividend only through electronic mode directly in to the bank account 
designated by the entitled shareholders. Accordingly, the shareholders are requested to provide the 
information mentioned on an E-Dividend Mandate Form available at the website of the Company 
to the Registrar. The CDC account holders must submit their information directly to their broker 
(participant) / CDC.

As per the provisions of the section 243(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 and Regulation 6 of the 
Companies (Distribution of Dividends) Regulations, 2017, the Company may withhold the payment 
of dividend to shareholders who have not provided valid bank details and copy of valid CNIC or NTN.

9.	 Withholding tax on dividends

In pursuance to section 150 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, the rates of deduction of income tax 
from dividend payments shall be 15% for a person appearing in Active Taxpayers List (ATL) and 30% 
for a person not appearing in ATL. In case of joint shareholders, tax will be deducted on the basis of 
shareholding of each shareholder as may be notified by them, in writing as follows, to our Registrar, 
by the close of business (5:00 p.m.) on April 19, 2021, or if no such notification is received each 
shareholder shall be assumed to have an equal number of shares:

Folio / CDS
Account

No.
Total Shares

Principal Shareholder Joint Shareholder

Name
and 

CNIC No.

Shareholding
Proportion 

(No. of Shares)

Name
and 

CNIC No.

Shareholding
Proportion 

(No. of Shares)

Withholding Tax exemption from the dividend income shall only be allowed if a copy of valid tax 
exemption certificate is made available to the Registrar by close of business (5:00 p.m.) on April 19, 
2021.

“I/We, _________of _____________ being a member of AGP Limited holder of ________Ordinary Share(s) as per 
Register Folio No./ CDC Account No. ___________ hereby opt for video conference facility at (Please insert 
name of the City).

__________________
Signature of member”
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Pattern of
Shareholding
As at December 31, 2020

No Of
Shareholders

Shareholdings
Slabs

Total Shares
Held

216 1 to 100                              6,448 
1293 101 to 500                           627,901 
574 501 to 1000                          566,774 
494 1001 to 5000                        1,305,169 
108 5001 to 10000                          824,630 
35 10001 to 15000                           431,529 
24 15001 to 20000                         444,901 
10 20001 to 25000                           233,342 
11 25001 to 30000                           312,496 
1 30001 to 35000                            30,500 
3 35001 to 40000                            116,250 
3 40001 to 45000                            126,614 
4 45001 to 50000                          196,000 
1 50001 to 55000                            54,500 
2 55001 to 60000                           118,500 
3 60001 to 65000                             187,113 
2 65001 to 70000                           132,834 
4 70001 to 75000                          295,500 
1 75001 to 80000                           80,000 
3 85001 to 90000                          266,250 
4 95001 to 100000                          395,500 
1 105001 to 110000                            106,161 
4 110001 to 115000                           451,733 
1 120001 to 125000                           124,750 
1 130001 to 135000                          135,000 
1 135001 to 140000                          137,000 
1 145001 to 150000                          146,500 
1 150001 to 155000                            151,500 
1 155001 to 160000                         160,000 
1 165001 to 170000                          167,000 
1 170001 to 175000                          175,000 
1 180001 to 185000                          184,500 
1 195001 to 200000                        200,000 
1 210001 to 215000                          215,000 
1 220001 to 225000                          225,000 
1 290001 to 295000                          292,500 
1 305001 to 310000                         308,000 
1 315001 to 320000                            315,250 
1 320001 to 325000                          321,000 

No Of
Shareholders

Shareholdings
Slabs

Total Shares
Held

1 385001 to 390000                         390,000 
1 420001 to 425000                          422,500 
1 505001 to 510000                         509,000 
1 540001 to 545000                          543,500 
1 555001 to 560000                          559,500 
2 595001 to 600000                        1,198,500 
1 775001 to 780000                         776,000 
1 865001 to 870000                         867,500 
1 900001 to 905000                         904,250 
1 935001 to 940000                          938,500 
1 1055001 to 1060000                       1,057,500 
1 1290001 to 1295000                       1,290,250 
1 1390001 to 1395000                       1,392,500 
1 2180001 to 2185000                       2,183,000 
1 4025001 to 4030000                     4,028,000 
1 4425001 to 4430000                     4,429,500 
1 5300001 to 5305000                      5,302,000 
1 5415001 to 5420000                      5,416,000 
1 10755001 to 10760000                      10,758,361 
1 13395001 to 13400000                   13,400,000 
1 26790001 to 26795000                   26,794,560 
1 37915001 to 37920000                   37,920,000 
1 148350001 to 148355000                 148,350,434 

2,841          280,000,000 
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As at December 31, 2020

Categories of Shareholders Share
holders

Shares
Held  Percentage 

Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children

Mr. Tariq Moinuddin Khan 1          600,000              0.21 
Mr. Muhammad Kamran Mirza 1      30,500             0.01 
Mrs. Faiza Kamran - Spouse of Mr. Muhammad Kamran Mirza 1              5,000            0.00
Mr. Zafar Iqbal Sobani 1              500            0.00 
Mr.  Naved Abid Khan 1                        1            0.00 
Mr.  Kamran Nishat 1                        1            0.00 
Ms. Nusrat Munshi 1                       1            0.00 
Mr.  Mahmud Yar Hiraj 1                      1            0.00 

Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties
Aitkenstuart Pakistan (Private) Limited 1 148,350,434           52.98 
Muller & Phipps (Pakistan) (Private) Limited 1   37,920,000            13.54 
Aspin Pharma (Pvt.) Limited 1 13,400,000             4.79 

Executives 3            1,375            0.00 

Public Sector Companies and Corporations NIL                    -                   -   

Banks, development finance institutions,
non-banking finance companies, insurance
companies, takaful, modarabas and pension funds

15   9,180,661             3.28 

Mutual Funds
CDC - Trustee Faysal Islamic Stock Fund 1        111,900            0.04 
CDC - Trustee NIT Asset Allocation Fund 1       54,500             0.02 
CDC - Trustee Faysal Islamic Dedicated Equity Fund 1        422,500              0.15 
CDC - Trustee NBP Islamic Regular Income Fund 1               6,500            0.00 
CDC Trustee - Meezan Dedicated Equity Fund 1      135,000             0.05 
CDC - Trustee Alfalah GHP Islamic Dedicated Equity Fund 1         14,500             0.01 
MCBFSL Trustee ABL Islamic Dedicated Stock Fund 1            40,000             0.01 
CDC - Trustee Meezan Asset Allocation Fund 1         292,500             0.10 
CDC - Trustee NBP Islamic Active Allocation Equity Fund 1          13,500            0.00 
CDC - Trustee NIT Islamic Equity Fund 1          48,500             0.02 
CDC - Trustee NBP Islamic Stock Fund 1       509,000             0.18 
CDC - Trustee Nafa Islamic Principal Protected Fund - II 1               5,000            0.00 
CDC - Trustee National Investment (Unit) Trust 1             21,000             0.01 
MCBFSL - Trustee ABL Islamic Stock Fund 1            10,000            0.00 
CDC - Trustee HBL Islamic Stock Fund 1              250            0.00 
CDC - Trustee NBP Sarmaya Izafa Fund 1          27,500             0.01 

Categories of Shareholders Share
holders

Shares
Held  Percentage 

CDC - Trustee ABL Stock Fund 1          10,000            0.00 
CDC - Trustee NIT-Equity Market Opportunity Fund 1          98,500            0.04 
CDC - Trustee Alfalah GHP Alpha Fund 1           62,500             0.02 
CDC - Trustee Alfalah GHP Stock Fund 1           167,000            0.06 
CDC - Trustee Alfalah GHP Islamic Stock Fund 1         146,500             0.05 
CDC - Trustee NBP Balanced Fund 1             6,500            0.00 
CDC - Trustee NBP Stock Fund 1          559,500             0.20 
CDC - Trustee Atlas Islamic Stock Fund 1                  500            0.00 
CDC - Trustee Meezan Islamic Fund 1   5,416,000              1.93 
CDC - Trustee Al Meezan Mutual Fund 1          904,250             0.32 
CDC - Trustee Alhamra Islamic Asset Allocation Fund 1         225,000            0.08 
CDC - Trustee AKD Index Tracker Fund 1      19,876             0.01 
CDC - Trustee Alfalah GHP Value Fund 1        65,500             0.02 
CDC - Trustee Faysal Stock Fund 1           448            0.00 
CDC - Trustee Meezan Balanced Fund 1       390,000             0.14 
CDC - Trustee Alhamra Islamic Stock Fund 1       308,000              0.11 
CDC - Trustee MCB Pakistan Stock Market Fund 1       543,500             0.19 

General Public
a. Local 2,715        6,521,925             2.33 
b. Foreign 6            25,500             0.01 

Foreign Companies 4       6,294,500             2.25 

Others 54    47,033,877           16.80 
Total 2,841 280,000,000        100.00 

Share holders holding 5% or more  Shares Held  Percentage 

Aitkenstuart Pakistan (Private) Limited 148,350,434           52.98 

Muller & Phipps (Pakistan) (Private) Limited 37,920,000 13.54 

Baltoro Growth Fund 26,794,560             9.57 

Details of trading in shares by Executive during the year
No. of Shares

Bought Sold
Dr. Imran Khalid (Ex-Employee) 7,500 6,000

Executive means the CEO, Chief Operating Officer, CFO, HOIA, Company Secretary and employees of 
the Company whose annual basic salary exceeds the threshold of PKR 5 Million as determined by Board 
of Directors.

Pattern of
Shareholding
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Form of Proxy

Seventh Annual General Meeting 
I/We_______________________________________ of _________________________________, being 
a Member of AGP Limited holding ________________________ ordinary shares, HEREBY 
APPOINT_______________________________________ of _____________________________, or 
failing him/her __________________________ of ___________________________ as my/our 
proxy in my/our absence to attend and to vote and act for me/us and on my/our behalf 
at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Monday, April 26, 2021 at 
11:30 A.M. at Beach Luxury Hotel, Moulvi Tamizuddin Khan Rd, Karachi 74000, Karachi, 
at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my/our hand(s) this _____ day of _____________________ 2021.

Signed in the presence of:

Notes: 

1.	 The Member is requested: 
I.	 to affix Revenue Stamp of Rs. 10/- at the place indicated above; 
II.	 to sign in the same style of signature as is registered with the Company; 
III.	 to write down his/her Folio Number/CDC Account Number.

2.	 For the appointment of the above Proxy to be valid, this instrument of proxy must be received at the      
Share Registrar of the Company, CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B,   Block-B,  
S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi 74400, at least 48 hours before the time fixed  for the 
Meeting. 

3.	 Any alteration made in this instrument of proxy should be initialed by the person who signs it. 
In addition to the above, the following requirements have to be met for CDC Account Holders / 
Corporate Entities: 
I.	 Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and of the Proxy must be 

furnished with the proxy form. 
II.	 The Proxy must produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the Meeting. 
III.	 In case of corporate entities, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney and specimen 

signature must be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy forms to the 
Share Registrar.

Witness 1

Signature:
Name: 
CNIC No: 
Address: 

Witness 2

Signature:
Name: 
CNIC No: 
Address: 

Name of Shareholder:
Folio No. / CDC Account No:
Signature of the Shareholder:

Ten Rupees   
Revenue 
Stamps
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Standard Request Form
Circulation of Annual Audited Accounts 

The Company Secretary 
AGP Limited, 
B-23-C, S.I.T.E., 
Karachi-75700, 
Pakistan 

Subject:   Circulation of Annual Audited Accounts via Email/CD/USB/DVD or Any Other Media 

Pursuant to the directions given by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan through its 
SRO 787(1)/2014 dated September 8, 2014 and SRO 470(1)/2016 dated May 31, 2016 that have allowed 
the companies to circulate its Annual Audited Accounts (i.e. Annual Balance Sheet and Profit and 
Loss Accounts, Statements of Comprehensive Income, Cash Flow Statement, Notes to the Financial 
Statements, Auditor’s and Director’s Report) to its members/shareholders, along with the Notice of the 
Annual General Meeting (AGM) through Email/CD/DVD/USB/ or any other Electronic Media at their 
registered Addresses. 

Shareholders who wish to receive the hard copy of Audited Annual Financial Statements along with a 
Notice of the AGM via e-mail, shall have to fill the below form and send us to Company address. 

I/We hereby consent Option 1 or Option 2 to the above said SROs for Audited Financial Statements 
and Notice of General Meeting(s) delivered to me hard form instead Email/CD/DVD/USB or any others 
Electronic Media. 

OPTION 1 – VIA EMAIL
Name of the Members/ Shareholders:

CNIC /SNIC #: 

Folio / CDC Account Number:

Valid Email Address (to receive Financial Statements along 
with Notice of General Meeting(s) instead of hard copy, CD/
DVD/USB.):

OPTION 2 – HARD COPY
Name of the Members/ Shareholders:

CNIC /SNIC #: 

Folio / CDC Account Number:

Valid Email Address (to receive Financial Statements along 
with Notice of General Meeting(s) instead of hard copy, CD/
DVD/USB.):

I/We hereby confirm that the above – mentioned information is correct and in case of any change 
therein, I/we will immediately intimate to the Company’s Share Registrar. I/we further confirm that the 
transmission of Company’s Annual Audited Financial Statements and Notice of General Meeting(s) 
through my/our above address would be taken as compliance with the Companies Act, 2017. 

_______________________ 
SHAREHOLDER SIGNATURE

E - Dividend
Mandate Form

Shareholder’s Detail

Name of Company   AGP Limited

Name of Shareholder

Folio No./CDC Participants ID A/c No.

CNIC No. (for individual shareholders) /
NTN (for corporate shareholders)
(please attach a photocopy)

Passport No. (for foreign shareholders)

Cell Number & Land Line Number

Email Address

Shareholder’s Bank Detail

Title of Bank Account

International Bank Account Number (IBAN)

Bank’s Name

 Branch Name and Address

It is stated that the above‐mentioned information is correct and in case of any change therein, I will 
immediately intimate Participant / Share Registrar accordingly.

__________________________
Date: ____________ (Signature of Shareholder)

Notes: 
1.	 Please provide complete IBAN Number (24 digits), after checking with your concerned branch to 

enable electronic credit directly into your bank account.

2.	 Signature must match with specimen signature registered with the Company.

3.	 The Shareholder who hold shares in physical form are requested to submit the above-mentioned 
information to the Share Registrar. The Shareholders who hold shares in Central Depository 
Company are requested to submit the above-mentioned information to their Broker (Participant) 
with a copy of E-Dividend Mandate Form to the Share Registrar.

4.	 The name and address of the Share Registrar of the Company is as follows:

CDC Share Registrar Services Limited
CDC House 99-B, Block B, S.M.C.H.S. 
Main Shahra-e-Faisal Karachi 74400 Pakistan
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AGP Limited B-23-C, S.I.T.E.,
Karachi - 75700, Pakistan.
E-mail: info@agp.com.pk
Tel.: +92-21-111 247 247
Fax: +92-21-2570678 


